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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A, or this Amendment, to Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.’s, or we or our, Annual Report on Form 10-K, or the Initial Form 10-K, for the year ended August 31, 2012, originally filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, or the Commission, on December 12, 2012 (Commission File No. 000-50298), is being filed solely for the purposes of (i) revising the descriptions of Exhibits 4.2, 10.8, 10.20, 10.21, 31.1, 31.2, and 101.1 in the
Exhibit list contained in Item 15(b) of the Initial Form 10-K to correct certain clerical errors, (ii) revising Exhibits 10.8, 10.19, 10.20 and 10.23 to include certain schedules and attachments that were previously inadvertently omitted, (iii)
revising Exhibits 10.8, 10.19 and 10.23 to correct typographical errors on pages 9, 25 and 12, respectively, thereof, (iv) revising Exhibits 10.7, 10.8 and 10.20 to include conformed signatures, (v) revising Exhibit 23.2 to correct the Form S-
8 registration number referred to therein and (vi) listing Exhibits 4.3 and 4.6 that were previously inadvertently omitted.  Pursuant to Rule 12b-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Amendment restates in its
entirety Item 15(b) of the Initial Form 10-K and contains new certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which are filed herewith.  Because no financial statements have been included in this Amendment and
this Amendment does not contain or amend any disclosure with respect to Items 307 and 308 of Regulation S-K, paragraphs 3, 4, and 5 of such certifications have been omitted.

This Amendment does not reflect events occurring after the filing of the Initial Form 10-K or modify or update the disclosures contained in the Initial Form 10-K in any way other than as discussed above.

We hereby amend and restate Item 15(b) of the Initial Form 10-K as follows:

(b)              Exhibits

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed March 14, 2011).

3.2 By-laws (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed March 14, 2011).

4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Form S-1 filed March 24, 2011).

4.2 Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Attara Fund, Ltd. on January 10, 2011, and transferred to Regals Fund LP on March 11, 2012 (incorporated by reference from our quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed January 13, 2011).

4.3* Amendment No. 1, dated August 28, 2012, to Common Stock Purchase Warrant transferred to Regals Fund LP on March 11, 2012.

4.4 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant used in 2010-2011 private placement (incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Form S-1 filed March 24, 2011).

4.5 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant used in 2012 private placements (incorporated by reference from our annual report on Form 10-K filed December 12, 2012).
 
4.6 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Regals Fund LP (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.20 to this Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A filed December 21, 2012).
 
10.1+ Consulting Agreement by and between Oramed Ltd. and KNRY, Ltd., entered into as of July 1, 2008 for the services of Nadav Kidron (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2008).
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10.2+ Consulting Agreement by and between Oramed Ltd. and KNRY, Ltd., entered into as of July 1, 2008 for the services of Miriam Kidron (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2008).

10.3+ Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. 2008 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2008).

10.4+ Form of Notice of Stock Option Award and Stock Option Award Agreement (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2008).

10.5+ Employment Agreement dated as of April 19, 2009, by and between Oramed Ltd. and Yifat Zommer (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed on April 22, 2009).

10.6 Consulting Service Agreement dated April 21, 2009, between Oramed Ltd. and ADRES Advanced Regulatory Services Ltd. (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed April 22, 2009).

10.7* Amendment to Consulting Service Agreement dated February 26, 2012, between Oramed Ltd. and ADRES Advanced Regulatory Services Ltd. 

10.8*+ Clinical Trial Agreement dated September 11, 2011, between Oramed Ltd., Hadasit Medical Research Services and Development Ltd., Miriam Kidron and Daniel Schurr.

10.9+ Clinical Trial Agreement dated July 8, 2009, between Oramed Ltd., Hadasit Medical Research Services and Development Ltd., Miriam Kidron and Itamar Raz (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed
July 9, 2009).

10.10 Agreement dated January 7, 2009, between Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. and Hadasit Medical Research Services and Development Ltd. (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed January 7, 2009).

10.11 Joint Venture Agreement dated June 1, 2010, between Oramed Ltd. and LASER Detect Systems Ltd (now known as D.N.A Biomedical Solutions Ltd.) (incorporated by reference from our quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed July
14, 2010).

10.12 Manufacturing and Supply Agreement dated July 5, 2010, between Oramed Ltd. and Sanofi-Aventis Deutschland GMBH (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed July 14, 2010).
 
10.13 Securities Purchase Agreement between Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. and Attara Fund, Ltd., dated as of December 21, 2010 (incorporated by reference from our quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed January 13, 2011).

10.14 Share Purchase Agreement dated February 22, 2011, between Oramed Ltd. and D.N.A Biomedical Solutions Ltd. (incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Form S-1 filed March 24, 2011).

10.15 Patent Transfer Agreement dated February 22, 2011, between Oramed Ltd. and Entera Bio Ltd. (incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Form S-1 filed March 24, 2011).
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10.16 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement used in 2010-2011 private placement (incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Form S-1 filed March 24, 2011).

10.17+ Form of Indemnification Agreements dated March 11, 2011, between Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. and each of our directors and officers (incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed on
January 31, 2011).

10.18+ Agreement dated June 21, 2011, with Dr. Michael Berelowitz (incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed June 22, 2011).

10.19* Form of Securities Purchase Agreement used in 2012 private placements.

10.20* Securities Purchase Agreement used in 2012 private placement with Regals Fund LP.

10.21 Master Services Agreement dated September 27, 2012, between Oramed Ltd. and Medpace, Inc. (incorporated by reference from our annual report on Form 10-K filed December 12, 2012).

10.22 MEDPACE Task Order Number: 1 dated September 27, 2012, between Oramed Ltd. and Medpace, Inc. (portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment) (incorporated by reference from
our annual report on Form 10-K filed December 12, 2012).

10.23* Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 30, 2012, between Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. and D.N.A Biomedical Solutions Ltd.

21.1 Subsidiary (incorporated by reference from our annual report on Form 10-K filed December 12, 2012).

23.1 Consent of Kesselman & Kesselman, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (incorporated by reference from our annual report on Form 10-K filed December 12, 2012).

23.2* Consent of Malone & Bailey, PC,  Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

31.1# Certification Statement of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2# Certification Statement of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.3* Certification Statement of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.4* Certification Statement of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1** Certification Statement of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

32.2** Certification Statement of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

101.1 The following financial statements from the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2012, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii)
Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, (iv)  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of
text and in detail (incorporated by reference from our annual report on Form 10-K filed December 12, 2012).

____________________

 * Filed herewith.
 ** Furnished with the Initial Form 10-K.
 # Filed with the Initial Form 10-K.
 + Management contract or compensation plan.

 
5



 

SIGNATURE

             Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
 ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.  
    
 By: /s/ Nadav Kidron  
  Nadav Kidron  
  President and Chief Executive Officer  
    
  Date: December 21, 2012  
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Exhibit 4.3
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO
 

COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT OF ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

THIS AMENDMENT AGREEMENT (this "Amendment"), made and entered into as of the 28th day of August, 2012, by and between Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. (the "Company") and Regals Fund LP (the "Holder").
 
WHEREAS on January 10, 2011, the Company issued to Attara Fund, Ltd. ("Attara"), a Common Stock Purchase Warrant of the Company, which was exercisable for 2,187,500 shares of the Company's Common Stock (as further

specified therein), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "Attara Warrant");
 
WHEREAS on March 11, 2012, Attara assigned and transferred the Attara Warrant to the Holder and the Company cancelled the Attara Warrant and issued to the Holder a new Common Stock Purchase Warrant of the Company,

which is exercisable for 2,187,500 shares of the Company's Common Stock (as further specified therein), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B (the "Regals Warrant");
 
WHEREAS the Company has entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with the Holder for the sale of up to 2,702,703 shares of Common Stock and a warrant to purchase up to up to 1,351,352 shares of Common Stock, for a

total purchase price of $1,000,000 (the "Proposed Transaction");
 
WHEREAS upon the closing of the Proposed Transaction, the Holder will be the beneficial owner of more than 10% of the Company's Common Stock and will be subject to the reporting requirements and the restrictions of Section

16 of Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
WHEREAS as a result of the closing of a recent private placement of the Corporation, certain terms of the Regals Warrant are subject to automatic adjustment.
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual and respective representations, undertakings and covenants herein contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:
 
1.  The preamble and the exhibits attached hereto constitute an integral part hereof.
 
2.  Capitalized terms in this Amendment shall have the same meaning as in the Regals Warrant, unless otherwise expressly stated herein.
 
3.  Upon the closing of the Proposed Transaction (and subject to the occurrence thereof), the Regals Warrant shall be hereby amended by deleting Section 2(f) ("Limitations on Exercise") in its entirety.
 
4.  Upon the closing of the Proposed Transaction (and subject to the occurrence thereof), the Regals Warrant shall be hereby amended by deleting all references in the Regals Warrant to "2,187,500", and replacing it with "2,956,081".
 
 

 



 
 
5.  Upon the closing of the Proposed Transaction (and subject to the occurrence thereof), the Regals Warrant shall be hereby amended by replacing Section 2(b) ("Exercise Price") in its entirety, with the following:
 
 5.1. "Exercise Price.  The exercise price per share of the Common Stock under this Warrant shall be $0.37, subject to adjustment hereunder (the “Exercise Price”)".
 
6.  Except as set forth in and modified by this Amendment, all of the terms and provisions of the Regals Warrant shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect.
 
7.  This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the different parties hereto on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all of which shall together constitute

one and the same agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed by the parties hereto as of the day and year first hereinabove written:
 
ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

By: _/s/ Nadav Kidron                          
Name:  Nadav Kidron
Title:    Chief Executive Officer
 
REGALS FUND LP
By: Regals Fund GP LLC, its general partner
 
By:_/s/ David Slager___________
Name:  David M. Slager
Title:    Managing Member
 
 

3



 
 
Exhibit A

NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES
COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY
NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A
TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL
OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY. THIS SECURITY AND THE SECURITIES
ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.

 
COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT

 
To Purchase 2,187,500 Shares of Common Stock of

 
ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

 
THIS COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT (the “Warrant”) certifies that, for value received, Attara Fund, Ltd. (the “Holder”), is entitled, upon the terms and subject to the limitations on exercise and the conditions hereinafter
set forth, at any time on or after the date hereof (the “Initial Exercise Date”) and on or prior to the close of business on the fifth anniversary of the Initial Exercise Date (the “Termination Date”) but not thereafter, to subscribe for and
purchase from Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), up to 2,187,500 shares (the “Warrant Shares”) of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”).  The purchase
price of one share of Common Stock under this Warrant shall be equal to the Exercise Price, as defined in Section 2(b).

Section 1.                     Definitions.  Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”), dated December 21,
2010, among the Company and the purchasers signatory thereto.

 
Section 2.                     Exercise

 
(a)           Exercise of Warrant.  Exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant may be made, in whole or in part, at any time or times on or after the Initial Exercise Date and on or before the Termination Date

by delivery to the Company of a duly executed facsimile copy of the Notice of Exercise Form annexed hereto at the headquarters of the Company (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by notice in writing to
the registered Holder at the address of such Holder appearing on the books of the Company); and within 5 Trading Days of the date said Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company, the Company shall have received payment of the
aggregate Exercise Price of the shares thereby purchased by wire transfer or cashier’s check drawn on a United States bank. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this
Warrant to the Company until the Holder has purchased all of the Warrant Shares available hereunder and the Warrant has been exercised in full, in which case the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company for cancellation within
5 Trading Days of the date the final Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company.  Partial exercises of this Warrant resulting in purchases of a portion of the total number of Warrant Shares available hereunder shall have the effect of
lowering the outstanding number of Warrant Shares purchasable hereunder in an amount equal to the applicable number of Warrant Shares purchased.  The Holder and the Company shall maintain records showing the number of Warrant
Shares purchased hereunder and the date of such purchases.  The Company shall deliver any objection to any Notice of Exercise Form within three Business Days of receipt of such notice.  The Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of
this Warrant, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph, following the purchase of a portion of the Warrant Shares hereunder, the number of Warrant Shares available for purchase hereunder at any given time
may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.

 
 

 



 
 

(b)           Exercise Price.  The exercise price per share of the Common Stock under this Warrant shall be $0.50, subject to adjustment hereunder (the “Exercise Price”).
 

(c)           Cashless Exercise.  If, after the Effectiveness Deadline, at the time of exercise hereof there is no effective registration statement registering all of the Warrant Shares for resale by the Holder into the market from
time to time, then, at the election of the Holder, this Warrant may also be exercised by means of a “cashless exercise” by which the Holder authorizes the Company to withhold from issuance a number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon such exercise of this Warrant which, when multiplied by the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, is equal to the aggregate Exercise Price (and such withheld shares shall no longer be issuable under this Warrant).  For purposes
hereof, “Fair Market Value” means:
 

(i)           if the Common Stock is then listed or quoted on a securities exchange (the “Trading Market”), the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for the five trading days immediately prior to
(but not including) the date of delivery of the Exercise Notice Form on the Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted for trading as reported by Bloomberg Financial L.P. (based on a trading day on the Trading
Market from 9:30 a.m. (New York City time) to 4:02 p.m. (New York City time); (ii) if the Common Stock is not then listed or quoted for trading on the Trading Market but is quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board, the volume
weighted average price of the Common Stock for such period on the OTC Bulletin Board; (iii) if the Common Stock is not then quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board and if prices for the Common Stock are then reported in the
“Pink Sheets” published by Pink Sheets, LLC (or a similar organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), the average of the last sale price over the five trading day period immediately prior to (but not including) the
date of delivery of the Exercise Notice Form; or (iv) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser selected in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company and
reasonably acceptable to the Holder. If the Holder shall elect to effect a cashless exercise and clause (i) or (ii) above shall be applicable, then the Exercise Notice Form shall be accompanied by a copy of a print-out of the Bloomberg screen
showing the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, certified as true and correct by the Holder.
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(d)           Mechanics of Exercise.
 

(i)           Authorization of Warrant Shares.  The Company covenants that all Warrant Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant will, upon exercise of the
purchase rights represented by this Warrant, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and charges created by the Company in respect of the issue thereof (other than taxes in respect of any
transfer occurring contemporaneously with such issue).
 

(ii)           Delivery of Certificates Upon Exercise.  Certificates for shares purchased hereunder shall be transmitted by the transfer agent of the Company to the Holder by crediting the account of the Holder’s
prime broker with the Depository Trust Company through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission (“DWAC”) system if the Company is a participant in such system, so long as the certificates therefor are not required to bear a legend
regarding restriction on transferability, and otherwise by physical delivery to the address specified by the Holder in the Notice of Exercise within three (3) Trading Days from the delivery to the Company of the Notice of Exercise Form,
surrender of this Warrant (if required) and payment of the aggregate Exercise Price as set forth above (“Warrant Share Delivery Date”).  This Warrant shall be deemed to have been exercised on the date the Exercise Price is received by the
Company. The Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have been issued, and Holder or any other person so designated to be named therein shall be deemed to have become a holder of record of such shares for all purposes, as of the date the
Warrant has been exercised by payment to the Company of the Exercise Price (or cashless exercise, if permitted) and all taxes required to be paid by the Holder, if any, pursuant to Section 2(d)(v) prior to the issuance of such shares, have
been paid.
 

(iii)           Delivery of New Warrants Upon Exercise.  If this Warrant shall have been exercised in part, the Company shall, at the request of a Holder and upon surrender of this Warrant certificate, at the time of
delivery of the certificate or certificates representing Warrant Shares, deliver to Holder a new Warrant evidencing the rights of Holder to purchase the unpurchased Warrant Shares called for by this Warrant, which new Warrant shall in all
other respects be identical with this Warrant.
 

(iv)           Rescission Rights. If the Company fails to deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing the Warrant Shares by the close of business on the third Trading Day after the Warrant Share
Delivery Date, then the Holder will have the right to rescind such exercise by providing written notice that is received by the Company prior to the issuance of the Warrant Shares.
 

(v)           Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Certificates Upon Exercise. In addition to any other rights available to the Holder, if the Company fails to deliver to the Holder a certificate
representing the Warrant Shares pursuant to an exercise by the close of business on the third Trading Day after the Warrant Share Delivery Date, and if after such date the Holder is required to purchase (in an open market transaction or
otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a prior sale by the Holder of the Warrant Shares which the Holder anticipated receiving upon such exercise (a “Buy-In”), then the Company shall within three Trading Days
after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s discretion, either (1) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including brokerage commissions, if any) for the shares of Common Stock less the
aggregate Exercise Price (the “Buy-In Price”), at which point the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificate (and to issue such Common Stock), solely with respect to such exercise, shall terminate or (2) promptly honor its obligation
to deliver to the Holder a certificate representing such Common Stock and pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In-Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common Stock, times (B) the
closing price on the date of the event giving rise to the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificates. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including,
without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely deliver certificates representing Warrant Shares upon exercise of the Warrant as required pursuant to the terms
hereof.
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(vi)           No Fractional Shares or Scrip.  No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant. As to any fraction of a share which Holder would otherwise
be entitled to purchase upon such exercise, the Company shall at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the Exercise Price or round up to the next whole
share.
 

(vii)           Charges, Taxes and Expenses.  Issuance and delivery of certificates for Warrant Shares shall be made without charge to the Holder for any issue or transfer tax, withholding tax, transfer agent fee or
other incidental tax or expense in respect of the issuance of such certificate, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid by the Company, and such certificates shall be issued in the name of the Holder or in such name or names as may be
directed by the Holder; provided, however, that in the event certificates for Warrant Shares are to be issued in a name other than the name of the Holder, this Warrant when surrendered for exercise shall be accompanied by the Assignment
Form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder; and the Company may require, as a condition thereto, the payment of a sum sufficient to reimburse it for any transfer tax incidental thereto.
 

(e)           Closing of Books.  The Company will not close its stockholder books or records in any manner which prevents the timely exercise of this Warrant, pursuant to the terms hereof.
 

(f)           Limitations on Exercise. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Company shall not effect the exercise of this Warrant, and the Holder shall not have the right to exercise this Warrant, to the extent
that after giving effect to such exercise, such Person (together with such Person’s Affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 9.9% (the “Maximum Percentage”) of the shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving
effect to such exercise.  For purposes of the foregoing sentence, the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by such Person and its Affiliates shall include the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon
exercise of this Warrant with respect to which the determination of such sentence is being made, but shall exclude shares of Common Stock which would be issuable upon (i) exercise of the remaining, unexercised portion of this Warrant
beneficially owned by such Person and its Affiliates and (ii) exercise or conversion of the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other securities of the Company beneficially owned by such Person and its Affiliates (including, without
limitation, any convertible notes or convertible shares, options or warrants) that is subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the limitation contained herein. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, for purposes of
this paragraph, beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. For purposes of this Warrant, in determining the number of outstanding shares of Common
Stock, the Holder may rely on the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock as reflected in the most recent of (1) the Company’s most recent Form 10-Q,  Form 10-K or other public filing with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, as the case may be, (2) a more recent public announcement by the Company or (3) any other notice by the Company or its transfer agent setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. For any reason at any
time, upon the written or oral request of the Holder, the Company shall within two (2) Trading Days confirm to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding. In any case, the number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the conversion or exercise of securities of the Company, including this Warrant, by the Holder and its Affiliates since the date as of which such number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock was reported. By written notice to the Company, the Holder may from time to time increase or decrease the Maximum Percentage to any other percentage specified in such notice; provided that (i) any such increase will not
be effective until the sixty-first (61st) day after such notice is delivered to the Company, and (ii) any such increase or decrease will apply only to the Holder. The provisions of this paragraph shall be construed, corrected and implemented in
a manner so as to effectuate the intended beneficial ownership limitation herein contained. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply to any successor Holder of this Warrant.
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Section 3.                Certain Adjustments.
 

(a)           Stock Dividends and Splits.  If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding: (A) pays a stock dividend or otherwise make a distribution or distributions on shares of its Common Stock or any other
equity or equity equivalent securities payable in shares of Common Stock (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any shares of Common Stock issued by the Company upon exercise of Warrant), (B) subdivides outstanding shares
of Common Stock into a larger number of shares, or (C) combines (including by way of reverse stock split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each case the Exercise Price shall be multiplied by a
fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event. Any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 3(a) shall become effective immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution
and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision or combination.
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(b)           Reclassification Transaction.  In the event of a reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock of the Company at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, including, without
limitation, as a result of a merger or consolidation, the Company shall thereafter deliver at the time of purchase of Warrant Shares under this Warrant and in lieu of the number of Warrant Shares in respect of which the right to purchase is
then being exercised, the number of shares of the Company of the appropriate class or classes resulting from said reclassification or reclassifications as the Holder would have been entitled to receive in respect of the number of Warrant
Shares in respect of which the right of purchase hereunder is then being exercised had the right of purchase been exercised before such reclassification or reorganization.
 

(c)           Adjustments for Other Dividends and Distributions.  In the event the Company, at any time or from time to time while this Warrant is outstanding, shall make or issue, or fix a record date for the determination of
holders of Common Stock entitled to receive a dividend or other distribution payable in securities of the Company (other than shares of Common Stock) or in cash or other property (other than cash out of earnings or earned surplus,
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles), then and in each such event provision shall be made so that the Holder shall receive upon exercise hereof, in addition to the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable hereunder, the kind and amount of securities of the Company and/or cash and other property to which the Holder would have been entitled to receive had this Warrant been exercised into Common Stock on the date of such event
and had the Holder thereafter, during the period from the date of such event to and including the Exercise Date, retained any such securities receivable, giving application to all adjustments called for during such period under this Section 3
with respect to the rights of the Holder, provided, however, (x) in the event that the holders of Common Stock have received options, warrants or rights that have expired prior to the date of exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall not be
entitled to receive such options, warrants or rights and (y) in the event of a distribution consisting of cash as referred to above, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such distribution will be proportionately reduced by the
amount of the distribution per share of Common Stock such Holder would have been entitled to receive had such Holder been the holder of record of such Common Stock as of the date on which holders of Common Stock received or
became entitled to receive such cash distribution.
 

(d)           Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, (A) the Company effects any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another Person, (B) the Company effects any sale of
all or substantially all of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (C) any tender offer or exchange offer is accepted by the holders of more than the 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not including any Common
Stock held by the Person or Persons making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the Persons making or party to, such tender or exchange offer), or (D) the Company effects any reclassification of the Warrant Shares or any
compulsory share exchange (other than a share split or reverse share split) pursuant to which the Warrant Shares are effectively converted into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property (in any such case, a “Fundamental
Transaction”), then, upon any subsequent exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Warrant Share that would have been issuable upon such exercise immediately prior to the occurrence of such
Fundamental Transaction, at the option of the Holder, (a) upon exercise of this Warrant, the number of shares of stock, or other securities or property of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving
corporation, and any additional consideration (the “Alternate Consideration”) receivable upon or as a result of such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or disposition of assets by a Holder to which the Holder would have
been entitled if the Holder had exercised its rights pursuant to the Warrant immediately prior thereto or (b) if the Company is acquired in an all cash transaction in which the per share consideration payable to the holders of Common Stock
is less than the Exercise Price, cash equal to the value of this Warrant as determined in accordance with the Black-Scholes option pricing formula.  For purposes of any such exercise, the determination of the Exercise Price shall be
appropriately adjusted to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one Warrant Share in such Fundamental Transaction, and the Company shall apportion the Exercise
Price among the Alternate Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the Alternate Consideration.  If holders of Warrant Shares are given any choice as to the securities, cash or
property to be received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon any exercise of this Warrant following such Fundamental Transaction.  To the extent
necessary to effectuate the foregoing provisions, any successor to the Company or surviving entity in such Fundamental Transaction shall issue to the Holder a new warrant consistent with the foregoing provisions and evidencing the
Holder’s right to exercise such warrant into Alternate Consideration. The terms of any agreement pursuant to which a Fundamental Transaction is effected shall include terms requiring any such successor or surviving entity to comply with
the provisions of this Section 3(d) and insuring that this Warrant (or any such replacement security) will be similarly adjusted upon any subsequent transaction analogous to a Fundamental Transaction.
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(e)           Anti-dilution Adjustments. If, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, the Company shall issue or sell any Common Stock for a consideration per share less than the Exercise Price then in effect, or shall
issue or sell any options, warrants or other rights (including, without limitation, securities convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock) for the purchase or acquisition of such shares at a consideration per share of less than the
Exercise Price then in effect, the Exercise Price shall be reduced to an amount equal to the per share consideration payable to the Company in such sale or issuance.  The consideration per share payable to the Company in a sale or issuance
of options, warrants or other rights for the purchase or acquisition of shares of Common Stock shall be determined by dividing:  (A) the total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as consideration for the sale or issue of
such options, warrants or other rights, plus the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration (as set forth in the instruments relating thereto, without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent adjustment of such
consideration) payable to the Company upon the exercise of such options, warrants or other rights or conversion or exercise of such other rights, by (B) the maximum number of shares of Common Stock (as set forth in the instruments
relating thereto, without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent adjustment of such number) issuable upon the exercise of such options, warrants or other rights or conversion or exercise of such other rights.  In case any
portion of the consideration to be received by the Company shall be in a form other than cash, the fair market value of such non-cash consideration, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company, shall be utilized to
determine the consideration per share. The foregoing adjustment shall not apply in any of the following scenarios: (i) any issuances of securities to directors, officers or employees of the Company or a wholly owned subsidiary thereof in
their capacity as such in the ordinary course pursuant to an incentive plan approved by the Board of Directors of the Company; (ii) any issuances of securities having a Fair Market Value of up to $1,000,000 in the aggregate to service
providers of the Company or a wholly owned subsidiary thereof in bona fide, arm's length transactions in consideration for services provided; (iii) any issuances of securities having a Fair Market Value of up to $6,000,000 in the aggregate
to investors during the one-year period commencing on the date hereof; and (iv) any issuances of Common Stock pursuant to options or warrants to purchase Common Stock that are outstanding prior to the date hereof.
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(f)           Voluntary Adjustment By Company.  The Company may at any time during the term of this Warrant reduce the then current Exercise Price to any amount and for any period of time deemed appropriate by the
Board of Directors of the Company.
 

(g)           Number of Warrant Shares. Simultaneously with any adjustment to the Exercise Price pursuant to of this Section 3, the number of shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be proportionately adjusted
so that after such adjustment the aggregate Exercise Price payable hereunder for the increased or decreased number of Warrant Shares shall be the same as the aggregate Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such adjustment.
 

(h)           Calculations. All calculations under this Section 3 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For purposes of this Section 3, the number of shares of Common Stock
deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) issued and outstanding.
 

(i)           Notice to Holders.
 

(i)           Adjustment to Exercise Price.  Whenever the Exercise Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 3, the Company shall promptly mail to each Holder a notice setting forth the Exercise
Price after such adjustment and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.
 

(ii)           Notice to Allow Exercise by Holder. If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on the Common Stock; (B) the Company shall declare a special
nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common Stock; (C) the Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class
or of any rights; (D) the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be required in connection with any reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or transfer of all
or substantially all of the assets of the Company, of any compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or property; (E) the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution,
liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the Company; then, in each case, the Company shall notify the Holder at least 10 calendar days prior to the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (x) the date on
which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to such dividend,
distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is
expected that holders of the Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share
exchange; provided that the failure to mail such notice or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice.  Any such notice or information published via
international wire or furnished to or filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission shall satisfy this notice requirement.

 
 

A - 8



 
 

Section 4.                        Transfer of Warrant.
 

(a)           Transferability.  Subject to compliance with any applicable securities laws and the conditions set forth in Section 4(d) hereof and to the provisions of Section 5.7 of the Purchase Agreement, this Warrant and all
rights hereunder (including, without limitation, any registration rights) are transferable, in whole or in part, upon surrender of this Warrant at the principal office of the Company or its designated agent, together with a written assignment of
this Warrant substantially in the form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder or its agent or attorney and funds sufficient to pay any transfer taxes payable upon the making of such transfer. Upon such surrender and, if required, such
payment, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in the name of the assignee or assignees and in the denomination or denominations specified in such instrument of assignment, and shall issue to the assignor a
new Warrant evidencing the portion of this Warrant not so assigned, and this Warrant shall promptly be cancelled. A Warrant, if properly assigned, may be exercised by a new holder for the purchase of Warrant Shares without having a new
Warrant issued.
 

(b)           New Warrants.  This Warrant may be divided or combined with other Warrants upon presentation hereof at the aforesaid office of the Company, together with a written notice specifying the names and
denominations in which new Warrants are to be issued, signed by the Holder or its agent or attorney. Subject to compliance with Section 4(a), as to any transfer which may be involved in such division or combination, the Company shall
execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in exchange for the Warrant or Warrants to be divided or combined in accordance with such notice.
 

(c)           Warrant Register.  The Company shall register this Warrant, upon records to be maintained by the Company for that purpose (the “Warrant Register”), in the name of the record Holder hereof from time to time.
The Company may deem and treat the registered Holder of this Warrant as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of any exercise hereof or any distribution to the Holder, and for all other purposes, absent actual notice to the contrary.
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(d)           Transfer Restrictions.  If, at the time of the surrender of this Warrant in connection with any transfer of this Warrant, the transfer of this Warrant shall not be registered pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act and under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, the Company may require, as a condition of allowing such transfer (i) that the Holder or transferee of this Warrant, as the case may be, furnish to the
Company a written opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that such transfer may be made without registration under the
Securities Act and under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, (ii) that the holder or transferee execute and deliver to the Company an investment letter in form and substance acceptable to the Company and (iii) that the transferee be
an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act or a qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act.
 

Section 5.                        Miscellaneous.
 

(a)           No Rights as Shareholder Until Exercise.  This Warrant does not entitle the Holder to any voting rights or other rights as a shareholder of the Company prior to the exercise hereof. Upon the surrender of this
Warrant and the payment of the aggregate Exercise Price, the Warrant Shares so purchased shall be and be deemed to be issued to such Holder as the record owner of such shares as of the close of business on the later of the date of such
surrender or payment.
 

(b)           Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. The Company covenants that upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant
or any stock certificate relating to the Warrant Shares, and in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to it (which, in the case of the Warrant, shall not include the posting of any bond), and upon
surrender and cancellation of such Warrant or stock certificate, if mutilated, the Company will make and deliver a new Warrant or stock certificate of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in lieu of such Warrant or stock certificate.
 

(c)           Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc.  If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall not be a Business Day, then such action may be taken or
such right may be exercised on the next succeeding Business Day.
 

(d)           Authorized Shares.
 

The Company covenants that during the period the Warrant is outstanding, it will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares to provide for the issuance of the Warrant
Shares upon the exercise of any purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company further covenants that its issuance of this Warrant shall constitute full authority to its officers who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates
to execute and issue the necessary certificates for the Warrant Shares upon the exercise of the purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company will take all such reasonable action as may be necessary to assure that such Warrant Shares
may be issued as provided herein without violation of any applicable law or regulation, or of any requirements of the Trading Market upon which the Common Stock may be listed.
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Except and to the extent waived or consented to by the Holder, the Company shall not by any action, including, without limitation, amending its certificate of incorporation or through any reorganization, transfer
of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in the
carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to protect the rights of Holder as set forth in this Warrant against impairment.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company will (a) not increase the par value of any Warrant Shares above the amount payable therefor upon such exercise immediately prior to such increase in par value, (b) take all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order
that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable Warrant Shares upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (c) use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all such authorizations, exemptions or consents from any
public regulatory body having jurisdiction thereof as may be necessary to enable the Company to perform its obligations under this Warrant.
 

(e)           Jurisdiction.  All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Warrant shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the Purchase Agreement.
 

(f)           Restrictions.  The Holder acknowledges that the Warrant Shares acquired upon the exercise of this Warrant, if not registered, will have restrictions upon resale imposed by state and federal securities laws.
 

(g)           Nonwaiver and Expenses. No course of dealing or any delay or failure to exercise any right hereunder on the part of Holder shall operate as a waiver of such right or otherwise prejudice Holder’s rights, powers
or remedies, notwithstanding the fact that all rights hereunder terminate on the Termination Date. If the Company willfully and knowingly fails to comply with any provision of this Warrant, which results in any damages to the Holder, and
if the Holder shall prevail against the Company in a final non-appealable court judgment, the Company shall pay to Holder such amounts as shall be sufficient to cover any costs and expenses including, but not limited to, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, including those of appellate proceedings, incurred by Holder in collecting any amounts due pursuant hereto or in otherwise enforcing any of its rights, powers or remedies hereunder.
 

(h)           Notices.  Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered to the Holder by the Company shall be delivered in accordance with the notice provisions of the Purchase
Agreement.
 

(i)           Limitation of Liability.  No provision hereof, in the absence of any affirmative action by Holder to exercise this Warrant to purchase Warrant Shares, and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges of
Holder, shall give rise to any liability of Holder for the purchase price of any Common Stock or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.
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(j)           Remedies. Holder, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law, including recovery of damages, will be entitled to specific performance of its rights under this Warrant, without duplication.
The Company agrees that monetary damages would not be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of a breach by it of the provisions of this Warrant and hereby agrees to waive and not to assert the defense in any action for
specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate.
 

(k)           Successors and Assigns.  Subject to applicable securities laws, this Warrant and the rights and obligations evidenced hereby shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors of the Company and
the successors and permitted assigns of Holder. The provisions of this Warrant are intended to be for the benefit of all Holders from time to time of this Warrant and shall be enforceable by any such Holder or holder of Warrant Shares.
 

(l)           Amendment.  This Warrant may be modified or amended or the provisions hereof waived with the written consent of the Company and the Holder.
 

(m)           Severability.  Wherever possible, each provision of this Warrant shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Warrant shall be prohibited by or
invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provisions or the remaining provisions of this Warrant.
 

(n)           Headings.  The headings used in this Warrant are for the convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose, be deemed a part of this Warrant.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be executed by its officer thereunto duly authorized.
 

 ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.  
    
 By: /s/ Nadav Kidron  
  Name:  Nadav Kidron  
  Title:    Chief Executive Officer  
    
Dated: January 10, 2011
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE
 
TO:          Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.

Hi-Tech Park 2/5
Givat-Ram
PO Box 39098
Jerusalem 91390 Israel
Attn: Nadav Kidron

 
(1)           The undersigned hereby elects to purchase __________ Warrant Shares of the Company pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant (only if exercised in full), and tenders herewith payment of the exercise price in full,

together with all applicable transfer taxes, if any.
 

(2)           Payment shall take the form of (check applicable box):
 

o in lawful money of the United States; or
 

o the cancellation of such number of Warrant Shares as is necessary, in accordance with the formula set forth in Section 2(c), to exercise this Warrant with respect to the maximum number of Warrant Shares
purchasable pursuant to the cashless exercise procedure set forth in Section 2(c). [Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of a print-out of the Bloomberg screen showing the Fair Market Value of the Common
Stock, as defined therein.]

 
(3)           Please issue a certificate or certificates representing said Warrant Shares in the name of the undersigned or in such other name as is specified below:

 
_________________________________________

 
The Warrant Shares shall be delivered to the following:

 
__________________________________________

 
__________________________________________

 
__________________________________________

 
(4)           Accredited Investor.  The undersigned is an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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[SIGNATURE OF HOLDER]

Name of Investing Entity: __________________________________________
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investing Entity: _______________________________
Name of Authorized Signatory: __________________________________________
Title of Authorized Signatory: ___________________________________________
Date: _______________________
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ASSIGNMENT FORM
 

(To assign the foregoing warrant, execute
this form and supply required information.

Do not use this form to exercise the warrant.)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the foregoing Warrant and all rights evidenced thereby are hereby assigned to whose address is
______________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Dated: _____________________
 

 

Holder’s Signature:_________________________
 
Holder’s Address: _________________________

_________________________
_________________________

 
Signature Guaranteed: _____________________________

NOTE: The signature to this Assignment Form must correspond with the name as it appears on the face of the Warrant, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever, and must be guaranteed by a bank or trust
company.  Officers of corporations and those acting in a fiduciary or other representative capacity should file proper evidence of authority to assign the foregoing Warrant.
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Exhibit B

NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES
COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY
NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A
TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL
OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY. THIS SECURITY AND THE SECURITIES
ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.

 
COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT

 
To Purchase 2,187,500 Shares of Common Stock of

 
ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

 
THIS COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT (the “Warrant”) certifies that, for value received, Regals Fund LP (the “Holder”), is entitled, upon the terms and subject to the limitations on exercise and the conditions hereinafter set
forth, at any time on or after the date hereof (the “Initial Exercise Date”) and on or prior to the close of business on January 11, 2016 (the “Termination Date”) but not thereafter, to subscribe for and purchase from Oramed Pharmaceuticals
Inc. a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), up to 2,187,500 shares (the “Warrant Shares”) of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”).  The purchase price of one share of Common Stock under
this Warrant shall be equal to the Exercise Price, as defined in Section 2(b).

Section 6.                Definitions.  Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”), dated December 21,
2010, among the Company and the purchasers signatory thereto.
 

Section 7.                Exercise
 

(a)           Exercise of Warrant.  Exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant may be made, in whole or in part, at any time or times on or after the Initial Exercise Date and on or before the Termination Date
by delivery to the Company of a duly executed facsimile copy of the Notice of Exercise Form annexed hereto at the headquarters of the Company (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by notice in writing to
the registered Holder at the address of such Holder appearing on the books of the Company); and within 5 Trading Days of the date said Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company, the Company shall have received payment of the
aggregate Exercise Price of the shares thereby purchased by wire transfer or cashier’s check drawn on a United States bank. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this
Warrant to the Company until the Holder has purchased all of the Warrant Shares available hereunder and the Warrant has been exercised in full, in which case the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company for cancellation within
5 Trading Days of the date the final Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company.  Partial exercises of this Warrant resulting in purchases of a portion of the total number of Warrant Shares available hereunder shall have the effect of
lowering the outstanding number of Warrant Shares purchasable hereunder in an amount equal to the applicable number of Warrant Shares purchased.  The Holder and the Company shall maintain records showing the number of Warrant
Shares purchased hereunder and the date of such purchases.  The Company shall deliver any objection to any Notice of Exercise Form within three Business Days of receipt of such notice.  The Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of
this Warrant, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph, following the purchase of a portion of the Warrant Shares hereunder, the number of Warrant Shares available for purchase hereunder at any given time
may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.

 
 

 



 
 

(b)           Exercise Price.  The exercise price per share of the Common Stock under this Warrant shall be $0.50, subject to adjustment hereunder (the “Exercise Price”).
 

(c)           Cashless Exercise.  If, after the Effectiveness Deadline, at the time of exercise hereof there is no effective registration statement registering all of the Warrant Shares for resale by the Holder into the market from
time to time, then, at the election of the Holder, this Warrant may also be exercised by means of a “cashless exercise” by which the Holder authorizes the Company to withhold from issuance a number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon such exercise of this Warrant which, when multiplied by the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, is equal to the aggregate Exercise Price (and such withheld shares shall no longer be issuable under this Warrant).  For purposes
hereof, “Fair Market Value” means:
 

(i)           if the Common Stock is then listed or quoted on a securities exchange (the “Trading Market”), the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for the five trading days immediately prior to
(but not including) the date of delivery of the Exercise Notice Form on the Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted for trading as reported by Bloomberg Financial L.P. (based on a trading day on the Trading
Market from 9:30 a.m. (New York City time) to 4:02 p.m. (New York City time); (ii) if the Common Stock is not then listed or quoted for trading on the Trading Market but is quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board, the volume
weighted average price of the Common Stock for such period on the OTC Bulletin Board; (iii) if the Common Stock is not then quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board and if prices for the Common Stock are then reported in the
“Pink Sheets” published by Pink Sheets, LLC (or a similar organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), the average of the last sale price over the five trading day period immediately prior to (but not including) the
date of delivery of the Exercise Notice Form; or (iv) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser selected in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company and
reasonably acceptable to the Holder. If the Holder shall elect to effect a cashless exercise and clause (i) or (ii) above shall be applicable, then the Exercise Notice Form shall be accompanied by a copy of a print-out of the Bloomberg screen
showing the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, certified as true and correct by the Holder.
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(d)           Mechanics of Exercise.
 

(i)            Authorization of Warrant Shares.  The Company covenants that all Warrant Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant will, upon exercise of the
purchase rights represented by this Warrant, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and charges created by the Company in respect of the issue thereof (other than taxes in respect of any
transfer occurring contemporaneously with such issue).
 

(ii)            Delivery of Certificates Upon Exercise.  Certificates for shares purchased hereunder shall be transmitted by the transfer agent of the Company to the Holder by crediting the account of the Holder’s
prime broker with the Depository Trust Company through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission (“DWAC”) system if the Company is a participant in such system, so long as the certificates therefor are not required to bear a legend
regarding restriction on transferability, and otherwise by physical delivery to the address specified by the Holder in the Notice of Exercise within three (3) Trading Days from the delivery to the Company of the Notice of Exercise Form,
surrender of this Warrant (if required) and payment of the aggregate Exercise Price as set forth above (“Warrant Share Delivery Date”).  This Warrant shall be deemed to have been exercised on the date the Exercise Price is received by the
Company. The Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have been issued, and Holder or any other person so designated to be named therein shall be deemed to have become a holder of record of such shares for all purposes, as of the date the
Warrant has been exercised by payment to the Company of the Exercise Price (or cashless exercise, if permitted) and all taxes required to be paid by the Holder, if any, pursuant to Section 2(d)(v) prior to the issuance of such shares, have
been paid.
 

(iii)           Delivery of New Warrants Upon Exercise.  If this Warrant shall have been exercised in part, the Company shall, at the request of a Holder and upon surrender of this Warrant certificate, at the time of
delivery of the certificate or certificates representing Warrant Shares, deliver to Holder a new Warrant evidencing the rights of Holder to purchase the unpurchased Warrant Shares called for by this Warrant, which new Warrant shall in all
other respects be identical with this Warrant.
 

(iv)           Rescission Rights. If the Company fails to deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing the Warrant Shares by the close of business on the third Trading Day after the Warrant Share
Delivery Date, then the Holder will have the right to rescind such exercise by providing written notice that is received by the Company prior to the issuance of the Warrant Shares.
 

(v)            Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Certificates Upon Exercise. In addition to any other rights available to the Holder, if the Company fails to deliver to the Holder a certificate
representing the Warrant Shares pursuant to an exercise by the close of business on the third Trading Day after the Warrant Share Delivery Date, and if after such date the Holder is required to purchase (in an open market transaction or
otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a prior sale by the Holder of the Warrant Shares which the Holder anticipated receiving upon such exercise (a “Buy-In”), then the Company shall within three Trading Days
after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s discretion, either (1) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including brokerage commissions, if any) for the shares of Common Stock less the
aggregate Exercise Price (the “Buy-In Price”), at which point the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificate (and to issue such Common Stock), solely with respect to such exercise, shall terminate or (2) promptly honor its obligation
to deliver to the Holder a certificate representing such Common Stock and pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In-Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common Stock, times (B) the
closing price on the date of the event giving rise to the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificates. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including,
without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely deliver certificates representing Warrant Shares upon exercise of the Warrant as required pursuant to the terms
hereof.
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(vi)           No Fractional Shares or Scrip.  No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant. As to any fraction of a share which Holder would otherwise
be entitled to purchase upon such exercise, the Company shall at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the Exercise Price or round up to the next whole
share.
 

(vii)          Charges, Taxes and Expenses.  Issuance and delivery of certificates for Warrant Shares shall be made without charge to the Holder for any issue or transfer tax, withholding tax, transfer agent fee or
other incidental tax or expense in respect of the issuance of such certificate, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid by the Company, and such certificates shall be issued in the name of the Holder or in such name or names as may be
directed by the Holder; provided, however, that in the event certificates for Warrant Shares are to be issued in a name other than the name of the Holder, this Warrant when surrendered for exercise shall be accompanied by the Assignment
Form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder; and the Company may require, as a condition thereto, the payment of a sum sufficient to reimburse it for any transfer tax incidental thereto.
 

(e)           Closing of Books.  The Company will not close its stockholder books or records in any manner which prevents the timely exercise of this Warrant, pursuant to the terms hereof.
 

(f)            Limitations on Exercise. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Company shall not effect the exercise of this Warrant, and the Holder shall not have the right to exercise this Warrant, to the extent
that after giving effect to such exercise, such Person (together with such Person’s Affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 9.9% (the “Maximum Percentage”) of the shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving
effect to such exercise.  For purposes of the foregoing sentence, the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by such Person and its Affiliates shall include the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon
exercise of this Warrant with respect to which the determination of such sentence is being made, but shall exclude shares of Common Stock which would be issuable upon (i) exercise of the remaining, unexercised portion of this Warrant
beneficially owned by such Person and its Affiliates and (ii) exercise or conversion of the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other securities of the Company beneficially owned by such Person and its Affiliates (including, without
limitation, any convertible notes or convertible shares, options or warrants) that is subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the limitation contained herein. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, for purposes of
this paragraph, beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. For purposes of this Warrant, in determining the number of outstanding shares of Common
Stock, the Holder may rely on the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock as reflected in the most recent of (1) the Company’s most recent Form 10-Q,  Form 10-K or other public filing with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, as the case may be, (2) a more recent public announcement by the Company or (3) any other notice by the Company or its transfer agent setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. For any reason at any
time, upon the written or oral request of the Holder, the Company shall within two (2) Trading Days confirm to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding. In any case, the number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the conversion or exercise of securities of the Company, including this Warrant, by the Holder and its Affiliates since the date as of which such number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock was reported. By written notice to the Company, the Holder may from time to time increase or decrease the Maximum Percentage to any other percentage specified in such notice; provided that (i) any such increase will not
be effective until the sixty-first (61st) day after such notice is delivered to the Company, and (ii) any such increase or decrease will apply only to the Holder. The provisions of this paragraph shall be construed, corrected and implemented in
a manner so as to effectuate the intended beneficial ownership limitation herein contained. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply to any successor Holder of this Warrant.
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Section 8.                Certain Adjustments.
 

(a)           Stock Dividends and Splits.  If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding: (A) pays a stock dividend or otherwise make a distribution or distributions on shares of its Common Stock or any other
equity or equity equivalent securities payable in shares of Common Stock (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any shares of Common Stock issued by the Company upon exercise of Warrant), (B) subdivides outstanding shares
of Common Stock into a larger number of shares, or (C) combines (including by way of reverse stock split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each case the Exercise Price shall be multiplied by a
fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event. Any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 3(a) shall become effective immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution
and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision or combination.
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(b)           Reclassification Transaction.  In the event of a reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock of the Company at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, including, without
limitation, as a result of a merger or consolidation, the Company shall thereafter deliver at the time of purchase of Warrant Shares under this Warrant and in lieu of the number of Warrant Shares in respect of which the right to purchase is
then being exercised, the number of shares of the Company of the appropriate class or classes resulting from said reclassification or reclassifications as the Holder would have been entitled to receive in respect of the number of Warrant
Shares in respect of which the right of purchase hereunder is then being exercised had the right of purchase been exercised before such reclassification or reorganization.
 

(c)           Adjustments for Other Dividends and Distributions.  In the event the Company, at any time or from time to time while this Warrant is outstanding, shall make or issue, or fix a record date for the determination of
holders of Common Stock entitled to receive a dividend or other distribution payable in securities of the Company (other than shares of Common Stock) or in cash or other property (other than cash out of earnings or earned surplus,
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles), then and in each such event provision shall be made so that the Holder shall receive upon exercise hereof, in addition to the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable hereunder, the kind and amount of securities of the Company and/or cash and other property to which the Holder would have been entitled to receive had this Warrant been exercised into Common Stock on the date of such event
and had the Holder thereafter, during the period from the date of such event to and including the Exercise Date, retained any such securities receivable, giving application to all adjustments called for during such period under this Section 3
with respect to the rights of the Holder, provided, however, (x) in the event that the holders of Common Stock have received options, warrants or rights that have expired prior to the date of exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall not be
entitled to receive such options, warrants or rights and (y) in the event of a distribution consisting of cash as referred to above, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such distribution will be proportionately reduced by the
amount of the distribution per share of Common Stock such Holder would have been entitled to receive had such Holder been the holder of record of such Common Stock as of the date on which holders of Common Stock received or
became entitled to receive such cash distribution.
 

(d)           Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, (A) the Company effects any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another Person, (B) the Company effects any sale of
all or substantially all of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (C) any tender offer or exchange offer is accepted by the holders of more than the 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not including any Common
Stock held by the Person or Persons making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the Persons making or party to, such tender or exchange offer), or (D) the Company effects any reclassification of the Warrant Shares or any
compulsory share exchange (other than a share split or reverse share split) pursuant to which the Warrant Shares are effectively converted into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property (in any such case, a “Fundamental
Transaction”), then, upon any subsequent exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Warrant Share that would have been issuable upon such exercise immediately prior to the occurrence of such
Fundamental Transaction, at the option of the Holder, (a) upon exercise of this Warrant, the number of shares of stock, or other securities or property of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving
corporation, and any additional consideration (the “Alternate Consideration”) receivable upon or as a result of such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or disposition of assets by a Holder to which the Holder would have
been entitled if the Holder had exercised its rights pursuant to the Warrant immediately prior thereto or (b) if the Company is acquired in an all cash transaction in which the per share consideration payable to the holders of Common Stock
is less than the Exercise Price, cash equal to the value of this Warrant as determined in accordance with the Black-Scholes option pricing formula.  For purposes of any such exercise, the determination of the Exercise Price shall be
appropriately adjusted to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one Warrant Share in such Fundamental Transaction, and the Company shall apportion the Exercise
Price among the Alternate Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the Alternate Consideration.  If holders of Warrant Shares are given any choice as to the securities, cash or
property to be received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon any exercise of this Warrant following such Fundamental Transaction.  To the extent
necessary to effectuate the foregoing provisions, any successor to the Company or surviving entity in such Fundamental Transaction shall issue to the Holder a new warrant consistent with the foregoing provisions and evidencing the
Holder’s right to exercise such warrant into Alternate Consideration. The terms of any agreement pursuant to which a Fundamental Transaction is effected shall include terms requiring any such successor or surviving entity to comply with
the provisions of this Section 3(d) and insuring that this Warrant (or any such replacement security) will be similarly adjusted upon any subsequent transaction analogous to a Fundamental Transaction.
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(e)           Anti-dilution Adjustments. If, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, the Company shall issue or sell any Common Stock for a consideration per share less than the Exercise Price then in effect, or shall
issue or sell any options, warrants or other rights (including, without limitation, securities convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock) for the purchase or acquisition of such shares at a consideration per share of less than the
Exercise Price then in effect, the Exercise Price shall be reduced to an amount equal to the per share consideration payable to the Company in such sale or issuance.  The consideration per share payable to the Company in a sale or issuance
of options, warrants or other rights for the purchase or acquisition of shares of Common Stock shall be determined by dividing:  (A) the total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as consideration for the sale or issue of
such options, warrants or other rights, plus the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration (as set forth in the instruments relating thereto, without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent adjustment of such
consideration) payable to the Company upon the exercise of such options, warrants or other rights or conversion or exercise of such other rights, by (B) the maximum number of shares of Common Stock (as set forth in the instruments
relating thereto, without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent adjustment of such number) issuable upon the exercise of such options, warrants or other rights or conversion or exercise of such other rights.  In case any
portion of the consideration to be received by the Company shall be in a form other than cash, the fair market value of such non-cash consideration, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company, shall be utilized to
determine the consideration per share. The foregoing adjustment shall not apply in any of the following scenarios: (i) any issuances of securities to directors, officers or employees of the Company or a wholly owned subsidiary thereof in
their capacity as such in the ordinary course pursuant to an incentive plan approved by the Board of Directors of the Company; (ii) any issuances of securities having a Fair Market Value of up to $1,000,000 in the aggregate to service
providers of the Company or a wholly owned subsidiary thereof in bona fide, arm's length transactions in consideration for services provided; (iii) any issuances of securities having a Fair Market Value of up to $6,000,000 in the aggregate
to investors during the one-year period commencing on the date hereof; and (iv) any issuances of Common Stock pursuant to options or warrants to purchase Common Stock that are outstanding prior to the date hereof.

 
 

B - 7



 
 

(f)            Voluntary Adjustment By Company.  The Company may at any time during the term of this Warrant reduce the then current Exercise Price to any amount and for any period of time deemed appropriate by the
Board of Directors of the Company.
 

(g)           Number of Warrant Shares. Simultaneously with any adjustment to the Exercise Price pursuant to of this Section 3, the number of shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be proportionately adjusted
so that after such adjustment the aggregate Exercise Price payable hereunder for the increased or decreased number of Warrant Shares shall be the same as the aggregate Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such adjustment.
 

(h)           Calculations. All calculations under this Section 3 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For purposes of this Section 3, the number of shares of Common Stock
deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) issued and outstanding.
 

(i)            Notice to Holders.
 

(i)             Adjustment to Exercise Price.  Whenever the Exercise Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 3, the Company shall promptly mail to each Holder a notice setting forth the Exercise
Price after such adjustment and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.
 

(ii)            Notice to Allow Exercise by Holder. If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on the Common Stock; (B) the Company shall declare a special
nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common Stock; (C) the Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class
or of any rights; (D) the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be required in connection with any reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or transfer of all
or substantially all of the assets of the Company, of any compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or property; (E) the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution,
liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the Company; then, in each case, the Company shall notify the Holder at least 10 calendar days prior to the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (x) the date on
which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to such dividend,
distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is
expected that holders of the Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share
exchange; provided that the failure to mail such notice or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice.  Any such notice or information published via
international wire or furnished to or filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission shall satisfy this notice requirement.
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Section 9.                Transfer of Warrant.
 

(a)           Transferability.  Subject to compliance with any applicable securities laws and the conditions set forth in Section 4(d) hereof and to the provisions of Section 5.7 of the Purchase Agreement, this Warrant and all
rights hereunder (including, without limitation, any registration rights) are transferable, in whole or in part, upon surrender of this Warrant at the principal office of the Company or its designated agent, together with a written assignment of
this Warrant substantially in the form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder or its agent or attorney and funds sufficient to pay any transfer taxes payable upon the making of such transfer. Upon such surrender and, if required, such
payment, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in the name of the assignee or assignees and in the denomination or denominations specified in such instrument of assignment, and shall issue to the assignor a
new Warrant evidencing the portion of this Warrant not so assigned, and this Warrant shall promptly be cancelled. A Warrant, if properly assigned, may be exercised by a new holder for the purchase of Warrant Shares without having a new
Warrant issued.
 

(b)           New Warrants.  This Warrant may be divided or combined with other Warrants upon presentation hereof at the aforesaid office of the Company, together with a written notice specifying the names and
denominations in which new Warrants are to be issued, signed by the Holder or its agent or attorney. Subject to compliance with Section 4(a), as to any transfer which may be involved in such division or combination, the Company shall
execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in exchange for the Warrant or Warrants to be divided or combined in accordance with such notice.
 

(c)           Warrant Register.  The Company shall register this Warrant, upon records to be maintained by the Company for that purpose (the “Warrant Register”), in the name of the record Holder hereof from time to time.
The Company may deem and treat the registered Holder of this Warrant as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of any exercise hereof or any distribution to the Holder, and for all other purposes, absent actual notice to the contrary.
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(d)           Transfer Restrictions.  If, at the time of the surrender of this Warrant in connection with any transfer of this Warrant, the transfer of this Warrant shall not be registered pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act and under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, the Company may require, as a condition of allowing such transfer (i) that the Holder or transferee of this Warrant, as the case may be, furnish to the
Company a written opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that such transfer may be made without registration under the
Securities Act and under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, (ii) that the holder or transferee execute and deliver to the Company an investment letter in form and substance acceptable to the Company and (iii) that the transferee be
an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act or a qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act.
 

Section 10.              Miscellaneous.
 

(a)           No Rights as Shareholder Until Exercise.  This Warrant does not entitle the Holder to any voting rights or other rights as a shareholder of the Company prior to the exercise hereof. Upon the surrender of this
Warrant and the payment of the aggregate Exercise Price, the Warrant Shares so purchased shall be and be deemed to be issued to such Holder as the record owner of such shares as of the close of business on the later of the date of such
surrender or payment.
 

(b)           Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. The Company covenants that upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant
or any stock certificate relating to the Warrant Shares, and in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to it (which, in the case of the Warrant, shall not include the posting of any bond), and upon
surrender and cancellation of such Warrant or stock certificate, if mutilated, the Company will make and deliver a new Warrant or stock certificate of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in lieu of such Warrant or stock certificate.
 

(c)           Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc.  If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall not be a Business Day, then such action may be taken or
such right may be exercised on the next succeeding Business Day.
 

(d)           Authorized Shares.
 

The Company covenants that during the period the Warrant is outstanding, it will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares to provide for the issuance of the Warrant
Shares upon the exercise of any purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company further covenants that its issuance of this Warrant shall constitute full authority to its officers who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates
to execute and issue the necessary certificates for the Warrant Shares upon the exercise of the purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company will take all such reasonable action as may be necessary to assure that such Warrant Shares
may be issued as provided herein without violation of any applicable law or regulation, or of any requirements of the Trading Market upon which the Common Stock may be listed.
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Except and to the extent waived or consented to by the Holder, the Company shall not by any action, including, without limitation, amending its certificate of incorporation or through any reorganization, transfer
of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in the
carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to protect the rights of Holder as set forth in this Warrant against impairment.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company will (a) not increase the par value of any Warrant Shares above the amount payable therefor upon such exercise immediately prior to such increase in par value, (b) take all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order
that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable Warrant Shares upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (c) use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all such authorizations, exemptions or consents from any
public regulatory body having jurisdiction thereof as may be necessary to enable the Company to perform its obligations under this Warrant.
 

(e)           Jurisdiction.  All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Warrant shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the Purchase Agreement.
 

(f)            Restrictions.  The Holder acknowledges that the Warrant Shares acquired upon the exercise of this Warrant, if not registered, will have restrictions upon resale imposed by state and federal securities laws.
 

(g)           Nonwaiver and Expenses. No course of dealing or any delay or failure to exercise any right hereunder on the part of Holder shall operate as a waiver of such right or otherwise prejudice Holder’s rights, powers
or remedies, notwithstanding the fact that all rights hereunder terminate on the Termination Date. If the Company willfully and knowingly fails to comply with any provision of this Warrant, which results in any damages to the Holder, and
if the Holder shall prevail against the Company in a final non-appealable court judgment, the Company shall pay to Holder such amounts as shall be sufficient to cover any costs and expenses including, but not limited to, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, including those of appellate proceedings, incurred by Holder in collecting any amounts due pursuant hereto or in otherwise enforcing any of its rights, powers or remedies hereunder.
 

(h)           Notices.  Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered to the Holder by the Company shall be delivered in accordance with the notice provisions of the Purchase
Agreement.
 

(i)            Limitation of Liability.  No provision hereof, in the absence of any affirmative action by Holder to exercise this Warrant to purchase Warrant Shares, and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges of
Holder, shall give rise to any liability of Holder for the purchase price of any Common Stock or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.
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(j)            Remedies. Holder, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law, including recovery of damages, will be entitled to specific performance of its rights under this Warrant, without duplication.
The Company agrees that monetary damages would not be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of a breach by it of the provisions of this Warrant and hereby agrees to waive and not to assert the defense in any action for
specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate.
 

(k)           Successors and Assigns.  Subject to applicable securities laws, this Warrant and the rights and obligations evidenced hereby shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors of the Company and
the successors and permitted assigns of Holder. The provisions of this Warrant are intended to be for the benefit of all Holders from time to time of this Warrant and shall be enforceable by any such Holder or holder of Warrant Shares.
 

(l)            Amendment.  This Warrant may be modified or amended or the provisions hereof waived with the written consent of the Company and the Holder.
 

(m)          Severability.  Wherever possible, each provision of this Warrant shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Warrant shall be prohibited by or
invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provisions or the remaining provisions of this Warrant.
 

(n)           Headings.  The headings used in this Warrant are for the convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose, be deemed a part of this Warrant.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be executed by its officer thereunto duly authorized.
 

 ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.  
    
 By: /s/ Nadav Kidron  
  Name:  Nadav Kidron  
  Title:    Chief Executive Officer  
    
Dated: March 11, 2012
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE
 
TO:         Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.
                Hi-Tech Park 2/5
                Givat-Ram
                PO Box 39098

Jerusalem 91390 Israel
Attn: Nadav Kidron

 
(1)           The undersigned hereby elects to purchase __________ Warrant Shares of the Company pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant (only if exercised in full), and tenders herewith payment of the exercise price in full,

together with all applicable transfer taxes, if any.
 

(2)           Payment shall take the form of (check applicable box):
 

o in lawful money of the United States; or
 

o the cancellation of such number of Warrant Shares as is necessary, in accordance with the formula set forth in Section 2(c), to exercise this Warrant with respect to the maximum number of Warrant Shares
purchasable pursuant to the cashless exercise procedure set forth in Section 2(c). [Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of a print-out of the Bloomberg screen showing the Fair Market Value of the Common
Stock, as defined therein.]

 
(3)           Please issue a certificate or certificates representing said Warrant Shares in the name of the undersigned or in such other name as is specified below:

 
_________________________________________

 
The Warrant Shares shall be delivered to the following:
 
__________________________________________

 
__________________________________________
 
__________________________________________

 
(4)           Accredited Investor.  The undersigned is an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
 

 
B - 14



 
 

[SIGNATURE OF HOLDER]
 
Name of Investing Entity: __________________________________________
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investing Entity: _______________________________
Name of Authorized Signatory: __________________________________________
Title of Authorized Signatory: ___________________________________________
Date: _______________________
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ASSIGNMENT FORM
 

(To assign the foregoing warrant, execute
this form and supply required information.

Do not use this form to exercise the warrant.)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the foregoing Warrant and all rights evidenced thereby are hereby assigned to whose address is
________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Dated: _____________________
 

Holder’s Signature:

Holder’s Address: _________________________
_________________________
_________________________

Signature Guaranteed: _____________________________
 
NOTE: The signature to this Assignment Form must correspond with the name as it appears on the face of the Warrant, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever, and must be guaranteed by a bank or trust
company.  Officers of corporations and those acting in a fiduciary or other representative capacity should file proper evidence of authority to assign the foregoing Warrant.
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Exhibit 10.7
 
26 February 2012

Amendment to Consultant Service Agreement Dated April 21, 2009

Between Oramed (Company) and ADRES (Contractor)

According to the original agreement dated April 21, 2009, the last milestone payment of 71,000 US$ was due on IND submission. Because of delays in the product development resulted in delay in IND submission, the following changes
to the original agreement are introduced as agreed by the parties:

 1. 20,000 US$ out of the 71,000 US$ were already paid to CBR and ADRES
 2. The last milestone payment of 51,000 US$ will be paid upon issuance this amendment (invoice to be issued 1 March 2012)
 3. As of 1 March 2012 until the IND submission, monthly retainer payment to ADRES equivalent to 15 hours per month at a rate of 400 NIS per hour (it is expected to submit the IND within 6-8 months)
 4. As of 1 March 2012 until the IND submission, fee for sercive payment to CBR. The total budget should not exceed 16,000 US$
 5. As stated in the service agreement, correspondence with the FDA after IND submission and prior to its approval, limited to 20 hours, will be free of charge.

In case IND is not submitted by 1 November 2012 the companies will negotiate in good faith extension of this amendment.
 
 Company Contractor  

 Oramed Ltd CBR International Corp. ADRES Advanced Regulatory Services Ltd.

By /s/ Nadav Kidron /s/ Jeanne Novak /s/ Rivka Zaibel

Print Name Nadav Kidron Jeanne M. Novak, Ph.D Rivka Zaibel

Title: CEO CEO and Principal Consultant CEO and Consultant

Date: 2/27/12 3/8/12 3/8/12



Exhibit 10.8
 

CLINICAL TRIAL AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into as of September 11, 2011 by and between HADASIT MEDICAL RESEARCH SERVICES AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED, a company duly incorporated under the laws of Israel, of P.O. Box 12000,
Jerusalem 91120, (hereinafter: “Hadasit” or the “Institution”) and Dr. Daniel Schurr and Dr. Miriam Kidron (the ”Investigator”) on one hand and Oramed Ltd., a corporation organized under the laws of the state of Delaware, with its
registered office located at 2/5 Hi-Tech Park Givat-Ram P.O. Box 39098, Jerusalem 91390, (hereinafter: “Sponsor”), on the other hand.

PREAMBLE 1
1. STUDY, INVESTIGATOR AND SITE 2
2. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, REGULATIONS AND GUIDELINES 3
3. INFORMED CONSENT 3
4. RECORDKEEPING, REPORTING AND ACCESS 3
5. COMPENSATION FOR STUDY 5
6. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 5
7. PUBLICATIONS 6
8. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 7
9. TANGIBLE MATERIALS 8
10. INDEMNIFICATION, INSURANCE, LIMITED LIABILITIES 8
11. TERM AND TERMINATION 10
12. CHANGES TO THE PROTOCOL 11
13. ASSIGNMENTS 11
14. APPLICABLE LAW 11
15. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS 11
16. NOTICES 11
17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 12
Schedule A - Protocols 14
Schedule B - Compensation 15
Schedule C - Materials 16
Schedule D - Insurance policy 17
Schedule E – First Agreement 18
Schedule F – Second Agreement 19

 
PREAMBLE

WHEREAS Hadasit is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hadassah Medical Organization (“HMO”) and is authorized to enter this Agreement and to utilize HMO’s facilities, employees and agents for purpose of this Agreement;

Whereas, the Sponsor is the successor of Integrated Security Technologies, Inc. ("IST"); and

Whereas, on February 17, 2006 Hadasit and IST have entered into the agreement regarding Method of Replacing Insulin Injections with Oral Insulin attached hereto as Schedule E (the "First Agreement"); and

Whereas, Section 5 of the First Agreement contains certain terms and conditions in connection with Clinical Trials (as defined in the original agreement) to be performed by IST and Hadasit as well as funding requirements for said
Clinical Trials; and

 
 



 
Whereas, on January 9, 2009 Hadasit and Oramed have entered into an agreement replacing the First Agreement (the "Second Agreement"); and

Whereas, on July 8, 2009 Hadasit and Oramed have entered into a Clinical Trial Agreement (the "Third Agreement"); and

Whereas the Sponsor is in the process of development of administration and delivery of peptides into the body (hereinafter: the “Product”) and has prepared the Protocol in order to conduct clinical trials for further investigation of the
Product.

Whereas the Sponsor represents that it is the sole owner of any and all intellectual property rights in the Product and the Protocol (as such term is defined herein), and that the execution and delivery of this Agreement does not infringe any
third parties’ rights and/or any applicable law;

Whereas, the Sponsor has previously invested and is willing to invest certain funds in the Study (as hereinafter defined) to be carried at HMO’s facilities by the Investigator under the terms and conditions herein;

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1.            STUDY, INVESTIGATOR AND SITE

 A. Hadasit shall contribute the Investigator for purpose of carrying out clinical trials (the: "Study") in accordance with the Sponsor Protocols (the “Protocols”), which have been drafted by the Sponsor at its sole responsibility. A
list of said protocols and a copy of each Protocol is attached herein as Schedule A.

The Investigator will be responsible for performing the Study and for the direct supervision of any individual performing portions of the Study.

 B. In the event that the Investigator ceases to be available for purpose of the Study (including without limitation the event of termination of employment between HMO and the Investigator for any reason whatsoever), Hadasit
shall use its best efforts to procure within 30 days his/her substitution by a suitably qualified person acceptable to Sponsor. If such substitute is not acceptable to the Sponsor, Sponsor shall be entitled to terminate this
Agreement without further notice, and this shall be Sponsor’s sole remedy in such circumstances except as further defined in Schedule B.

 C. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Sponsor hereby represents and warrants that it has examined the facilities of the Institution and found them entirely adequate and suitable for the purpose of performance of
the Protocol and the Study. In addition, nothing contained herein shall be construed as casting upon the Institution, the Investigator or HMO an undertaking to purchase any equipment for purpose of the Study or to improve its
existing equipment.
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2.            COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, REGULATIONS AND GUIDELINES

 A. The Investigator will perform the Study in conformance (i) with the Protocols, (ii) with all applicable laws and regulations, including laws and regulations governing the performance of clinical studies and (iii) with all
applicable standards, regulations or guidelines for good clinical practice (“GCP”) and ethical conduct in connection with clinical studies, including those of the Institution and HMO.

 B. Prior to commencement of the Study, the Investigator will seek at the Sponsor’s expense any consents or approvals that must be obtained from the HMO’s ethics committee (the “Committee”).  The Investigator will comply
with all requirements established by the Committee and agrees to execute such assurances and other documents as the Committee may reasonably request.  The Sponsor shall assist the Investigator to the extent required in this
regard including, without limitation, signing the relevant forms and amending the Sponsor’s documents which shall be filed with the Committee. The Investigator will not enroll patients in the Study until the Protocol has been
reviewed and approved by the Committee. The Sponsor shall be liable to obtain any further approval that may be required under applicable law. Any delay in the performance by the Institution and/or the Investigator’ of any
of their undertakings hereunder due to insufficient approvals shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement by them.

3.           INFORMED CONSENT

 A. The Investigator will be responsible for obtaining the written informed consent of each subject participating in the Study (or his or her authorized legal representative) before his or her participation in the Study.  The form that
shall be used in this regard shall be drafted by the Sponsor and approved by the Investigator; however the Sponsor shall be solely responsible for the content thereof as part of the Study’s documents.

 B. Without derogating from the generality of the aforementioned, the parties agree that such informed consent shall be granted only under circumstances that provide the prospective Study subject (or his or her representative)
with sufficient opportunity to consider whether or not to participate and that minimize the possibility of coercion or undue influence.  The parties further agree that any such written informed consent shall be obtained in
compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, standards or guidelines.

4.            RECORDKEEPING, REPORTING AND ACCESS

 A. ACCESS. The Sponsor and/or any regulatory authorities may, to the extent reasonably necessary or to the extent required by applicable laws, regulations, standards or guidelines, subject to prior coordination with the
Investigator and at the normal working hours in HMO (i.e. 8:00AM-16:00 PM):

 (1) Examine and inspect the Investigator’ and the Institution's facilities required for performance of the Study; and
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 (2) Confidentially inspect all data and work product relating to the Study.

 (3) Receive, on a quarterly basis, a detailed report on the expenses incurred in connection with the study which are charged to Dr. Kidron’s Research Fund

 (4) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, any information and/or data to be provided to the Sponsor under Sub Sections 1-3 above or under any other provision hereunder, shall be subject to the provisions of
section 6(D) below and to the rights of the Subject of the Study for medical confidentiality and privacy under any applicable law or regulation (including, without limitation, HMO’s internal procedures).

 B. The Investigator shall prepare and maintain reasonably complete and accurate written records, accounts, notes, reports and data of the Study, including case report forms and shall provide Sponsor with copies of all such
documentation upon request. The Investigator will retain or will cause the Institution to retain all such materials and data that the Institution has to retain under any applicable law for such periods as such law determines. After
the termination of such applicable retention periods, the Institution shall no longer have any duty whatsoever to retain any such materials and data.

 C. REPORTING OF ADVERSE EVENTS

The Investigator shall promptly advise the Sponsor of any serious adverse event or unanticipated adverse effect occurring during the Study, or subsequent to the completion or termination of the Study, that becomes known to
him.

 D. INTERVAL AND FINAL STUDY REPORTS

During the course of the Study, the Investigator shall provide the Sponsor with quarterly interval reports (to be provided within 60 days of the end of each quarter with respect to such quarter) including copies of patient case
report forms.  The Investigator will deliver a final written Study report to the Sponsor within 3 months from the Study’s completion.
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5.            COMPENSATION FOR STUDY

  The Sponsor will pay compensation to the Institution for the performance of the Study as set forth in SCHEDULE B hereto.

6.            CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

 A. Subject to the publication rights set out in section 7 below, the Investigator and the Institution agree to keep in confidence any written information expressly marked as “confidential” that is forwarded by the Sponsor to the
Investigator or the Institution for purpose of the Study (or such oral information which is clearly defined as confidential upon its disclosure provided it is followed by a written notice specifying the information so disclosed
and its being confidential within 30 days of such disclosure); or (b) information that the Proprietary Data of the Sponsor as defined in section 8 hereto (the information described in clauses (a) and (b) above being collectively
the "Confidential Information").  However, the obligation of non-disclosure and non-use shall not apply to the following:

 (1) Information that is or becomes publicly available other than as a result of disclosure by the Investigator or the Institution;

 (2) Information that is already independently known by the Investigator, , prior to its disclosure; or

 (3) Information that was independently developed by employees of the Institution or of HMO who have not been exposed to the Confidential Information;

 (4) Information at or after such time that is disclosed on a non confidential basis to the Investigator or the Institution or the HMO, or their employees, by a third party; or

 (5) Information that the disclosure thereof is required under any law, court writ or any competent authority. However, if the Investigator and/or the Institution are legally required to disclose any Confidential Information
to a court or governmental authority, prompt written notice thereof shall be given to the Sponsor.

 B. The obligations of non-disclosure and non-use hereunder shall continue for 5 years after the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.

 C. At the request of the Sponsor, the Investigator or the Institution, as the case may be, will return to the Sponsor all copies or other manifestations of Confidential Information that may be in the possession of the Investigator or
the Institution, except for materials that have to be retained by the Investigator or the Institution as aforementioned and subject further to Section 4(B) hereto.
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 D. Confidentiality of Medical Records

 
 Sponsor, Investigator, and Institution understand, acknowledge and agree that they share the common goal of securing all individually identifiable health information and according that information the highest possible degree
of confidentiality and protection from disclosure; accordingly, all individually identifiable health information shall at all times be treated as confidential by the parties in accordance with all federal, state and local laws, rules
and regulations governing the confidentiality and privacy of individually identifiable health information as applicable, including, but not limited to, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIP AA”)
and any regulations and official guidance promulgated thereunder, as well as the Israeli Patient’s Rights Law, 1996 (the “PR Law”), the Israeli Protection of Privacy Law, 1981 (the “PP Law”) and any regulations and rules
promulgated thereunder, and the parties agree to take such additional steps and/or to negotiate such amendments to this Agreement as may be required to ensure that the parties are and remain in compliance with the HIP AA
regulations and official guidance, as well as the PR and PP Laws and any regulations and rules promulgated thereunder. It is hereby agreed that any undertaking of the Institution and/or Investigator hereunder whatsoever is
subject to any restrictions and/or limitations deemed necessary by the Institution and/or Investigator in their sole discretion, to comply with the above provisions. It is hereby made expressly clear that no patient identifiable
information will be provided, or made available, to the Sponsor or any party acting on its behalf, without the express written consent of the patient.

7.            PUBLICATIONS

 A. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Investigator and/or Institution may publish the results of the Study, provided that the Investigator and/or Institution have notified the Sponsor of their intent to
publish as set forth in Sub-Section B below. The Investigator and/or Institution and the Sponsor shall be listed as co-authors on said publication. Any said publication will require Sponsor’s prior written approval and will not
contain the Sponsor’s Confidential Information, which for the purpose of this section shall not include the Study results.

 B. The Investigator will provide Sponsor with a copy of any proposed publication or presentation materials (“Material”) and a written notice of intent (on behalf of the Investigator or any Study staff at the Institution) to publish
or present the Material at least 45 days prior to the scheduled presentation or publication submission date (the “Evaluation Period”).  The Sponsor shall use said 45 days to determine whether it wishes to seek patent protection
for said Material and shall notify Investigator and Institution in writing, prior to the end of the Evaluation Period, if it intends to seek patent protection. If Sponsor decides to seek patent protection, it shall have an additional 30
days, beginning from the end of the Evaluation Period (“Preparation Period”), to prepare and submit any patent application it wishes. After such time, Investigator and/or Institution shall be free to publish the Material, subject
to the limitations contained herein.
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 C. If the Sponsor, in its reasonable judgement, needs additional time to seek patent or other protection for the Material intended to be published or presented, the Sponsor will notify the Investigator of such need within the

Evaluation Period and publication or presentation will be deferred until such time that the Sponsor gives notification that such protection has been applied for.  Such deferrals will in no event extend for a total of more than 15
days beyond the Preparation Period without written agreement of the Investigator.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Sponsor shall not use the names of the Institution, HMO or the Investigator and shall not disclose their involvement in the Study or the Products without the Institution’s prior written
approval, all except for (a) references to scientific publications which are already in the public domain at the time of publication and (b) applications for regulatory approvals to official authorities, and (c) as requested by regulatory
authorities as required by law or applicable regulation. Subject to the foregoing, the Sponsor shall include appropriate acknowledgement and credit to the Institution, HMO, the Investigator and their employees in any publication relating to
the Study and/or to the Product in whatever media, including application(s) to official authorities or presentations to potential investors.

8.            INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

 A. Subject to Sub-Section C hereto, all intellectual property, including ideas, documents, information, know-how, trade secrets, reports, analyses, data and inventions, generated by the Investigator or the Institution or their
respective employees, agents or contractors, directly from the performance of the Study and this Agreement (collectively, the “Proprietary Data”) shall be owned by the Sponsor.

 B. The Investigator and the Institution hereby assign and transfer to the Sponsor all right, title and interest in such Proprietary Data and agree to take all further acts reasonably required, at the Sponsor’s expense, to convey title in
such property to the Sponsor and/or to assist the Sponsor to perfect and protect such rights.

 C. The Proprietary Data shall not include and Institution and/or the Investigator shall retain any and all rights, including intellectual property rights, to any development processes, software (including codes), technology, means,
and know-how developed by the Institution and/or Investigator and/or HMO, including, but not limited to, that which relate to data collection, data management or project management.
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 D. Nothing contained herein shall prevent Institution and/or HMO and/or Investigator from using the Proprietary Data for academic research, non commercial therapeutic and educational purposes only, provided that every

person or entity making use of the proprietary data is explicitly made aware by the Institution or the Investigator or HMO of the Sponsor’s proprietary interest therein. Such use will be subject to Sponsor’s prior written
consent.

 
9.            TANGIBLE MATERIALS

 
The Sponsor shall provide the Institution and the Investigator free of charge with all such materials, drugs, accessories and other items as shall be required for the conduct of the Study including, without limitation, those listed
in Schedule C hereto. It is being clarified; however, that any use of any drugs under the Study shall only be made via HMO’s internal pharmacy and shall be subjected to its procedures. Upon completion of the Study or
termination of this Agreement, the Investigator shall promptly return, at the Sponsor’s expense, all unused compounds, drugs, devices and other related materials.

 
10.          INDEMNIFICATION, INSURANCE, LIMITED LIABILITIES

 A. Each party shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless (the “Indemnifying Party”) the other parties and any of their employees, agents or contractors  (collectively the "Indemnitees") promptly upon their first demand from and
against any loss, damage, liability and expense (including legal fees) arising out of or resulting from the results or performance of the Study and/or from the direct or indirect use, sale or manufacture of the Study and/or the
Study results and /or of products incorporating or involving such results and, without limitation to the foregoing, from or against product liability claims or claims regarding third party’s intellectual property rights;  provided
however:

 (1) that the Indemnifying Party’s indemnification obligations under this Section shall be proportionately reduced to the extent the loss was caused or increased by the negligence or willful misconduct of an Indemnitee (but
only to the extent that such demands, claims, or judgments are due to the negligence or willful malfeasance of the Indemnitees);

 
 (2) that the Indemnifying Party is notified in writing as soon as practicable under the circumstances of any complaint or claim potentially subject to indemnification;

 B. The Indemnitees shall be entitled, at their sole discretion, to either (i) instruct the Indemnifying Party to assume defense of any litigation or other legal procedure which entitles them to indemnification under this Agreement,
in which case the Indemnitees shall be entitled to approve the choice of the legal counsel of the Indemnifying Party, such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, or (ii) to manage their defense themselves, in which case
the Indemnifying Party shall be responsible to any legal expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) stemming from such procedure and the results thereof.
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 C. The Sponsor shall reimburse Institution for reasonable and necessary medical expenses incurred by Study Subjects as a direct result of the treatment of adverse reactions resulting from the administration of Study drugs and/or

devices or procedures performed in accordance with the Protocol, provided such expenses are not covered by the Study Subject's medical or hospital insurance coverage and are in no way attributable to the negligence or
misconduct of any agent or employee of the Institution.  No other compensation of any type will be provided by the Sponsor to the Study Subjects.

 D. Without derogating from the aforementioned, the Sponsor warrants and undertakes that it has purchased, and shall maintain during the entire term of the Agreement and for all relevant times subsequent thereto (including
under applicable statues of limitation), sufficient insurance coverage for the Study and for the Sponsor’s liabilities hereunder, including without limitation, for claims relating to negligence of both Sponsor and of personnel
performing the Study, and for claims relating to product liability, which insurance coverage shall be satisfactory to the Institution. The Sponsor further undertakes that HMO, the Institution, the Investigator and their employees
will be included as co-insured in such insurance policy/ies. The Sponsor represents that as of the date hereof, it maintains the insurance policy that is annexed hereto as Schedule D.

 E. Disclaimer of Warranty. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as a warranty by the Institution and the Investigator that the results of the Study will be useful or commercially exploitable or of any value
whatsoever. In addition, and without derogating from the aforementioned the Institution and the Investigator disclaim all warranties, either express or implied, with respect to the Study and any products that incorporate,
integrate or are designed based in whole or part, on the Study results (“Products”), including without limitation implied warranties of merchantability, efficacy and fitness for a particular purpose. The entire risk arising out of
the production and use of the Study and the Products and any accompanying materials remains solely with the Sponsor, and the Sponsor shall be solely responsible for any use of the Work and/or the Product.
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 F. Limitation on liability. Without derogating from the above, and except in the event of gross negligence, willful misconduct or medical malpractice to the Study subjects, if the Institution or the Investigator are found liable

(whether under contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise), then the cumulative liability thereof for all claims whatsoever related to the Study or the Products or otherwise arising out of this Agreement, shall not exceed
a total consideration actually paid to it by the Sponsor under this Agreement. This limitation of liability is intended to apply to all claims of the Sponsor without regard to which other provisions of this Agreement have been
breached or have proved ineffective.

 
 G. Exclusion of Consequential Damages. Neither party shall be liable (whether under contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise) to the other party, or any third party for any indirect, incidental or consequential damages,

including, without limitation, any loss or damage to business earnings, lost profits or goodwill and lost or damaged data or documentation, suffered by any person, arising from and/or related with and/or connected to this
agreement even if such party is advised of the possibility of such damages.

 
11.           TERM AND TERMINATION
 
 A. This Agreement shall become effective upon its execution by both parties and shall be in effect during the entire period of the Study as set forth in Schedule A hereto, unless terminated by the parties as set forth herein.

 B. Hadasit and the Sponsor may either terminate this Agreement upon the filing by any person of a petition for the winding-up or liquidation or the appointment of a receiver on most of the assets of the terminated party, if
petition has not been withdrawn or dismissed within 21 days of its filing. In addition, each party may terminate this Agreement without further notice in case the terminated party has breached this Agreement and did not cure
such breach within 21 days of delivery of a written notice from the non-defaulting party. The Sponsor may terminate this Agreement without prior notice as set in Section 1 (B) hereto.

 C. In addition, this Agreement may be terminated by either Hadasit or the Sponsor for any other reason upon 60 days written notice.

 D. In the event that this agreement is terminated by the Sponsor, the Sponsor shall reimburse the Institution for all costs and non-cancelable commitments incurred prior such termination with regard to the performance of this
Agreement.

 E. Subject to Sub-Section D above, upon termination of this Agreement, the Investigator and the Institution shall return to the Sponsor any funds not expended or irrevocably committed prior to the effective termination date.
However, and without derogating from the Institution’s rights under any applicable law, the Institution may set-off from such funds any debts of the Sponsor towards the Institution or the Investigator.
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 F. The Sponsor shall be obliged notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement for any reason to continue supplying any material and drug supplied by the Sponsor and used in the Study in order to comply with applicable

laws and regulations and/or to avoid injury or harm to the Study subjects.

 G. Termination of this Agreement by either party shall not affect the rights and obligations of the parties accrued prior to the effective date of the termination. The rights and duties under Sections 6, 7, 8, 10, 14, and 16 will
survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

12.           CHANGES TO THE PROTOCOL

Any amendment or modification of the Protocol must be agreed upon by both the Investigator and the Sponsor and documented in writing, however any such change shall not exempt the Sponsor of its liabilities and
responsibilities hereunder.

13.           ASSIGNMENTS

Except as specifically permissible under Section 1 (B) hereto, this Agreement, and the rights and obligations hereunder, may not be assigned by any party hereto without the express written consent of the other parties, which shall
not be unreasonably withheld.

14.           APPLICABLE LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Israel.  The competent courts in Jerusalem shall have exclusive jurisdiction over any dispute that may arise with respect to this Agreement.

15.           INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS

Each party hereto (including the Investigator) is an independent contractor. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as forming employee-employer relations between the Sponsor’s employees and the Institution or HMO or
between the Institution’s and HMO’s employees (including the Investigator) and the Sponsor.

16.           NOTICES

All notices required or permitted to be given under the Agreement shall be sent as follows:

If to the Sponsor:

Oramed LTD
2/5 Hi-Tech Park, Givat Ram
POB 39098, Jerusalem 91390, Israel
Attention: Nadav Kidron
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If to the Institution or to the Investigator:

Hadasit Medical Research Services And Development Ltd
POB 12000 Jerusalem 91120 Israel

Attention _______________

17.           ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Protocol, the terms of this Agreement shall
govern.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other term or provision hereof.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written
document signed by Hadasit and the Sponsor. The Investigator’s signature shall only be required with respects to changes that cast further liabilities on the Investigator that are not already included hereunder.

[Signatures appear on the following page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement effective as of the date first set forth above.
 
ORAMED LTD

By   :/s/ Nadav Kidron                                                                                                                         
Name: Nadav Kidron
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date:______________________                                                           

 
INVESTIGATOR:
 
/s/ Miriam Kidron
Dr. Miriam Kidron
 
/s/ Daniel Schurr
Dr. Daniel Schurr
 
HADASIT MEDICAL RESEARCH SERVICES AND DEVELOPMENT LTD
 
By:  /s/ Einat Zisman

Name:  Einat Zisman                                                           
Title: CEO                                                           
Date:______________________
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Schedule A - Protocols
 
Schedule intentionally left blank by the parties.
 
 

14



 
 
Schedule B - Compensation

 1. For the performance of the Study, the Sponsor shall pay Hadasit the amount of $200,000 (two hundred thousand U.S. Dollars) (the “Study fee”), payable in accordance with the actual progress of the study.
 
All payments will be due upon invoice issued by Hadassit to the sponsor. Invoices to Oramed LTD will add the applicable VAT.
 
Hadasit undertakes to transfer the Study Fee to Dr. Kidron’s Research Fund after deduction of 16.7% Overhead.
 
The Study will include a dose response study and a GLP1 study.

 
 2. Payments shall be made within 30 days of invoice date. Payment shall be made in U.S. Dollars or New Israeli Shekels, according to exchange rate in effect on the date of payment.

Method of Payment: Either via check, made out to “Hadasit Medical Research Services and Development Ltd.”, or via a bank transfer to the following account:

Account name: Hadasit medical research services & development Ltd.
Account no. 605 100 / 21
BANK   LEUMI   LEISRAEL
Main Branch no. 901
Jaffa Street 21 - Jerusalem
Interbank Swift Code (TID): LUMIILITTLV
 
In the event of bank transfer, Sponsor shall send Institution a notice that payment has been made, and will provide Institution with full details of the payment transaction.

 3. The compensation detailed above shall constitute the complete compensation to be paid by the Sponsor to Hadasit for the Study and include all fees, charges and expenses that the Sponsor is obligated to pay under the Agreement.

 4. Sponsor will have no obligation or liability in respect of payments to be made by Dr. Kidron and/or her research fund.

 5. At the termination, for any reason, of the Agreement any unused funds in Dr. Kidron’s research fund will be returned to the Sponsor.

 6. TAXES. If required under Israel law, Sponsor shall add VAT to any payments made under this Agreement to the Institution. Any payment shall be made against the provision of tax invoice by the Institution.

 7. INTEREST. Any amount payable hereunder, which has not been made upon its due date of payment, shall bear interest from the date such payment is due until the date of its actual payment, according to the following: (i) any
amounts due in Israeli currency shall bear the maximum interest charged by Bank Leumi Le Israel B.M. for unapproved overdrafts; (ii) any amount due in foreign currency shall bear the same interest charged by Bank Leumi Le
Israel B.M. for a loan of the said amount in the said currency plus an annual compounded interest at a rate of 3%.
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Schedule C - Materials

 · Insulin capsules
 · GLP1 capsules.
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Schedule D - Insurance policy
 
Schedule intentionally left blank by the parties.

 
17



 

Schedule E – First Agreement
 
The First Agreement is incorporated by reference to this Schedule from Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 17, 2006.
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Schedule F – Second Agreement
 
The Second Agreement is incorporated by reference to this Schedule from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 7, 2009.
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Exhibit 10.19

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
 

This Securities Purchase Agreement (this "Agreement") is dated as of November ___, 2012, among Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and the investors identified on the signature page
hereto (each, an "Investor" and collectively the “Investors”).
 

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Rule 506 promulgated thereunder, the Company
desires to issue and sell to each Investor, and each Investor, severally and not jointly, desires to purchase from the Company certain securities of the Company, as more fully described in this Agreement.
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the
Investors agree as follows:
 

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS

 
1.1           Definitions.  In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, for all purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated in this Section 1.1:

 
"Affiliate" means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common control with a Person, as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 144.

 
“Closing” means the closing of the purchase and sale of the Securities pursuant to Section 2.1.

 
"Closing Date" means the Trading Day when all of the all conditions precedent to (A) the Investors’ obligations to pay the Investment Amount and (B) the Company’s obligations to deliver the Securities have been

satisfied or waived.
 

"Common Stock" means the common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share, and any other class of securities into which such common stock may hereafter be reclassified or changed into.
 

"Investment Amount" means, with respect to each Investor, the aggregate amount to be paid for Shares and Warrants purchased hereunder as indicated below such Investor's name on the signature page of this
Agreement and as set forth on Schedule 1.
 
 

 



 
“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

 
“Liens” means a lien, charge, security interest, encumbrance, right of first refusal, preemptive right or other restriction.

 
"Per Unit Purchase Price" means $0.37.

 
"Person" means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability company, joint stock company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof)

or other entity of any kind.
 

"Rule 144" means Rule 144 promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC having substantially
the same effect as such Rule.
 

"SEC" means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
 

"Securities" means the Shares, the Warrants and the Warrant Shares.
 

"Shares" means the shares of Common Stock issued or issuable to the Investors pursuant to this Agreement.
 

"Short Sales" means, without limitation, all "short sales" as defined in Rule 200 of Regulation SHO promulgated under the Exchange Act.
 

"Trading Day" means any day other than Friday, Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York or Israel are authorized or required by law to remain closed.
 

"Transaction Documents" means this Agreement, the Warrants and any other documents or agreements executed in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder.
 

"Warrants" means the Common Stock purchase warrants in the form of Exhibit A.
 

"Warrant Shares" means the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants.
 

ARTICLE II.
PURCHASE AND SALE

 
2.1           Closing.  On the Closing Date, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the Company shall issue and sell to each Investor, severally and not jointly, and each Investor, severally and not jointly, shall

purchase from the Company, the Shares and the Warrants set forth opposite such Investor’s name on Schedule 1. Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3, the Closing shall occur at such location as the parties
shall mutually agree.
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2.2           Deliveries.

 
(a)      On the date hereof, the Company and each of the Investors shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the other, this Agreement, together with all exhibits and schedules attached thereto, duly executed by an authorized

representative.
 

(b)      On the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to each Investor the following:
 

(i)           a certificate evidencing the number of Shares equal to such Investor’s Investment Amount divided by the Per Unit Purchase Price, registered in the name of such Investor as set forth on Schedule 1; and
 

(ii)           a warrant, registered in the name of such Investor, pursuant to which such Investor shall have the right to acquire the number of shares of Common Stock equal to 50% of the number of Shares issuable
to such Investor pursuant to Section 2.2(i).
 

(c)      On the Closing Date, each Investor shall deliver or cause to be delivered (by check or wire transfer) the aggregate amount of the Investor’s Investment Amount in payment for the Shares and Warrants in accordance
with the instructions set forth on Schedule 2 hereof.
 

2.3           Closing Conditions.
 

(a)      The obligations of the Company hereunder in connection with the Closing are subject to the following conditions having been met:
 

(i)           the accuracy in all material respects when made and on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Investors contained herein;
 

(ii)          all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Investors contained herein required to be performed at or prior to the Closing Date shall have been performed; and
 

(iii)         the delivery by the Investors of the items set forth in Section 2.2(c) of this Agreement.
 

(b)      The respective obligations of the Investors hereunder in connection with the Closing are subject to the following conditions having been met:
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(i)           the accuracy in all material respects on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Company contained herein;

 
(ii)          all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Company contained herein required to be performed at or prior to the Closing Date shall have been performed;

 
(iii)          the delivery by the Company of the items set forth in Section 2.2(b) of this Agreement;

 
(iv)          from the date hereof to the Closing Date, trading in the Common Stock shall not have been suspended by the SEC or the National Association of Securities Dealers over-the-counter electronic bulletin

board (the “OTCBB”).
 

ARTICLE III.
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

 
3.1           Representations and Warranties of the Company.  The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Investors as follows on the date hereof and as of the Closing Date:

 
(a)      Organization, Good Standing and Qualification of the Company.  The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware.  The Company has all

requisite corporate power and authority to own and operate its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted and as proposed to be conducted.  The Company is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is
in good standing in each jurisdiction in which failure to so qualify would materially and adversely affect the business, properties, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company.  The resolutions adopted by the
directors of the Company on August 8, 2012 authorizing the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents have not been amended or modified in any way, have not been rescinded and are in full force and effect on the date
hereof.
 

(b)      Corporate Authority; Enforceability.  The Company has full right, power and authority to issue and sell the Securities as herein contemplated and the Company has full power and authority to enter into and perform
its obligations under the Transaction Documents.  The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein have been duly authorized and approved by all
requisite corporate action, and each of the Transaction Documents are a valid and legally binding obligation of the Company.
 

(c)      Conflicts.  Neither the authorization, execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents nor the consummation of the transactions herein and therein contemplated, will (i) conflict with or result in a breach of any
of the terms of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws, (ii) violate any judgment, order, injunction, decree or award of any court or governmental body, having jurisdiction over the Company, against or binding on the
Company or to which its property is subject, (iii) violate any material law or regulation of any jurisdiction which is applicable to the Company, (iv) violate, conflict with or result in the breach or termination of, or constitute a default under,
the terms of any material agreement to which the Company is a party, except for such violations or defaults which do not materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise of the
Company, or (v) violate or conflict with the rules and regulations of the OTCBB applicable to the Company.
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(d)      Capitalization. The authorized capital of the Company as of the date hereof consists of 200,000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which there were (i) 84,788,784 issued and outstanding as of the date hereof as fully

paid and non-assessable shares; (ii) options and/or warrants to purchase 16,043,201 shares of Common Stock; and (iii) employee and directors options to purchase 7,824,000 shares of Common Stock. As of the date hereof, the Company
has not issued any capital stock since its most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act, other than pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options under the Company’s stock option plans and the issuance of shares of
Common Stock to employees pursuant to the Company’s employee stock purchase plan outstanding as of the date of the most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act.  All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the
Company are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.  No further approval or authorization of any stockholder or the Board of Directors of the Company is required for the issuance and sale of the Securities.  The issuance of the
Securities pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement will not violate any preemptive rights or rights of first refusal granted by the Company that will not be validly waived or complied with, and will be free of any liens or encumbrances,
other than any liens or encumbrances created by or imposed upon the Investors through no action of the Company. There are no stockholders agreements, voting agreements or other similar agreements with respect to the Company’s capital
stock to which the Company is a party or, to the knowledge of the Company, between or among any of the Company’s stockholders.
 

(e)      Litigation.  There are no actions, suits or proceedings at law or in equity or by or before any governmental instrumentality or other agency or regulatory authority now pending, or, to the best knowledge of the
Company, threatened against the Company which, if adversely determined, could materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company. There is no action, suit or
proceeding by the Company currently pending or that the Company currently intends to initiate.
 

(f)       Compliance with Laws.  The Company is not in violation of any statute, law, rule or regulation, or in default with respect to any judgment, writ, injunction, decree, rule or regulation of any court or governmental
agency or instrumentality, except for such violations or defaults which do not materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company.
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(g)      Governmental Consents.  Subject to the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the Investors set forth herein, no registration or filing with, or consent or approval of or other action by, any Federal, state or

other government agency under laws and regulations thereof as now in effect is or will be necessary for the valid execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Transaction Documents, and the issuance, sale and delivery of
the Securities, other than the filing of a Form D with the SEC and the filings required by state securities law.
 

(h)      Regulatory Matters.  The clinical, pre-clinical and other trials, studies and tests conducted by or on behalf of or sponsored by the Company relating to its pharmaceutical product candidates were and, if still pending,
are being conducted in all material respects in accordance with medical and scientific protocols and research procedures that the Company reasonably believes are appropriate.  The descriptions of the results of such trials, studies and tests
as set forth in the SEC Documents (as defined in Section 3(i) of this Agreement), provided to the Investors are accurate in all material respects and fairly present the data derived from such trials, studies and tests.  All clinical trials
conducted by the Company have been in compliance in all material respects with applicable laws and regulations.  The Company has not received any warning letters or written correspondence from the FDA and/or any other governmental
entity or agency requiring the termination, suspension or modification of any clinical, pre-clinical and other trials, studies or tests that are material to the Company.   None of the clinical trials that the Company is currently conducting or
sponsoring is subject to any temporary or permanent clinical hold by the FDA or any other governmental entity or agency, and the Company has no reason to believe that such clinical trials will be subject to any such action.  The Company
is planning to file an Investigational New Drug Application with the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) for a phase II clinical trial it intends to conduct with respect to its orally ingestible insulin capsule (ORMD0801)
(the “IND Application”).  The IND Application will be in material compliance with applicable laws and rules and regulations when filed.
 

(i)       SEC Documents; Financial Statements.  For the past twelve (12) months, the Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the
reporting requirements of the Exchange Act (all of the foregoing filed prior to the date hereof and all exhibits included therein and financial statements, notes and schedules thereto and documents incorporated by reference therein being
hereinafter referred to as the “SEC Documents”).  The Company has delivered to the Investors or their respective representatives true, correct and complete copies of each of the SEC Documents not available on the Electronic Data
Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval system of the SEC (“EDGAR”) that have been requested by an Investor.  As of their respective dates, the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with the requirements of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC Documents, at the time they were filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material
fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.  As of their respective dates, the
financial statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto as in effect
as of the time of filing.  Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), consistently applied, during the periods involved (except (i) as may be otherwise indicated in
such financial statements or the notes thereto, or (ii) in the case of unaudited interim statements, to the extent they may exclude footnotes or may be condensed or summary statements) and fairly present in all material respects the financial
position of the Company as of the dates thereof and the results of its operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments).  The Company has no liabilities
or obligations required to be disclosed in the SEC Documents that are not so disclosed in the SEC Documents, other than those incurred in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.
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(j)      Sarbanes-Oxley; Internal Accounting Controls. Each SEC Document containing financial statements that has been filed with or submitted to the SEC was accompanied by the certifications required to be filed or

submitted by the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”); at the time of filing or submission of each such certification, such certification was
true and accurate and complied with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder; such certifications contain no qualifications or exceptions to the matters certified therein and have not been modified or
withdrawn; and neither the Company nor any of its officers has received notice from any governmental entity questioning or challenging the accuracy, completeness, form or manner of filing or submission of such certification;
 

(k)      Absence of Changes.  The Common Stock is quoted for trading on the OTCBB.  No order ceasing, halting or suspending trading in the Common Stock nor prohibiting the sale of the Common Stock has been issued
to and is outstanding against the Company or its directors, officers or promoters, and, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, no investigations or proceedings for such purposes are pending or threatened.  The Company has not taken any
action which would be reasonably expected to result in the delisting or suspension of quotation of the Common Stock on or from the OTCBB and the Company has complied in all material respects with the rules and regulations of
eligibility on the OTCBB.  The Company has not taken any steps to seek protection pursuant to any bankruptcy law nor does the Company have any knowledge or reason to believe that its creditors intend to initiate involuntary bankruptcy
proceedings or any actual knowledge of any fact which would reasonably lead any creditor or creditors to do so.  Based on the financial condition of the Company as of the date hereof, after giving effect to the receipt by the Company of
the proceeds from the transactions contemplated hereby, the Company reasonably believes that (i) the fair saleable value of the Company’s assets exceeds the amount that will be required to be paid on or in respect of the Company’s
existing debts and other liabilities as they mature; (ii) the Company’s assets do not constitute unreasonably small capital to carry on its business as now conducted and as proposed to be conducted including its capital needs taking into
account the particular capital requirements of the business conducted by the Company, and projected capital requirements and capital availability thereof; and (iii) the current cash flow of the Company, together with the proceeds the
Company would receive, were it to liquidate all of its assets, after taking into account all anticipated uses of the cash, would be sufficient to pay all amounts on or in respect of its liabilities when such amounts are required to be paid.  The
Company does not intend to incur debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature (taking into account the timing and amounts of cash to be payable on or in respect of its debt).  The SEC Documents set forth as of the dates
thereof all outstanding secured and unsecured Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary, or for which the Company or any Subsidiary has commitments. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Indebtedness” shall mean (a) any
liabilities for borrowed money or amounts owed (other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business), (b) all guaranties, endorsements and other contingent obligations in respect of Indebtedness of others, whether
or not the same are or should be reflected in the Company’s balance sheet (or the notes thereto), except guaranties by endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or similar transactions in the ordinary course of business;
and (c) the present value of any lease payments due under leases required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is in default with respect to any Indebtedness.
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(l)       Patents and Trademarks. The Company has rights to use all patents, patent applications, trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other

intellectual property rights and similar rights necessary or material for use in connection with its business as described in the SEC Documents and which the failure to so have would have a material adverse effect on the results of
operations, assets, business, prospects, or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company (collectively, the “Intellectual Property Rights”). The Company has not received any notice (written or otherwise) that the Intellectual Property
Rights used by the Company violate or infringe upon the rights of any other person or entity. To the knowledge of the Company, all such Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there is no existing infringement by another person
or entity of any of the Intellectual Property Rights. The Company has taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of all of its Intellectual Property Rights.
 

(m)     Offering.  Assuming the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the Investors contained in Section 3.2 of this Agreement, the offer, issue, and sale of the Securities are exempt from the registration and
prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act and the registration or qualification requirements of all applicable state securities laws.  Neither the Company nor any authorized agent acting on its behalf will knowingly take any
action hereafter that would cause the loss of such exemptions.
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(n)      Acknowledgment.  The Company acknowledges and agrees that each Investor is acting solely in the capacity of an arm’s length purchaser with respect to the Securities and the transactions contemplated hereby and

thereby and that no Investor is (i) an officer of the Company, (ii) an Affiliate of the Company or (iii) to the knowledge of the Company, a “beneficial owner” of more than 10% of the shares of Common Stock (as defined for purposes of
Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act), except Regals Fund LP.  The Company further acknowledges that no Investor is acting as a financial advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby, and any advice given by any Investor or any of its representatives or agents in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby is merely incidental to such Investor’s purchase of
the Securities.  The Company further represents to each Investor that the Company’s decision to enter into the Transaction Documents and issue the Securities has been based solely on the independent evaluation by the Company and its
representatives.
 

(o)      No General Solicitation; Placement Agent’s Fees.  Neither the Company, nor any of its Affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has engaged in any form of general solicitation or general advertising
(within the meaning of Regulation D of the Securities Act) in connection with the offer or sale of the Securities.  The Company shall be responsible for the payment of any placement agent’s fees, financial advisory fees, or brokers’
commissions (other than for persons engaged by any Investor or its investment advisor) relating to or arising out of the transactions contemplated hereby.
 

(p)      No Integrated Offering.  Neither the Company nor any person acting on its behalf has, directly or indirectly, made any offers or sales of any security or solicited any offers to buy any security, under circumstances
that would require registration of any of the Securities under the Securities Act or cause this offering of the Securities to be integrated with prior offerings by the Company for purposes of the Securities Act or any applicable shareholder
approval provisions, which would undermine the private placement exemption of this offering or cause it to require shareholder approval, including, without limitation, under the rules and regulations of the OTCBB or any other exchange
or automated quotation system on which any of the securities of the Company are listed or designated.
 

(q)      Manipulation of Price.  The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, directly or indirectly, any action designed to cause or to result in the stabilization or manipulation of the
price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of any of the Securities, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the Securities, or (iii) paid or agreed to pay to any person
any compensation for soliciting another to purchase any other securities of the Company.
 

(r)      Disclosure.  All disclosure provided to the Investors with regard to the representations and warranties contained in this Section 3.1 regarding the Company, its business and the transactions contemplated hereby,
furnished in writing by the Company is true and correct in all material respects and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, together with the disclosure in the SEC Documents, not misleading.
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(s)      Investor Reliance.  The Company expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Investors are relying upon the Company’s representations contained in this Agreement.

 
3.2          Representations and Warranties of the Investor.  Each Investor, severally and not jointly, hereby represents and warrants to the Company as follows:

 
(a)      Authorization; Enforcement.  Such Investor represents and warrants that it is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization with the requisite

corporate or partnership power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated by the applicable this Agreement and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder.  This Agreement has been duly executed by
such Investor, and when delivered by such Investor in accordance with terms hereof, will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of such Investor, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms.
 

(b)      Investment Intent.  Such Investor is acquiring the Securities as principal for its own account for investment purposes only and not with a view to or for distributing or reselling such Securities or any part thereof,
without prejudice, however, to such Investor's right at all times to sell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of such Securities in compliance with applicable securities laws.  Such Investor is acquiring the Securities hereunder in the
ordinary course of its business. Such Investor does not have any agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with any Person to distribute any of the Securities.
 

(c)      Investor Status.  At the time such Investor was offered the Securities, it was, and at the date hereof it is, and on each date on which it exercises the Warrants it will be, an "accredited investor" as defined in Rule
501(a) under the Securities Act and a non-"U.S. person" within the meaning of Rule 902(k) promulgated under the Securities Act (and the Investor is not purchasing for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person).  At the time of the offer and
sale of the Securities, the Investor was not located in the United States.  Such Investor is not required to be registered as a broker-dealer under Section 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 

(d)      General Solicitation.  Such Investor is not purchasing the Securities as a result of any advertisement, article, notice or other communication regarding the Securities published in any newspaper, magazine or similar
media or broadcast over television or radio or presented at any seminar or any other general solicitation or general advertisement.
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(e)      Access to Information.  Such Investor acknowledges that it has been afforded (i) the opportunity to ask such questions as it has deemed necessary of, and to receive answers from, representatives of the Company

concerning the terms and conditions of the offering of the Shares and the merits and risks of investing in the Securities; (ii) access to information about the Company and its financial condition, results of operations, business, properties,
management and prospects sufficient to enable it to evaluate its investment; and (iii) the opportunity to obtain such additional information that the Company possesses or can acquire without unreasonable effort or expense that is necessary
to make an informed investment decision with respect to the investment. Such Investor understands that a purchase of the Securities is a speculative investment involving a high degree of risk.  Such Investor is aware that there is no
guarantee that such Investor will realize any gain from this investment, and that such Investor could lose the total amount of this investment. Such Investor acknowledges that it has received no representations or warranties from the
Company or its employees or agents in making this investment decision other than as set forth in this Agreement.
 

(f)      Independent Investment Decision.  Such Investor has independently evaluated the merits of its decision to purchase Securities pursuant to this Agreement, such decision has been independently made by such
Investor and such Investor confirms that it has only relied on the advice of its own business and/or legal counsel and not on the advice of any other Investor’s business and/or legal counsel in making such decision.
 

(g)      Short Sales.  Such Investor has not directly or indirectly, nor has any Person acting on behalf of or pursuant to any understanding with such Investor, executed any Short Sales in the securities of the Company since
the date that such Investor was first contacted regarding an investment in the Company.
 

(h)      Limitations on Transfers. Such Investor acknowledges that the Securities must be held indefinitely unless subsequently registered under the Securities Act or unless an exemption from such registration is
available.  Such Investor is aware of the provisions of Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act which permit limited resale of securities purchased in a private placement subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, which may
include, among other things, the existence of a public market for the securities, the availability of certain current public information about the Company, the resale occurring not less than six months after a party has purchased and paid for
the security to be sold, the sale being effected through a “broker’s transaction” or in transactions directly with a “market maker” and the number of securities being sold during any three month period not exceeding specified limitations.
 

(i)       Company Reliance.  Such Investor expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Company is relying upon such Investor’s representations contained in this Agreement.
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ARTICLE IV.

REGISTRATION RIGHTS
 

4.1           Registration Statement.
 

(a)      The Company shall prepare and file with the SEC within one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days after the Closing Date (the “Filing Deadline”) a registration statement (on Form S-1, or other appropriate
registration statement form) under the Securities Act (the “Registration Statement”), at the sole expense of the Company (except as specifically provided in Section 4.2 of this Agreement) so as to permit a public offering and resale of the
Shares and the Warrant Shares (the “Registrable Securities”) in the United States under the Securities Act by the Investors as selling stockholders. The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause such Registration Statement to
become effective as soon as possible thereafter, and within the earlier of: (i) one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days after the Closing Date (or two hundred and ten (210) calendar days in the event the SEC shall elect to review the
Registration Statement), or (ii) five (5) calendar days after the SEC clearance to request acceleration of effectiveness (the “Effectiveness Deadline”).  The Company will notify the Investors of the effectiveness of the Registration
Statement (the “Effective Date”) within three (3) Trading Days.
 

(b)      The Company will maintain the Registration Statement filed under Section 4 of this Agreement effective under the Securities Act until the earlier of the date (i) all of the Registrable Securities have been sold
pursuant to such Registration Statement, (ii) the Investors receive an opinion of counsel to the Company, which opinion and counsel shall be reasonably acceptable to the Investors, that the Registrable Securities may be sold under the
provisions of Rule 144 without limitation as to volume, (iii) all Registrable Securities (or all Warrants, in the case of Warrants not then exercised) have been otherwise transferred to persons who may trade the Registrable Securities without
restriction under the Securities Act, and the Company has delivered a new certificate or other evidence of ownership for such Registrable Securities not bearing a restrictive legend, (iv) all Registrable Securities may be sold without any
time, volume or manner limitations pursuant to Rule 144 or any similar provision then in effect under the Securities Act in the opinion of counsel to the Company, which counsel shall be reasonably acceptable to the Investors, or (v) one (1)
year from the Effective Date.
 

(c)      Prior to the Effective Date, the rights to cause the Company to register Registrable Securities granted to the Investors by the Company under Section 4 of this Agreement may be assigned in full by an Investor in
connection with a transfer by such Investor of not less than 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock in a single transaction to a single transferee purchasing as principal, provided, however, that (i) such transfer is otherwise effected in
accordance with applicable securities laws; (ii) such Investor gives prior written notice to the Company; and (iii) such transferee agrees to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement in a form reasonably satisfactory to the
Company, and such transfer is otherwise in compliance with this Agreement.
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(d)      If at any time or from time to time after the Effective Date, the Company notifies the Investors in writing of the existence of a Potential Material Event (as defined in Section 4(e) below), the Investors shall not offer

or sell any Registrable Securities or engage in any other transaction involving or relating to Registrable Securities, from the time of the giving of notice with respect to a Potential Material Event until the Investors receives written notice
from the Company that such Potential Material Event either has been disclosed to the public or no longer constitutes a Potential Material Event.  If a Potential Material Event shall occur prior to the Filing Deadline, then the Company’s
obligation to file such Registration Statement shall be delayed for not more than fifty (50) calendar days.  The Company must, if lawful and practicable, give the Investors notice in writing at least two (2) Trading Days prior to the first day
of the blackout period.
 

(e)      “Potential Material Event” means any of the following: (i) the possession by the Company of material information not ripe for disclosure in a registration statement, as determined in good faith by the Chief
Executive Officer or the Board of Directors of the Company that disclosure of such information in a Registration Statement would be detrimental to the business and affairs of the Company; or (ii) any material engagement or activity by the
Company which would, in the good faith determination of the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors of the Company, be adversely affected by disclosure in a registration statement at such time, which determination shall be
accompanied by a good faith determination by the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors of the Company that the applicable Registration Statement would be materially misleading absent the inclusion of such information;
provided that, (i) the Company shall not use such right with respect to the Registration Statement for more than an aggregate of 90 days in any 12-month period; and (ii) the number of days the Company is required to keep the Registration
Statement effective under Section 4(b)(v) above shall be extended by the number of days for which the Company shall have used such right.
 

(f)       The Investors will cooperate with the Company in all respects in connection with this Agreement, including timely supplying all information reasonably requested by the Company (which shall include all
information regarding the Investors and proposed manner of sale of the Registrable Securities required to be disclosed in any Registration Statement) and executing and returning all documents reasonably requested in connection with the
registration and sale of the Registrable Securities and entering into and performing its obligations under any underwriting agreement, if the offering is an underwritten offering, in usual and customary form, with the managing underwriter
or underwriters of such underwritten offering.  Any delay or delays caused by the Investors, or by any other purchaser of securities of the Company having registration rights similar to those contained herein, by failure to cooperate as
required hereunder shall not constitute a breach or default of the Company under this Agreement.
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(g)      Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if the SEC limits the number of Registrable Securities that may be included in the Registration Statement due to limitations on the use of Rule 415 of the

Securities Act, then the Company shall so advise all the Investors holding Registrable Securities which were proposed to be registered in such Registration Statement, and the number of shares of Common Stock that may be included in the
Registration Statement shall be allocated to the holders of such Registrable Securities so requesting to be registered on a pro rata basis, based on the number of Registrable Securities then held by all such Investors.
 

4.2           Registration Expenses.  All fees, disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses and costs incurred by the Company in connection with the preparation and filing of the Registration Statement and in complying with
applicable securities and “blue sky” laws (including, without limitation, all attorneys' fees of the Company, registration, qualification, notification and filing fees, printing expenses, escrow fees, blue sky fees and expenses and the expense
of any special audits incident to or required by any such registration) shall be borne by the Company.  The Investors shall bear the cost of underwriting and/or brokerage discounts, fees and commissions, if any, applicable to the Registrable
Securities being registered and the fees and expenses of its counsel.  The Company shall qualify any of the Registrable Securities for sale in such states as an Investor reasonably designates.  However, the Company shall not be required to
qualify in any state which will require an escrow or other restriction relating to the Company and/or the sellers, or which will require the Company to qualify to do business in such state or require the Company to file therein any general
consent to service of process.  The Company at its expense will supply each Investor with copies of the applicable Registration Statement and the prospectus included therein and other related documents in such quantities as may be
reasonably requested by such Investor.
 

4.3           Registration Procedures. Whenever the Company is required by any of the provisions of this Agreement to effect the registration of any of the Registrable Securities under the Securities Act, the Company shall (except as
otherwise provided in this Agreement), as expeditiously as possible, subject to the assistance and cooperation as reasonably required of the Investors with respect to each Registration Statement:
 

(a)       prior to the filing with the SEC of any Registration Statement (including any amendments thereto) and the distribution or delivery of any prospectus (including any supplements thereto), provide draft copies thereof
to the Investor and reflect in such documents all such comments as the Investor (and its counsel), reasonably may propose respecting the Selling Shareholders and Plan of Distribution sections (or equivalents) and (B) furnish to the Investor
such numbers of copies of a prospectus including a preliminary prospectus or any amendment or supplement to any prospectus, as applicable, in conformity with the requirements of the Securities Act, and such other documents, as the
Investor may reasonably request in order to facilitate the public sale or other disposition of the Registrable Securities owned by the Investor;
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(b)      register and qualify the Registrable Securities covered by the Registration Statement under such other securities or blue sky laws of such jurisdictions as the Investor shall reasonably request (subject to the

limitations set forth in Section 4.2 above), and do any and all other acts and things which may be necessary or advisable to enable the Investor to consummate the public sale or other disposition in such jurisdiction of the securities owned
by the Investor;
 

(c)      cause the Registrable Securities to be quoted or listed on each service on which the Common Stock of the Company is then quoted or listed;
 

(d)      notify the Investor, at any time when a prospectus relating thereto covered by the Registration Statement is required to be delivered under the Securities Act, of the happening of any event of which it has knowledge
as a result of which the prospectus included in the Registration Statement, as then in effect, includes an untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein not misleading in the light of  the circumstances then existing, and the Company shall prepare and file a curative amendment as promptly as commercially reasonable;
 

(e)      as promptly as practicable after becoming aware of such event, notify the Investor (or, in the event of an underwritten offering, the managing underwriters) of the issuance by the SEC of any stop order or other
suspension of the effectiveness of the Registration Statement at the earliest possible time and take all lawful action to effect the withdrawal, recession or removal of such stop order or other suspension; and
 

(f)      provide a transfer agent and registrar for all securities registered pursuant to the Registration Statement and a CUSIP number for all such securities.
 

4.4           Piggyback Registration Rights. In addition to the registration rights set forth in Section 4.1 of this Agreement, if the Registration Statement to be filed pursuant to Section 4.1 is not filed by the Filing Deadline, or
otherwise declared effective by the SEC, then the Investors shall also have certain “piggy-back” registration rights as follows:
 

(a)      If at any time after the issuance of the Registrable Securities, the Company shall file with the SEC a registration statement under the Securities Act registering any shares of equity securities (but other than
registration relating solely to employee benefit plans on Form S-8 or similar forms that may be promulgated in the future, or a registration relating solely to a SEC Rule 145 transaction on Form S-4 or similar forms that may be
promulgated in the future), the Company shall give written notice to the Investors prior to such filing.
 

(b)      Within twenty (20) calendar days after such notice from the Company, each Investor shall give written notice to the Company whether or not it desires to have all of its Registrable Securities included in the
registration statement.  If an Investor fails to give such notice within such period, such Investor shall not have further rights hereunder to have its Registrable Securities registered pursuant to such registration statement.  If an Investor gives
such notice, then the Company shall include such Investor’s Registrable Securities in the registration statement, at Company’s sole cost and expense, subject to the remaining terms of this Section 4.4.
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(c)      If the registration statement relates to an underwritten offering, and the underwriter shall determine in writing that the total number of shares of equity securities to be included in the offering, including the

Registrable Securities, shall exceed the amount which the underwriter deems to be appropriate for the offering, the number of shares of the Registrable Securities shall be reduced in the same proportion as the remainder of the shares in the
offering and the Investor’s Registrable Securities included in such registration statement will be reduced proportionately, provided, however, that securities being offered by the Company or by a shareholder pursuant to demand registration
rights shall be entitled to priority over the Registrable Securities.  Any Registrable Securities excluded or withdrawn from such underwriting shall be excluded and withdrawn from the registration. For this purpose, if other securities in the
registration statement are derivative securities, their underlying shares shall be included in the computation.  The Investor shall enter into such agreements as may be reasonably required by the underwriters and the Investor shall pay the
underwriters commissions relating to the sale of their respective Registrable Securities.
 

(d)      The Investors shall have an unlimited number of opportunities to have the Registrable Securities registered under this Section 4.4, provided that the Company shall not be required to register any Registrable
Security or keep any Registration Statement effective beyond such period required under Section 4.1(b) of this Agreement.
 

(e)      The Investors shall furnish in writing to the Company such information as the Company shall reasonably require in connection with a registration statement.
 

(f)       The Company shall have the right to terminate or withdraw any registration initiated by it under this Section 4.4 prior to the effectiveness of such registration, whether or not any Investor has elected to include
securities in such registration.
 

4.5           Indemnity and Contribution.
 

(a)      The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless each Investor, its officers, directors, employees, partners, legal counsel and accountants, and each person controlling such Investor within the meaning of
Section 15 of the Securities Act, from and against any direct losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) to which such Investor or such other indemnified persons may become
subject  (including in settlement of litigation, whether commenced or threatened) insofar as such losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of, or are based upon, any untrue
statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact in the Registration Statement, including all documents filed as a part thereof and information deemed to be a part thereof, on the
effective date thereof, or any amendment or supplements thereto, and the Company will, as incurred, reimburse such Investor, each of its officers, directors, employees, partners, legal counsel and accountants, and each person controlling
such Investor, for any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, defending or preparing to defend or settling such action, proceeding or claim; provided, however, that the Company shall not be liable in any such case to
the extent that such loss, claim, damage, expense or liability (or action or proceeding in respect thereof) arises out of, or is based upon, (i) the failure of such Investor, or any of its agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, to comply
with such Investor's covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement with respect to the sale of Registrable Securities, (ii) an untrue statement or omission in such Registration Statement in reliance upon and in conformity with
written information furnished to the Company by an instrument duly executed by or on behalf of such Investor, or any of its agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, and stated to be specifically for use in preparation of the
Registration Statement and not corrected in a timely manner by such Investor in writing or (iii) an untrue statement or omission in any prospectus that is corrected in any subsequent prospectus, or supplement or amendment thereto, that
was delivered to such Investor prior to the pertinent sale or sales by such Investor and not delivered by such Investor to the individual or entity to which it made such sale(s) prior to such sale(s).
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(b)      Each Investor, severally and not jointly, agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company, its officers, directors, employees, partners, legal counsel and accountants, and each person controlling the Company

within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act, from and against any direct losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) to which the Company or such other indemnified persons may
become subject (under the Securities Act or otherwise) insofar as such losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of, or are based upon (i) the failure of such Investor or any of its
agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, to comply with the covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement with respect to the sale of Registrable Securities; or (ii) an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a
material fact or omission to state a material fact in the Registration Statement in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished to the Company by an instrument duly executed by or on behalf of such Investor and
stated to be specifically for use in preparation of the Registration Statement; provided, however, that such Investor shall not be liable in any such case for (i) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission in any prospectus or
Registration Statement which statement has been corrected, in writing, by such Investor and delivered to the Company before the sale from which such loss occurred; or (ii) an untrue statement or omission in any prospectus that is
corrected in any subsequent prospectus, or supplement or amendment thereto, that was delivered to such Investor prior to the pertinent sale or sales by such Investor and delivered by such Investor to the individual or entity to which it made
such sale(s) prior to such sale(s), and such Investor will, as incurred, reimburse the Company for any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, defending or preparing to defend any such action, proceeding or
claim.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, such Investor shall not be liable or required to indemnify the Company or such other indemnified persons in the aggregate for any amount in excess of the net amount received by such Investor from
the sale of the Registrable Securities, to which such loss, claim, damage, expense or liability (or action proceeding in respect thereof) relates.
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(c)      Promptly after receipt by any indemnified person of a notice of a claim or the beginning of any action in respect of which indemnity is to be sought against an indemnifying person pursuant to this Section 4.5, such

indemnified person shall notify the indemnifying person in writing of such claim or of the commencement of such action and, subject to the provisions hereinafter stated, in case any such action shall be brought against an indemnified
person, the indemnifying person shall be entitled to participate therein, and, to the extent that it shall wish, to assume the defense thereof.  After notice from the indemnifying person to such indemnified person of the indemnifying person’s
election to assume the defense thereof, the indemnifying person shall not be liable to such indemnified person for any legal expenses subsequently incurred by such indemnified person in connection with the defense thereof; provided,
however, that if there exists or shall exist a conflict of interest that would, in the opinion of counsel to the indemnified party, make it inappropriate under applicable laws or codes of professional responsibility for the same counsel to
represent both the indemnified person and such indemnifying person or any affiliate or associate thereof, the indemnified person shall be entitled to retain its own counsel at the expense of such indemnifying person; provided, further, that
the indemnifying person shall not be obligated to assume the expenses of more than one counsel to represent all indemnified persons.  In the event of such separate counsel, such counsel shall agree to reasonably cooperate.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, no indemnifying person shall be required to pay any amounts of indemnification or contribution with respect to a settlement of any Proceeding or losses, claims, damages, expenses or
liabilities if such settlement is effected without the consent of the indemnifying person.
 

(d)      If the indemnification provided for in this Section 4.5 is unavailable or insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified party under subsection (a) or (b) above in respect of any direct losses, claims, damages, expenses
or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) referred to therein, then each indemnifying party shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such indemnified party as a result of such losses, claims, damages, expenses or
liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the Company on the one hand and the Investors, or its respective agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, on
the other in connection with the statements or omissions which resulted in such losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof), as well as any other relevant equitable considerations.  The
relative fault shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or the omission or alleged omission to state a material fact relates to information supplied by the
Company on the one hand or an Investor, or its agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, on the other and the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or
omission.  The Company and such Investor agree that it would not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to this subsection (d) were determined by any other method of allocation which does not take into account the equitable
considerations referred to above in this subsection (d).  The amount paid or payable by an indemnified party as a result of the losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) referred to above in
this subsection (d) shall be deemed to include any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by such indemnified party in connection with investigating or defending any such action or claim.  No person guilty of fraudulent
misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation.  In any event, such Investor shall not be liable or
required to contribute to the Company in the aggregate for any amount in excess of the net amount received by such Investor from the sale of its Registrable Securities.
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4.6           Market Standoff.    Each Investor hereby agrees that, if so requested by the representative of the lead or managing underwriters of a public offering (the “Managing Underwriter”), such Investor shall not, without the

prior consent of the Managing Underwriter (i) lend, offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or
dispose of, directly or indirectly, any Registrable Securities or any other securities of the Company or (ii) enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of
ownership of the Registrable Securities, whether any such transaction described in clause (i) or (ii) above is to be settled by delivery of Registrable Securities or such other securities, in cash or otherwise, during the period specified by the
Managing Underwriter (the “Market Standoff Period”), with such period not to exceed 10 days prior to the anticipated effective date of such registration statement and 90 days following the effective date of such registration statement.
Each Investor further agrees to execute such agreements as may be reasonably requested by the underwriters in the Company’s offering on the same terms of this Section 4.6.
 

ARTICLE V.
TERMINATION

 
5.1           Intentionally omitted.

 
ARTICLE VI.

MISCELLANEOUS
 

6.1           Certificates; Resales.
 
(a)      The Securities may only be disposed of in compliance with state and federal securities laws.  In connection with any transfer of the Securities other than pursuant to an effective registration statement or Rule 144(b)(1), to the
Company or to an Affiliate of an Investor, the Company may require the transferor thereof to provide to the Company an opinion of counsel selected by the transferor, reasonably acceptable to the Company, the form and substance of
which opinion shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Company, to the effect that such transfer does not require registration of such transferred Securities under the Securities Act.
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(b)      Certificates evidencing the Securities will contain the following legend, until such time as they are not required:
 

[NEITHER THESE SECURITIES NOR THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THESE SECURITIES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED] [THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED] WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL
BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY.  [THESE SECURITIES AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THESE SECURITIES] [THESE SECURITIES] MAY BE PLEDGED IN
CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.

 
(c)      Certificates evidencing the Shares and Warrant Shares shall not contain any legend (including the legend set forth in Section 5.1(b) of this Agreement), (i) following a sale of such securities pursuant to an effective registration
statement, or (ii) following any sale of such Shares or Warrant Shares pursuant to Rule 144 (assuming the transferor was not an Affiliate of the Company), or (iii) if such Shares or Warrant Shares are eligible for sale under Rule 144(b)(1),
or (iv) if such legend is not required under applicable requirements of the Securities Act (including judicial interpretations and pronouncements issued by the staff of the SEC).  The Company shall cause its counsel to issue a legal opinion
to the Company’s transfer agent promptly after the Effective Date if required by the Company’s transfer agent to effect the removal of the legend hereunder in contemplation of a sale of Registrable Securities pursuant to the Registration
Statement.  If all or any portion of a Warrant is exercised at a time when there is an effective registration statement to cover the issuance of the Warrant Shares, such Warrant Shares shall be issued free of all legends.  The Company agrees
that at such time as such legend is no longer required under this Section 5.1(c), it will, no later than three Trading Days following the delivery by an Investor to the Company or the Company’s transfer agent of a certificate representing
Warrant Shares issued with a restrictive legend accompanied by a customary representation letter , deliver or cause to be delivered to such Investor a certificate representing such shares that is free from all restrictive and other legends.  The
Company may not make any notation on its records or give instructions to any transfer agent of the Company that enlarge the restrictions on transfer set forth in this Section 5.1(c) except in the case of an Investor or its permitted transferee
becoming an Affiliate.  Certificates for Securities subject to legend removal hereunder shall be transmitted by the transfer agent of the Company to the Investors by crediting the account of the Investor’s prime broker with the Depository
Trust Company System.
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6.2           Indemnification.

 
(a)      Each Investor acknowledges that he, she or it understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations and warranties that are contained herein and hereby agrees, severally and not jointly, to

indemnify, save and hold harmless the Company and its directors, officers, employees and counsel, from and against any and all claims or actions arising out of a breach of any representation, warranty or acknowledgment of such Investor
contained in this Agreement.  Such indemnification shall be deemed to include not only the specific liabilities or obligations with respect to which such indemnity is provided, but also all reasonable costs, expenses, counsel fees and
expenses of settlement relating thereto, whether or not any such liability or obligation shall have been reduced to judgment.  In addition, each Investor’s representations, warranties and indemnification contained herein shall survive such
Investor’s purchase of the Securities hereunder for a period of one year following the date hereof.
 

(b)      The Company acknowledges it understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations and warranties that are contained herein and hereby agrees to indemnify, save and hold harmless each Investor
and its directors, officers, employees and counsel, from and against any and all claims or actions arising out of a breach of any representation, warranty or acknowledgment of the Company contained in this Agreement.  Such
indemnification shall be deemed to include not only the specific liabilities or obligations with respect to which such indemnity is provided, but also all reasonable costs, expenses, counsel fees and expenses of settlement relating thereto,
whether or not any such liability or obligation shall have been reduced to judgment.  In addition, the Company’s representations, warranties and indemnification contained herein shall survive the purchase of the Securities hereunder for a
period of one year following the date hereof.
 

6.3           Abstention from Trading. From the date hereof until the Closing Date, (i) the Investors will not engage in any financial market transactions (whether long, short or other hedging transactions) with respect to the
Company’s Common Stock and (ii) the Company will not, and the Company shall cause its directors and officers and each of its and their respective Affiliates to not, engage in any financial market transactions (whether long, short or other
hedging transactions) with respect to the Company’s Common Stock.
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6.4           Entire Agreement; Amendment.  The parties have not made any representations or warranties with respect to the subject matter hereof not set forth herein.  This Agreement, together with the Warrants and any other

instruments executed simultaneously herewith, constitute the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  All understandings and agreements heretofore between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof are merged in this Agreement and any such instruments, which alone fully and completely expresses their agreement.  This Agreement may not be changed, modified, extended, terminated or discharged orally, but only by an
agreement in writing, which is signed by all of the parties to this Agreement.
 

6.5           Notices.  Any notice required or permitted to be given to a party pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement will be in writing and will be effective on (i) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is
delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth in this Agreement prior to 5:30 p.m. (in the time zone of the recipient of such notice) on a Trading Day, (ii) the next Trading Day after the date of transmission, if such notice or
communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth in this Agreement on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 5:30 p.m. (in the time zone of the recipient of such notice) on any Trading Day, (iii) the 2nd

Trading Day following the date of mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight courier service, including Express Mail, for United States deliveries or (iii) five (5) Trading Days after deposit in the United States mail by
registered or certified mail for United States deliveries.  All notices not delivered personally or by facsimile will be sent with postage and other charges prepaid and properly addressed to the party to be notified at the address set forth below
such party’s signature of this Agreement or at such other address as such party may designate by ten (10) days advance written notice to the other parties hereto. The address for such notices and communications shall be as follows:
 
 If to the Company: Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.

 Hi-Tech Park 2/5
 Givat-Ram
 PO Box 39098
 Jerusalem 91390 Israel
 Attn: Nadav Kidron
 Facsimile:  +972-2-566-0004

With a copy to:
Goldfarb Seligman & Co., Law Offices
Electra Tower, 98 Yigal Alon Street
Tel Aviv 67891, Israel
Attn:  Adam M. Klein, Adv.
Facsimile:  +972-3-608-9855
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 If to an Investor: To the address set forth under such Investor's name
 on the signature pages hereof.
 

6.6           Delays or Omissions.  Except as otherwise specifically provided for hereunder, no party shall be deemed to have waived any of his or her or its rights hereunder or under any other agreement, instrument or document
signed by any of them with respect to the subject matter hereof unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the party waiving said right.  Except as otherwise specifically provided for hereunder, no delay or omission by any party in
exercising any right with respect to the subject matter hereof shall operate as a waiver of such right or of any such other right.  A waiver on any one occasion with respect to the subject matter hereof shall not be construed as a bar to, or
waiver of, any right or remedy on any future occasion.  All rights and remedies with respect to the subject matter hereof, whether evidenced hereby or by any other agreement, instrument or document, will be cumulative, and may be
exercised separately or concurrently.
 

6.7           Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable under applicable law, then such provision shall be excluded from this Agreement, and the balance of this Agreement shall be interpreted as if
such provision was so excluded and shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms.
 

6.8           Successors and Assigns.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors, assigns, heirs, executors and administrators of the parties
hereto.
 

6.9           Counterparts; Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.  Signatures transmitted by
facsimile or scanned and transmitted by electronic mail shall be considered valid and binding signatures.
 

6.10         Survival of Warranties.  The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Company and the Investors contained in or made pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the execution and delivery of this
Agreement and shall in no way be affected by any investigation made by an Investor or the Company.
 

6.11         Further Action.  The parties agree to execute any and all such other and further instruments and documents, and to take any and all such further actions reasonably required to effectuate this Agreement and the intent and
purposes hereof.
 

6.12         Construction.  The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to limit or affect any of the provisions hereof.  The language used in this Agreement will be
deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against any party.  This Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties, and no presumption
or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any provisions of this Agreement.
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6.13           No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced

by, any other Person.
 

6.14           Governing Law; Venue and Waiver of Jury Trial.  This Agreement is to be construed in accordance with and governed  by the  internal  laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to any choice of law rule that
would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction to the rights and duties of the  parties.  The Company and the Investors agree that any suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be brought to any
court of competent jurisdiction sitting in Wilmington, Delaware and that the parties shall submit to the jurisdiction of such court. The parties irrevocably waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection the party may have to the
laying of venue for any such suit, action or proceeding brought in such court.  THE PARTIES ALSO EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT THEY HAVE OR MAY HAVE TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR
PROCEEDING.  If any one or more provisions of this Section 6.14 shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, it is the specific  intent of the parties that such provisions shall be modified to the minimum extent necessary to
make it or its application valid and enforceable.
 

6.15           Replacement of Securities.  If any certificate or instrument evidencing any Securities is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company shall issue or cause to be issued in exchange and substitution for and upon
cancellation thereof, or in lieu of and substitution therefor, a new certificate or instrument, but only upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of such loss, theft or destruction and customary and reasonable
indemnity, if requested.  The applicants for a new certificate or instrument under such circumstances shall also pay any reasonable third-party costs associated with the issuance of such replacement Securities.  If a replacement certificate or
instrument evidencing any Securities is requested due to a mutilation thereof, the Company may require delivery of such mutilated certificate or instrument as a condition precedent to any issuance of a replacement.
 

6.16           Independent Nature of Investors’ Obligations and Rights.  The obligations of each Investor under any Transaction Document are several and not joint with the obligations of any other Investor, and no Investor shall be
responsible in any way for the performance or non-performance of the obligations of any other Investor under any Transaction Document.  Nothing contained herein or in any other Transaction Document, and no action taken by any
Investor pursuant thereto, shall be deemed to constitute the Investors as a partnership, an association, a joint venture or any other kind of entity, or create a presumption that the Investors are in any way acting in concert or as a group with
respect to such obligations or the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.  Each Investor shall be entitled to independently protect and enforce its rights, including without limitation, the rights arising out of this
Agreement or out of the other Transaction Documents, and it shall not be necessary for any other Investor to be joined as an additional party in any proceeding for such purpose.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized signatories as of the date first indicated above.

 
 ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.  
    
 By:   
  Name: Nadav Kidron  
  Title:   Chief Executive Officer  
    

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

SIGNATURE PAGES FOR INVESTORS FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Securities Purchase Agreement as of the date first written above.

 
Investment Amount:

 
     ___________________Units x $0.37 per Unit = $_____________

 
(Each Unit consists of one Share and a Warrant convertible into 0.50 Shares)

 
Name of Investor: _______________________

Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investor:_____________________________

Name of Authorized Signatory: _______________________________________________

Title of Authorized Signatory: _________________________________________________

Email Address of Investor:  _____________________

Phone number of Investor: _______________________
 
Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number _______________________________

Address for Notice of Investor:

_______________________

_______________________
_______________________
_______________________
_______________________
Facsimile:  ________________

 
Address for Delivery of Securities for Investor (if not same as above):
____________________________________________
____________________________________________
____________________________________________
____________________________________________
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SCHEDULE 1

Investor Name Number of Shares Number of Warrant Shares (50% of the Number of
Shares)

Investment
Amount

 
___________

 

 
__________

 
___________

 
$________
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SCHEDULE 2

WIRE TRANSFER INSTRUCTIONS (US DOLLARS)

HSBC BANK USA ABA 021001088
452 FIFTH AVENUE

NEW YORK, N. Y. 10018
FAVOR OF ACCOUNT NAME:  ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 605154082
SWIFT MRMDUS33
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Exhibit A.

NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE
SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), AND,
ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE
EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES
LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY. THIS
SECURITY AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH
SECURITIES.
 

COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT
 

To Purchase ______ Shares of Common Stock of
 

ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.
 
THIS COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT (the “Warrant”) certifies that, for value received, _________  (the “Holder”), is entitled, upon the terms and subject to the limitations on exercise and the conditions hereinafter set forth,
at any time on or after the date hereof (the “Initial Exercise Date”) and on or prior to the close of business on the fifth anniversary of the Initial Exercise Date (the “Termination Date”) but not thereafter, to subscribe for and purchase from
Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), up to ________ shares (the “Warrant Shares”) of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”).  The purchase price of one
share of Common Stock under this Warrant shall be equal to the Exercise Price, as defined in Section 2(b).

Section 1.   Definitions.  Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”), dated November __, 2012, among the
Company and the purchasers signatory thereto.
 
 

 



 
 
Section 2.       Exercise.
 
(a)    Exercise of Warrant.  Exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant may be made, in whole or in part, at any time or times on or after the Initial Exercise Date and on or before the Termination Date by delivery
to the Company of a duly executed facsimile copy of the Notice of Exercise Form annexed hereto at the headquarters of the Company (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by notice in writing to the registered
Holder at the address of such Holder appearing on the books of the Company); and within 5 Trading Days of the date said Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company, the Company shall have received payment of the aggregate
Exercise Price of the shares thereby purchased by wire transfer or cashier’s check drawn on a United States bank. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Warrant to the
Company until the Holder has purchased all of the Warrant Shares available hereunder and the Warrant has been exercised in full, in which case the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company for cancellation within 5 Trading
Days of the date the final Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company.  Partial exercises of this Warrant resulting in purchases of a portion of the total number of Warrant Shares available hereunder shall have the effect of lowering the
outstanding number of Warrant Shares purchasable hereunder in an amount equal to the applicable number of Warrant Shares purchased.  The Holder and the Company shall maintain records showing the number of Warrant Shares
purchased hereunder and the date of such purchases.  The Company shall deliver any objection to any Notice of Exercise Form within three Business Days of receipt of such notice.  The Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of this
Warrant, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph, following the purchase of a portion of the Warrant Shares hereunder, the number of Warrant Shares available for purchase hereunder at any given time
may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.
 
(b)    Exercise Price.  The exercise price per share of the Common Stock under this Warrant shall be $0.50, subject to adjustment hereunder (the “Exercise Price”).
 
(c)    Intentionally Left Blank
 
(d)    Mechanics of Exercise.
 
(i)                                                Authorization of Warrant Shares.  The Company covenants that all Warrant Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant will, upon exercise of the
purchase rights represented by this Warrant, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and charges created by the Company in respect of the issue thereof (other than taxes in respect of any
transfer occurring contemporaneously with such issue).
 
(ii)                           Delivery of Certificates Upon Exercise.  Certificates for shares purchased hereunder shall be transmitted by the transfer agent of the Company to the Holder by crediting the account of the Holder’s prime
broker with the Depository Trust Company through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission (“DWAC”) system if the Company is a participant in such system, so long as the certificates therefor are not required to bear a legend
regarding restriction on transferability, and otherwise by physical delivery to the address specified by the Holder in the Notice of Exercise within three (3) Trading Days from the delivery to the Company of the Notice of Exercise Form,
surrender of this Warrant (if required) and payment of the aggregate Exercise Price as set forth above (“Warrant Share Delivery Date”).  This Warrant shall be deemed to have been exercised on the date the Exercise Price is received by the
Company. The Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have been issued, and Holder or any other person so designated to be named therein shall be deemed to have become a holder of record of such shares for all purposes, as of the date the
Warrant has been exercised by payment to the Company of the Exercise Price (or cashless exercise, if permitted) and all taxes required to be paid by the Holder, if any, pursuant to Section 2(d)(vii) prior to the issuance of such shares, have
been paid.
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(iii)                                              Delivery of New Warrants Upon Exercise.  If this Warrant shall have been exercised in part, the Company shall, at the request of a Holder and upon surrender of this Warrant certificate, at the time of
delivery of the certificate or certificates representing Warrant Shares, deliver to Holder a new Warrant evidencing the rights of Holder to purchase the unpurchased Warrant Shares called for by this Warrant, which new Warrant shall in all
other respects be identical with this Warrant.
 
(iv)                                              Rescission Rights. If the Company fails to deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing the Warrant Shares by the close of business on the third Trading Day after the Warrant Share Delivery
Date, then the Holder will have the right to rescind such exercise by providing written notice that is received by the Company prior to the issuance of the Warrant Shares.
 
(v)                                               Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Certificates Upon Exercise. In addition to any other rights available to the Holder, if the Company fails to deliver to the Holder a certificate
representing the Warrant Shares pursuant to an exercise by the close of business on the third Trading Day after the Warrant Share Delivery Date, and if after such date the Holder is required to purchase (in an open market transaction or
otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a prior sale by the Holder of the Warrant Shares which the Holder anticipated receiving upon such exercise (a “Buy-In”), then the Company shall within three Trading Days
after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s discretion, either (1) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including brokerage commissions, if any) for the shares of Common Stock less the
aggregate Exercise Price (the “Buy-In Price”), at which point the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificate (and to issue such Common Stock), solely with respect to such exercise, shall terminate or (2) promptly honor its obligation
to deliver to the Holder a certificate representing such Common Stock and pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In-Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common Stock, times (B) the
closing price on the date of the event giving rise to the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificates. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including,
without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely deliver certificates representing Warrant Shares upon exercise of the Warrant as required pursuant to the terms
hereof.
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(vi)         No Fractional Shares or Scrip.  No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant. As to any fraction of a share which Holder would otherwise be
entitled to purchase upon such exercise, the Company shall at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the Exercise Price or round up to the next whole
share.
 
(vii)         Charges, Taxes and Expenses.  Issuance and delivery of certificates for Warrant Shares shall be made without charge to the Holder for any issue or transfer tax, withholding tax, transfer agent fee or other
incidental tax or expense in respect of the issuance of such certificate, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid by the Company, and such certificates shall be issued in the name of the Holder or in such name or names as may be
directed by the Holder; provided, however, that in the event certificates for Warrant Shares are to be issued in a name other than the name of the Holder, this Warrant when surrendered for exercise shall be accompanied by the Assignment
Form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder; and the Company may require, as a condition thereto, the payment of a sum sufficient to reimburse it for any transfer tax incidental thereto.
 
(e)    Closing of Books.  The Company will not close its stockholder books or records in any manner which prevents the timely exercise of this Warrant, pursuant to the terms hereof.
 
Section 3.    Certain Adjustments.
 
(a)    Stock Dividends and Splits.  If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding: (A) pays a stock dividend or otherwise make a distribution or distributions on shares of its Common Stock or any other equity or
equity equivalent securities payable in shares of Common Stock (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any shares of Common Stock issued by the Company upon exercise of Warrant), (B) subdivides outstanding shares of
Common Stock into a larger number of shares, or (C) combines (including by way of reverse stock split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each case the Exercise Price shall be multiplied by a
fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event. Any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 3(a) shall become effective immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution
and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision or combination.
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(b)    Reclassification Transaction.  In the event of a reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock of the Company at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, including, without limitation, as
a result of a merger or consolidation, the Company shall thereafter deliver at the time of purchase of Warrant Shares under this Warrant and in lieu of the number of Warrant Shares in respect of which the right to purchase is then being
exercised, the number of shares of the Company of the appropriate class or classes resulting from said reclassification or reclassifications as the Holder would have been entitled to receive in respect of the number of Warrant Shares in
respect of which the right of purchase hereunder is then being exercised had the right of purchase been exercised before such reclassification or reorganization.
 
(c)    Adjustments for Other Dividends and Distributions.  In the event the Company, at any time or from time to time while this Warrant is outstanding, shall make or issue, or fix a record date for the determination of holders of
Common Stock entitled to receive a dividend or other distribution payable in securities of the Company (other than shares of Common Stock) or in cash or other property (other than cash out of earnings or earned surplus, determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles), then and in each such event provision shall be made so that the Holder shall receive upon exercise hereof, in addition to the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
hereunder, the kind and amount of securities of the Company and/or cash and other property to which the Holder would have been entitled to receive had this Warrant been exercised into Common Stock on the date of such event and had
the Holder thereafter, during the period from the date of such event to and including the Exercise Date, retained any such securities receivable, giving application to all adjustments called for during such period under this Section 3 with
respect to the rights of the Holder, provided, however, (x) in the event that the holders of Common Stock have received options, warrants or rights that have expired prior to the date of exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall not be
entitled to receive such options, warrants or rights and (y) in the event of a distribution consisting of cash as referred to above, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such distribution will be proportionately reduced by the
amount of the distribution per share of Common Stock such Holder would have been entitled to receive had such Holder been the holder of record of such Common Stock as of the date on which holders of Common Stock received or
became entitled to receive such cash distribution.
 
(d)         Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, (A) the Company effects any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another Person, (B) the Company effects any sale of all or
substantially all of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (C) any tender offer or exchange offer is accepted by the holders of more than the 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not including any Common Stock
held by the Person or Persons making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the Persons making or party to, such tender or exchange offer), or (D) the Company effects any reclassification of the Warrant Shares or any compulsory
share exchange (other than a share split or reverse share split) pursuant to which the Warrant Shares are effectively converted into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property (in any such case, a “Fundamental Transaction”), then,
upon any subsequent exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Warrant Share that would have been issuable upon such exercise immediately prior to the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction, at the
option of the Holder, upon exercise of this Warrant, the number of shares of stock, or other securities or property of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving corporation, and any additional
consideration (the “Alternate Consideration”) receivable upon or as a result of such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or disposition of assets by a Holder to which the Holder would have been entitled if the Holder had
exercised its rights pursuant to the Warrant immediately prior thereto, provided, however, that if the Fundamental Transaction involves the acquisition by a third party of all of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company for cash, this
Warrant shall terminate upon, and be no longer exercisable after, the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction.  For purposes of any such exercise, the determination of the Exercise Price shall be appropriately adjusted to apply to
such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one Warrant Share in such Fundamental Transaction, and the Company shall apportion the Exercise Price among the Alternate
Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the Alternate Consideration.  If holders of Warrant Shares are given any choice as to the securities, cash or property to be received in a
Fundamental Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon any exercise of this Warrant following such Fundamental Transaction.  To the extent necessary to effectuate the
foregoing provisions, any successor to the Company or surviving entity in such Fundamental Transaction shall issue to the Holder a new warrant consistent with the foregoing provisions and evidencing the Holder’s right to exercise such
warrant into Alternate Consideration. The terms of any agreement pursuant to which a Fundamental Transaction is effected shall include terms requiring any such successor or surviving entity to comply with the provisions of this Section
3(d) and insuring that this Warrant (or any such replacement security) will be similarly adjusted upon any subsequent transaction analogous to a Fundamental Transaction.
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(e)    Voluntary Adjustment By Company.  The Company may at any time during the term of this Warrant reduce the then current Exercise Price to any amount and for any period of time deemed appropriate by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
 
(f)         Number of Warrant Shares. Simultaneously with any adjustment to the Exercise Price pursuant to of this Section 3, the number of shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be proportionately adjusted so that after
such adjustment the aggregate Exercise Price payable hereunder for the increased or decreased number of Warrant Shares shall be the same as the aggregate Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such adjustment.
 
(g)    Calculations. All calculations under this Section 3 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For purposes of this Section 3, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be
issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) issued and outstanding.
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(h)    Notice to Holders.
 
(i)         Adjustment to Exercise Price.  Whenever the Exercise Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 3, the Company shall promptly mail to each Holder a notice setting forth the Exercise Price after
such adjustment and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.
 
(ii)         Notice to Allow Exercise by Holder. If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on the Common Stock; (B) the Company shall declare a special nonrecurring cash
dividend on or a redemption of the Common Stock; (C) the Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class or of any rights;
(D) the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be required in connection with any reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or transfer of all or substantially
all of the assets of the Company, of any compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or property; (E) the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or
winding up of the affairs of the Company; then, in each case, the Company shall notify the Holder at least 10 calendar days prior to the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (x) the date on which a record
is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to such dividend, distributions,
redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is expected that
holders of the Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange;
provided that the failure to mail such notice or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice.  Any such notice or information published via
international wire or furnished to or filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission shall satisfy this notice requirement.
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Section 4.   Transfer of Warrant.
 
(a)    Transferability.  Subject to compliance with any applicable securities laws and the conditions set forth in Section 4(d) hereof and to the provisions of Section 5.7 of the Purchase Agreement, this Warrant and all rights
hereunder (including, without limitation, any registration rights) are transferable, in whole or in part, upon surrender of this Warrant at the principal office of the Company or its designated agent, together with a written assignment of this
Warrant substantially in the form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder or its agent or attorney and funds sufficient to pay any transfer taxes payable upon the making of such transfer. Upon such surrender and, if required, such
payment, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in the name of the assignee or assignees and in the denomination or denominations specified in such instrument of assignment, and shall issue to the assignor a
new Warrant evidencing the portion of this Warrant not so assigned, and this Warrant shall promptly be cancelled. A Warrant, if properly assigned, may be exercised by a new holder for the purchase of Warrant Shares without having a new
Warrant issued.
 
(b)    New Warrants.  This Warrant may be divided or combined with other Warrants upon presentation hereof at the aforesaid office of the Company, together with a written notice specifying the names and denominations in
which new Warrants are to be issued, signed by the Holder or its agent or attorney. Subject to compliance with Section 4(a), as to any transfer which may be involved in such division or combination, the Company shall execute and deliver
a new Warrant or Warrants in exchange for the Warrant or Warrants to be divided or combined in accordance with such notice.
 
(c)    Warrant Register.  The Company shall register this Warrant, upon records to be maintained by the Company for that purpose (the “Warrant Register”), in the name of the record Holder hereof from time to time. The Company
may deem and treat the registered Holder of this Warrant as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of any exercise hereof or any distribution to the Holder, and for all other purposes, absent actual notice to the contrary.
 
(d)    Transfer Restrictions.  If, at the time of the surrender of this Warrant in connection with any transfer of this Warrant, the transfer of this Warrant shall not be registered pursuant to an effective registration statement under the
Securities Act and under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, the Company may require, as a condition of allowing such transfer (i) that the Holder or transferee of this Warrant, as the case may be, furnish to the Company a written
opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that such transfer may be made without registration under the Securities Act and under
applicable state securities or blue sky laws, (ii) that the holder or transferee execute and deliver to the Company an investment letter in form and substance acceptable to the Company and (iii) that the transferee be an “accredited investor”
as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act or a qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act.
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Section 5.    Miscellaneous.
 
(a)    No Rights as Shareholder Until Exercise.  This Warrant does not entitle the Holder to any voting rights or other rights as a shareholder of the Company prior to the exercise hereof. Upon the surrender of this Warrant and the
payment of the aggregate Exercise Price, the Warrant Shares so purchased shall be and be deemed to be issued to such Holder as the record owner of such shares as of the close of business on the later of the date of such surrender or
payment.
 
(b)    Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. The Company covenants that upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant or any stock
certificate relating to the Warrant Shares, and in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to it (which, in the case of the Warrant, shall not include the posting of any bond), and upon surrender and
cancellation of such Warrant or stock certificate, if mutilated, the Company will make and deliver a new Warrant or stock certificate of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in lieu of such Warrant or stock certificate.
 
(c)    Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc.  If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall not be a Business Day, then such action may be taken or such right may
be exercised on the next succeeding Business Day.
 
(d)    Authorized Shares.
 
The Company covenants that during the period the Warrant is outstanding, it will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares to provide for the issuance of the Warrant Shares upon the exercise of
any purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company further covenants that its issuance of this Warrant shall constitute full authority to its officers who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the
necessary certificates for the Warrant Shares upon the exercise of the purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company will take all such reasonable action as may be necessary to assure that such Warrant Shares may be issued as provided
herein without violation of any applicable law or regulation, or of any requirements of the Trading Market upon which the Common Stock may be listed.
 
Except and to the extent waived or consented to by the Holder, the Company shall not by any action, including, without limitation, amending its certificate of incorporation or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation,
merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in the carrying out of all such
terms and in the taking of all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to protect the rights of Holder as set forth in this Warrant against impairment.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company will (a) not
increase the par value of any Warrant Shares above the amount payable therefor upon such exercise immediately prior to such increase in par value, (b) take all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the Company may
validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable Warrant Shares upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (c) use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all such authorizations, exemptions or consents from any public regulatory body
having jurisdiction thereof as may be necessary to enable the Company to perform its obligations under this Warrant.
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(e)                     Jurisdiction.  All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Warrant shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the Purchase Agreement.
 
(f)                      Restrictions.  The Holder acknowledges that the Warrant Shares acquired upon the exercise of this Warrant, if not registered, will have restrictions upon resale imposed by state and federal securities laws.
 
(g)                     Nonwaiver and Expenses. No course of dealing or any delay or failure to exercise any right hereunder on the part of Holder shall operate as a waiver of such right or otherwise prejudice Holder’s rights, powers or
remedies, notwithstanding the fact that all rights hereunder terminate on the Termination Date. If the Company willfully and knowingly fails to comply with any provision of this Warrant, which results in any damages to the Holder, and if
the Holder shall prevail against the Company in a final non-appealable court judgment, the Company shall pay to Holder such amounts as shall be sufficient to cover any costs and expenses including, but not limited to, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, including those of appellate proceedings, incurred by Holder in collecting any amounts due pursuant hereto or in otherwise enforcing any of its rights, powers or remedies hereunder.
 
(h)                     Notices.  Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered to the Holder by the Company shall be delivered in accordance with the notice provisions of the Purchase Agreement.
 
(i)                      Limitation of Liability.  No provision hereof, in the absence of any affirmative action by Holder to exercise this Warrant to purchase Warrant Shares, and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges of Holder, shall
give rise to any liability of Holder for the purchase price of any Common Stock or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.
 
(j)      Remedies. Holder, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law, including recovery of damages, will be entitled to specific performance of its rights under this Warrant, without duplication. The
Company agrees that monetary damages would not be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of a breach by it of the provisions of this Warrant and hereby agrees to waive and not to assert the defense in any action for
specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate.
 
 

A - 10



 
 
(k)                     Successors and Assigns.  Subject to applicable securities laws, this Warrant and the rights and obligations evidenced hereby shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors of the Company and the
successors and permitted assigns of Holder. The provisions of this Warrant are intended to be for the benefit of all Holders from time to time of this Warrant and shall be enforceable by any such Holder or holder of Warrant Shares.
 
(l)                      Amendment.  This Warrant may be modified or amended or the provisions hereof waived with the written consent of the Company and the Holder.
 
(m)                    Severability.  Wherever possible, each provision of this Warrant shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Warrant shall be prohibited by or invalid
under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provisions or the remaining provisions of this Warrant.
 
(n)     Headings.  The headings used in this Warrant are for the convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose, be deemed a part of this Warrant.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be executed by its officer thereunto duly authorized.
 
ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.
 
 By:   
  Name:  Nadav Kidron  
  Title:    Chief Executive Officer  
    
Dated: November __, 2012
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE
 
TO: Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Hi-Tech Park 2/5
Givat-Ram
PO Box 39098
Jerusalem 91390 Israel
Attn: Nadav Kidron

 
(1)    The undersigned hereby elects to purchase __________ Warrant Shares of the Company pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant (only if exercised in full), and tenders herewith payment of the exercise price in full,
together with all applicable transfer taxes, if any.
 
(2)    Payment shall take the form of (check applicable box):
 
o in lawful money of the United States; or
 
o the cancellation of such number of Warrant Shares as is necessary, in accordance with the formula set forth in Section 2(c), to exercise this Warrant with respect to the maximum number of Warrant Shares purchasable pursuant to the
cashless exercise procedure set forth in Section 2(c). [Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of a print-out of the Bloomberg screen showing the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, as defined therein.]
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(3)    Please issue a certificate or certificates representing said Warrant Shares in the name of the undersigned or in such other name as is specified below:
 

_________________________________________
 
The Warrant Shares shall be delivered to the following:
 
__________________________________________
 
__________________________________________
 
__________________________________________
 
(4)   Accredited Investor.  The undersigned is an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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[SIGNATURE OF HOLDER]
 
Name of Investing Entity: __________________________________________
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investing Entity: _______________________________
 
Name of Authorized Signatory: __________________________________________
 
Title of Authorized Signatory: ___________________________________________
 
Date: _______________________
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ASSIGNMENT FORM
 

(To assign the foregoing warrant, execute
 

this form and supply required information.
 

Do not use this form to exercise the warrant.)
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the foregoing Warrant and all rights evidenced thereby are hereby assigned to whose address is
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Dated: _____________________
 
Holder’s Signature:                                                                           
 
Holder’s Address: _________________________
 
_________________________
 
_________________________
 
Signature Guaranteed: _____________________________
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NOTE: The signature to this Assignment Form must correspond with the name as it appears on the face of the Warrant, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever, and must be guaranteed by a bank or trust
company.  Officers of corporations and those acting in a fiduciary or other representative capacity should file proper evidence of authority to assign the foregoing Warrant.
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Exhibit 10.20
 

EXECUTION VERSION
 

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
 

This Securities Purchase Agreement (this "Agreement") is dated as of November 5, 2012, among Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and the investors identified on the signature page hereto
(each, an "Investor" and collectively the “Investors”).
 

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Rule 506 promulgated thereunder, the Company
desires to issue and sell to each Investor, and each Investor, severally and not jointly, desires to purchase from the Company certain securities of the Company, as more fully described in this Agreement.
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the
Investors agree as follows:
 

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS

 
1.1           Definitions.  In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, for all purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated in this Section 1.1:

 
"Affiliate" means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common control with a Person, as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 144.

 
“Closing” means the closing of the purchase and sale of the Securities pursuant to Section 2.1.

 
"Closing Date" means the Trading Day when all of the all conditions precedent to (A) the Investors’ obligations to pay the Investment Amount and (B) the Company’s obligations to deliver the Securities have been

satisfied or waived.
 

"Common Stock" means the common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share, and any other class of securities into which such common stock may hereafter be reclassified or changed into.
 
 

 



 
 

"Investment Amount" means, with respect to each Investor, the aggregate amount to be paid for Shares and Warrants purchased hereunder as indicated below such Investor's name on the signature page of this
Agreement and as set forth on Schedule 1.
 

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 

“Liens” means a lien, charge, security interest, encumbrance, right of first refusal, preemptive right or other restriction.
 

"Per Unit Purchase Price" means $0.37.
 

"Person" means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability company, joint stock company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof)
or other entity of any kind.
 

"Rule 144" means Rule 144 promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC having substantially
the same effect as such Rule.
 

"SEC" means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
 

"Securities" means the Shares, the Warrants and the Warrant Shares.
 

"Shares" means the shares of Common Stock issued or issuable to the Investors pursuant to this Agreement.
 

"Short Sales" means, without limitation, all "short sales" as defined in Rule 200 of Regulation SHO promulgated under the Exchange Act.
 

"Trading Day" means any day other than Friday, Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York or Israel are authorized or required by law to remain closed.
 

"Transaction Documents" means this Agreement, the Warrants and any other documents or agreements executed in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder.
 

"Warrants" means the Common Stock purchase warrants in the form of Exhibit A.
 

"Warrant Shares" means the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants.
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ARTICLE II.
PURCHASE AND SALE

 
2.1           Closing.  On the Closing Date, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the Company shall issue and sell to each Investor, severally and not jointly, and each Investor, severally and not jointly, shall

purchase from the Company, the Shares and the Warrants set forth opposite such Investor’s name on Schedule 1. Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3, the Closing shall occur at such location as the parties
shall mutually agree.
 

2.2           Deliveries.
 

(a)      On the date hereof, the Company and each of the Investors shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the other, this Agreement, together with all exhibits and schedules attached thereto, duly executed by an authorized
representative.
 

(b)      On the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to each Investor the following:
 

(i)             a certificate evidencing the number of Shares equal to such Investor’s Investment Amount divided by the Per Unit Purchase Price, registered in the name of such Investor as set forth on Schedule 1; and
 

(ii)            a warrant, registered in the name of such Investor, pursuant to which such Investor shall have the right to acquire the number of shares of Common Stock equal to 50% of the number of Shares issuable
to such Investor pursuant to Section 2.2(i) and
 

(iii)           a certificate of the Secretary of the Company dated the Closing Date, certifying the incumbency and authority of the officers or authorized signatories of the Company who execute this Agreement and
the other Transaction Documents and the truth, correctness and completeness of the following exhibits which shall be attached thereto: (i) a copy of resolutions duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company, in full force and
effect at the time this Agreement is entered into, authorizing the execution of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein, (ii) a copy of the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Company, as amended through the Closing Date, and as filed with and accepted and certified by an appropriate official of the Company’s jurisdiction of incorporation, and (iii) a copy of the By-Laws of the Company,
as amended through the Closing Date.
 

(c)      On the Closing Date, each Investor shall deliver or cause to be delivered (by check or wire transfer) the aggregate amount of the Investor’s Investment Amount in payment for the Shares and Warrants in accordance
with the instructions set forth on Schedule 2 hereof.
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2.3           Closing Conditions.
 

(a)      The obligations of the Company hereunder in connection with the Closing are subject to the following conditions having been met:
 

(i)             the accuracy in all material respects when made and on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Investors contained herein;
 

(ii)            all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Investors contained herein required to be performed at or prior to the Closing Date shall have been performed; and
 

(iii)           the delivery by the Investors of the items set forth in Section 2.2(c) of this Agreement.
 

(b)      The respective obligations of the Investors hereunder in connection with the Closing are subject to the following conditions having been met:
 

(i)             the accuracy in all material respects on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Company contained herein;
(ii)            all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Company contained herein required to be performed at or prior to the Closing Date shall have been performed;

 
(iii)           the delivery by the Company of the items set forth in Section 2.2(b) of this Agreement;

 
(iv)           from the date hereof to the Closing Date, trading in the Common Stock shall not have been suspended by the SEC or the National Association of Securities Dealers over-the-counter electronic bulletin

board (the “OTCBB”).
 

ARTICLE III.
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

 
3.1           Representations and Warranties of the Company.  The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Investors as follows on the date hereof and as of the Closing Date:

 
(a)      Organization, Good Standing and Qualification of the Company.  The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware.  The Company has all

requisite corporate power and authority to own and operate its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted and as proposed to be conducted.  The Company is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is
in good standing in each jurisdiction in which failure to so qualify would materially and adversely affect the business, properties, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company.  The resolutions adopted by the
directors of the Company on August 6, 2012 authorizing the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents have not been amended or modified in any way, have not been rescinded and are in full force and effect on the date
hereof.
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(b)      Corporate Authority; Enforceability.  The Company has full right, power and authority to issue and sell the Securities as herein contemplated and the Company has full power and authority to enter into and perform
its obligations under the Transaction Documents.  The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein have been duly authorized and approved by all
requisite corporate action, and each of the Transaction Documents are a valid and legally binding obligation of the Company.
 

(c)      Conflicts.  Neither the authorization, execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents nor the consummation of the transactions herein and therein contemplated, will (i) conflict with or result in a breach of any
of the terms of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws, (ii) violate any judgment, order, injunction, decree or award of any court or governmental body, having jurisdiction over the Company, against or binding on the
Company or to which its property is subject, (iii) violate any material law or regulation of any jurisdiction which is applicable to the Company, (iv) violate, conflict with or result in the breach or termination of, or constitute a default under,
the terms of any material agreement to which the Company is a party, except for such violations or defaults which do not materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise of the
Company, or (v) violate or conflict with the rules and regulations of the OTCBB applicable to the Company.
 

(d)      Capitalization. The authorized capital of the Company as of the date hereof consists of 200,000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which there were (i) 82,939,006 issued and outstanding as of the date hereof as fully
paid and non-assessable shares; (ii) options and/or warrants to purchase 15,118,310 shares of Common Stock; and (iii) employee and directors options to purchase 7,824,000 shares of Common Stock. As of the date hereof, the Company
has not issued any capital stock since its most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act, other than pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options under the Company’s stock option plans and the issuance of shares of
Common Stock to employees pursuant to the Company’s employee stock purchase plan outstanding as of the date of the most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act.  All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the
Company are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.  No further approval or authorization of any stockholder or the Board of Directors of the Company is required for the issuance and sale of the Securities.  The issuance of the
Securities pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement will not violate any preemptive rights or rights of first refusal granted by the Company that will not be validly waived or complied with, and will be free of any liens or encumbrances,
other than any liens or encumbrances created by or imposed upon the Investors through no action of the Company.  There are no stockholders agreements, voting agreements or other similar agreements with respect to the Company’s
capital stock to which the Company is a party or, to the knowledge of the Company, between or among any of the Company’s stockholders.
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(e)      Litigation.  There are no actions, suits or proceedings at law or in equity or by or before any governmental instrumentality or other agency or regulatory authority now pending, or, to the best knowledge of the
Company, threatened against the Company which, if adversely determined, could materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company. There is no action, suit or
proceeding by the Company currently pending or that the Company currently intends to initiate.
 

(f)      Compliance with Laws.  The Company is not in violation of any statute, law, rule or regulation, or in default with respect to any judgment, writ, injunction, decree, rule or regulation of any court or governmental
agency or instrumentality, except for such violations or defaults which do not materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company.
 

(g)      Governmental Consents.  Subject to the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the Investors set forth herein, no registration or filing with, or consent or approval of or other action by, any Federal, state or
other government agency under laws and regulations thereof as now in effect is or will be necessary for the valid execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Transaction Documents, and the issuance, sale and delivery of
the Securities, other than the filing of a Form D with the SEC and the filings required by state securities law.
 

(h)      Regulatory Matters.  The clinical, pre-clinical and other trials, studies and tests conducted by or on behalf of or sponsored by the Company relating to its pharmaceutical product candidates were and, if still pending,
are being conducted in all material respects in accordance with medical and scientific protocols and research procedures that the Company reasonably believes are appropriate.  The descriptions of the results of such trials, studies and tests
as set forth in the SEC Documents (as defined in Section 3(i) of this Agreement), provided to the Investors are accurate in all material respects and fairly present the data derived from such trials, studies and tests.  All clinical trials
conducted by the Company have been in compliance in all material respects with applicable laws and regulations.  The Company has not received any warning letters or written correspondence from the FDA and/or any other governmental
entity or agency requiring the termination, suspension or modification of any clinical, pre-clinical and other trials, studies or tests that are material to the Company.   None of the clinical trials that the Company is currently conducting or
sponsoring is subject to any temporary or permanent clinical hold by the FDA or any other governmental entity or agency, and the Company has no reason to believe that such clinical trials will be subject to any such action.  The Company
is planning to file an Investigational New Drug Application with the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) for a phase II clinical trial it intends to conduct with respect to its orally ingestible insulin capsule (ORMD0801)
(the “IND Application”).  The IND Application will be in material compliance with applicable laws and rules and regulations when filed.
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(i)      SEC Documents; Financial Statements.  For the past twelve (12) months, the Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the
reporting requirements of the Exchange Act (all of the foregoing filed prior to the date hereof and all exhibits included therein and financial statements, notes and schedules thereto and documents incorporated by reference therein being
hereinafter referred to as the “SEC Documents”).  The Company has delivered to the Investors or their respective representatives true, correct and complete copies of each of the SEC Documents not available on the Electronic Data
Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval system of the SEC (“EDGAR”) that have been requested by an Investor.  As of their respective dates, the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with the requirements of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC Documents, at the time they were filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material
fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.  As of their respective dates, the
financial statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto as in effect
as of the time of filing.  Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), consistently applied, during the periods involved (except (i) as may be otherwise indicated in
such financial statements or the notes thereto, or (ii) in the case of unaudited interim statements, to the extent they may exclude footnotes or may be condensed or summary statements) and fairly present in all material respects the financial
position of the Company as of the dates thereof and the results of its operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments).  The Company has no liabilities
or obligations required to be disclosed in the SEC Documents that are not so disclosed in the SEC Documents, other than those incurred in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.
 

(j)      Sarbanes-Oxley; Internal Accounting Controls. Each SEC Document containing financial statements that has been filed with or submitted to the SEC was accompanied by the certifications required to be filed or
submitted by the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”); at the time of filing or submission of each such certification, such certification was
true and accurate and complied with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder; such certifications contain no qualifications or exceptions to the matters certified therein and have not been modified or
withdrawn; and neither the Company nor any of its officers has received notice from any governmental entity questioning or challenging the accuracy, completeness, form or manner of filing or submission of such certification;
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(k)      Absence of Changes.  The Common Stock is quoted for trading on the OTCBB.  No order ceasing, halting or suspending trading in the Common Stock nor prohibiting the sale of the Common Stock has been issued
to and is outstanding against the Company or its directors, officers or promoters, and, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, no investigations or proceedings for such purposes are pending or threatened.  The Company has not taken any
action which would be reasonably expected to result in the delisting or suspension of quotation of the Common Stock on or from the OTCBB and the Company has complied in all material respects with the rules and regulations of
eligibility on the OTCBB.  The Company has not taken any steps to seek protection pursuant to any bankruptcy law nor does the Company have any knowledge or reason to believe that its creditors intend to initiate involuntary bankruptcy
proceedings or any actual knowledge of any fact which would reasonably lead any creditor or creditors to do so.  Based on the financial condition of the Company as of the date hereof, after giving effect to the receipt by the Company of
the proceeds from the transactions contemplated hereby, the Company reasonably believes that (i) the fair saleable value of the Company’s assets exceeds the amount that will be required to be paid on or in respect of the Company’s
existing debts and other liabilities as they mature; (ii) the Company’s assets do not constitute unreasonably small capital to carry on its business as now conducted and as proposed to be conducted including its capital needs taking into
account the particular capital requirements of the business conducted by the Company, and projected capital requirements and capital availability thereof; and (iii) the current cash flow of the Company, together with the proceeds the
Company would receive, were it to liquidate all of its assets, after taking into account all anticipated uses of the cash, would be sufficient to pay all amounts on or in respect of its liabilities when such amounts are required to be paid.  The
Company does not intend to incur debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature (taking into account the timing and amounts of cash to be payable on or in respect of its debt).  The SEC Documents set forth as of the dates
thereof all outstanding secured and unsecured Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary, or for which the Company or any Subsidiary has commitments. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Indebtedness” shall mean (a) any
liabilities for borrowed money or amounts owed (other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business), (b) all guaranties, endorsements and other contingent obligations in respect of Indebtedness of others, whether
or not the same are or should be reflected in the Company’s balance sheet (or the notes thereto), except guaranties by endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or similar transactions in the ordinary course of business;
and (c) the present value of any lease payments due under leases required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is in default with respect to any Indebtedness.
 

(l)      Patents and Trademarks. The Company has rights to use all patents, patent applications, trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other
intellectual property rights and similar rights necessary or material for use in connection with its business as described in the SEC Documents and which the failure to so have would have a material adverse effect on the results of
operations, assets, business, prospects, or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company (collectively, the “Intellectual Property Rights”). The Company has not received any notice (written or otherwise) that the Intellectual Property
Rights used by the Company violate or infringe upon the rights of any other person or entity. To the knowledge of the Company, all such Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there is no existing infringement by another person
or entity of any of the Intellectual Property Rights. The Company has taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of all of its Intellectual Property Rights.
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(m)     Offering.  Assuming the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the Investors contained in Section 3.2 of this Agreement, the offer, issue, and sale of the Securities are exempt from the registration and
prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act and the registration or qualification requirements of all applicable state securities laws.  Neither the Company nor any authorized agent acting on its behalf will knowingly take any
action hereafter that would cause the loss of such exemptions.
 

(n)      Acknowledgment.  The Company acknowledges and agrees that each Investor is acting solely in the capacity of an arm’s length purchaser with respect to the Securities and the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby and that no Investor is (i) an officer of the Company, (ii) an Affiliate of the Company or (iii) to the knowledge of the Company, a “beneficial owner” of more than 10% of the shares of Common Stock (as defined for purposes of
Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act), except Regals Fund LP.  The Company further acknowledges that no Investor is acting as a financial advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby, and any advice given by any Investor or any of its representatives or agents in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby is merely incidental to such Investor’s purchase of
the Securities.  The Company further represents to each Investor that the Company’s decision to enter into the Transaction Documents and issue the Securities has been based solely on the independent evaluation by the Company and its
representatives.
 

(o)      No General Solicitation; Placement Agent’s Fees.  Neither the Company, nor any of its Affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has engaged in any form of general solicitation or general advertising
(within the meaning of Regulation D of the Securities Act) in connection with the offer or sale of the Securities.  The Company shall be responsible for the payment of any placement agent’s fees, financial advisory fees, or brokers’
commissions (other than for persons engaged by any Investor or its investment advisor) relating to or arising out of the transactions contemplated hereby.
 

(p)      No Integrated Offering.  Neither the Company nor any person acting on its behalf has, directly or indirectly, made any offers or sales of any security or solicited any offers to buy any security, under circumstances
that would require registration of any of the Securities under the Securities Act or cause this offering of the Securities to be integrated with prior offerings by the Company for purposes of the Securities Act or any applicable shareholder
approval provisions, which would undermine the private placement exemption of this offering or cause it to require shareholder approval, including, without limitation, under the rules and regulations of the OTCBB or any other exchange
or automated quotation system on which any of the securities of the Company are listed or designated.
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(q)      Manipulation of Price.  The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, directly or indirectly, any action designed to cause or to result in the stabilization or manipulation of the
price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of any of the Securities, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the Securities, or (iii) paid or agreed to pay to any person
any compensation for soliciting another to purchase any other securities of the Company.
 

(r)       Disclosure.  All disclosure provided to the Investors with regard to the representations and warranties contained in this Section 3.1 regarding the Company, its business and the transactions contemplated hereby,
furnished in writing by the Company is true and correct in all material respects and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, together with the disclosure in the SEC Documents, not misleading.
 

(s)      Investor Reliance.  The Company expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Investors are relying upon the Company’s representations contained in this Agreement.
 

3.2            Representations and Warranties of the Investor.  Each Investor, severally and not jointly, hereby represents and warrants to the Company as follows:
 

(a)      Authorization; Enforcement.  Such Investor represents and warrants that it is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization with the requisite
corporate or partnership power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated by the applicable this Agreement and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder.  This Agreement has been duly executed by
such Investor, and when delivered by such Investor in accordance with terms hereof, will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of such Investor, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms.
 

(b)      Investment Intent.  Such Investor is acquiring the Securities as principal for its own account for investment purposes only and not with a view to or for distributing or reselling such Securities or any part thereof,
without prejudice, however, to such Investor's right at all times to sell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of such Securities in compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws.  Such Investor is acquiring the Securities
hereunder in the ordinary course of its business. Such Investor does not have any agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with any Person to distribute any of the Securities.
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(c)      Investor Status.  At the time such Investor was offered the Securities, it was, and at the date hereof it is, and on each date on which it exercises the Warrants it will be, an "accredited investor" as defined in Rule
501(a) under the Securities Act.  Such Investor is not required to be registered as a broker-dealer under Section 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 

(d)      General Solicitation.  Such Investor is not purchasing the Securities as a result of any advertisement, article, notice or other communication regarding the Securities published in any newspaper, magazine or similar
media or broadcast over television or radio or presented at any seminar or any other general solicitation or general advertisement.
 

(e)      Access to Information.  Such Investor acknowledges that it has been afforded (i) the opportunity to ask such questions as it has deemed necessary of, and to receive answers from, representatives of the Company
concerning the terms and conditions of the offering of the Shares and the merits and risks of investing in the Securities; (ii) access to information about the Company and its financial condition, results of operations, business, properties,
management and prospects sufficient to enable it to evaluate its investment; and (iii) the opportunity to obtain such additional information that the Company possesses or can acquire without unreasonable effort or expense that is necessary
to make an informed investment decision with respect to the investment. Such Investor understands that a purchase of the Securities is a speculative investment involving a high degree of risk.  Such Investor is aware that there is no
guarantee that such Investor will realize any gain from this investment, and that such Investor could lose the total amount of this investment. Such Investor acknowledges that it has received no representations or warranties from the
Company or its employees or agents in making this investment decision other than as set forth in this Agreement.
 

(f)       Independent Investment Decision.  Such Investor has independently evaluated the merits of its decision to purchase Securities pursuant to this Agreement, such decision has been independently made by such
Investor and such Investor confirms that it has only relied on the advice of its own business and/or legal counsel and not on the advice of any other Investor’s business and/or legal counsel in making such decision.
 

(g)      Short Sales.  Such Investor has not directly or indirectly, nor has any Person acting on behalf of or pursuant to any understanding with such Investor, executed any Short Sales in the securities of the Company since
the date that such Investor was first contacted regarding an investment in the Company.
 

(h)      Limitations on Transfers. Such Investor acknowledges that the Securities must be held indefinitely unless subsequently registered under the Securities Act or unless an exemption from such registration is
available.  Such Investor is aware of the provisions of Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act which permit limited resale of securities purchased in a private placement subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, which may
include, among other things, the existence of a public market for the securities, the availability of certain current public information about the Company, the resale occurring not less than six months after a party has purchased and paid for
the security to be sold, the sale being effected through a “broker’s transaction” or in transactions directly with a “market maker” and the number of securities being sold during any three month period not exceeding specified limitations.
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(i)       Company Reliance.  Such Investor expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Company is relying upon such Investor’s representations contained in this Agreement.
 

ARTICLE IV.
REGISTRATION RIGHTS

 
4.1           Registration Statement.

 
(a)      The Company shall prepare and file with the SEC within one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days after the Closing Date (the “Filing Deadline”) a registration statement (on Form S-1, or other appropriate

registration statement form) under the Securities Act (the “Registration Statement”), at the sole expense of the Company (except as specifically provided in Section 4.2 of this Agreement) so as to permit a public offering and resale of the
Shares and the Warrant Shares (the “Registrable Securities”) in the United States under the Securities Act by the Investors as selling stockholders. The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause such Registration Statement to
become effective as soon as possible thereafter, and within the earlier of: (i) one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days after the Closing Date (or two hundred and ten (210) calendar days in the event the SEC shall elect to review the
Registration Statement), or (ii) five (5) calendar days after the SEC clearance to request acceleration of effectiveness (the “Effectiveness Deadline”).  The Company will notify the Investors of the effectiveness of the Registration
Statement (the “Effective Date”) within five (5) Trading Days.
 

(b)      The Company will maintain the Registration Statement filed under Section 4 of this Agreement effective under the Securities Act until the earlier of the date (i) all of the Registrable Securities have been sold
pursuant to such Registration Statement, (ii) the Investors receive an opinion of counsel to the Company, which opinion and counsel shall be reasonably acceptable to the Investors, that the Registrable Securities may be sold under the
provisions of Rule 144 without limitation as to volume, (iii) all Registrable Securities (or all Warrants, in the case of Warrants not then exercised) have been otherwise transferred to persons who may trade the Registrable Securities without
restriction under the Securities Act, and the Company has delivered a new certificate or other evidence of ownership for such Registrable Securities not bearing a restrictive legend, (iv) all Registrable Securities may be sold without any
time, volume or manner limitations pursuant to Rule 144 or any similar provision then in effect under the Securities Act in the opinion of counsel to the Company, which counsel shall be reasonably acceptable to the Investors, or (v) one (1)
year from the Effective Date.
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(c)      Prior to the Effective Date, the rights to cause the Company to register Registrable Securities granted to the Investors by the Company under Section 4 of this Agreement may be assigned in full by an Investor in
connection with a transfer by such Investor of not less than 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock in a single transaction to a single transferee purchasing as principal, provided, however, that (i) such transfer is otherwise effected in
accordance with applicable securities laws; (ii) such Investor gives prior written notice to the Company; and (iii) such transferee agrees to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement in a form reasonably satisfactory to the
Company, and such transfer is otherwise in compliance with this Agreement.
 

(d)      If at any time or from time to time after the Effective Date, the Company notifies the Investors in writing of the existence of a Potential Material Event (as defined in Section 4(e) below), the Investors shall not offer
or sell any Registrable Securities or engage in any other transaction involving or relating to Registrable Securities, from the time of the giving of notice with respect to a Potential Material Event until the Investors receives written notice
from the Company that such Potential Material Event either has been disclosed to the public or no longer constitutes a Potential Material Event.  If a Potential Material Event shall occur prior to the Filing Deadline, then the Company’s
obligation to file such Registration Statement shall be delayed without penalty for not more than fifty (50) calendar days.  The Company must, if lawful and practicable, give the Investors notice in writing at least two (2) Trading Days prior
to the first day of the blackout period.
 

(e)      “Potential Material Event” means any of the following: (i) the possession by the Company of material information not ripe for disclosure in a registration statement, as determined in good faith by the Chief
Executive Officer or the Board of Directors of the Company that disclosure of such information in a Registration Statement would be detrimental to the business and affairs of the Company; or (ii) any material engagement or activity by the
Company which would, in the good faith determination of the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors of the Company, be adversely affected by disclosure in a registration statement at such time, which determination shall be
accompanied by a good faith determination by the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors of the Company that the applicable Registration Statement would be materially misleading absent the inclusion of such information;
provided that, (i) the Company shall not use such right with respect to the Registration Statement for more than an aggregate of 90 days in any 12-month period; and (ii) the number of days the Company is required to keep the Registration
Statement effective under Section 4(b)(v) above shall be extended by the number of days for which the Company shall have used such right.
 

(f)       The Investors will cooperate with the Company in all respects in connection with this Agreement, including timely supplying all information reasonably requested by the Company (which shall include all
information regarding the Investors and proposed manner of sale of the Registrable Securities required to be disclosed in any Registration Statement) and executing and returning all documents reasonably requested in connection with the
registration and sale of the Registrable Securities and entering into and performing its obligations under any underwriting agreement, if the offering is an underwritten offering, in usual and customary form, with the managing underwriter
or underwriters of such underwritten offering.  Any delay or delays caused by the Investors, or by any other purchaser of securities of the Company having registration rights similar to those contained herein, by failure to cooperate as
required hereunder shall not constitute a breach or default of the Company under this Agreement.
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(g)      The Company acknowledges that there is no adequate remedy at law for failure by it to comply with the provisions of Section 4 of this Agreement and that such failure would not be adequately compensable in
damages.  Therefore, the Company agrees that in the event that the Registration Statement to be filed by the Company pursuant to paragraph 4(a) above (i) is not filed with the SEC on or before the Filing Deadline, or (ii) such Registration
Statement is not declared effective by the SEC on or before the Effectiveness Deadline, then the Company shall (x) for the period commencing on the seventy sixth (76th) day after the Closing Date and on the 30th day thereafter until the
date that the Registration Statement is filed and (y) for the period commencing on the one hundred twenty first (121st) day after the Closing Date (or the one hundred fifty first (151st) day after the Closing Date in the event the SEC shall
elect to review the Registration Statement) and on the 30th day thereafter until the date that the Registration Statement is declared effective by the SEC, the Company will pay to each Investor as liquidated damages and not as a penalty for
such failure (the “Liquidated Damages”) either: (A) a cash payment equal to a certain percentage (the "Percentage") of such Investor’s Investment Amount or (B) at the sole election of such Investor, shares of Common Stock equal to the
Percentage of the number of Shares purchased by such Investor pursuant to this Agreement.  The Percentage shall initially equal 0.5% and, after the first three payments of the Liquidated Damages, to the extent that the Liquidated
Damages are still required to be paid, the Percentage shall increase to 1.0%.  In no event shall the Liquidated Damages exceed, in the aggregate, 10% of such Investor’s Investment Amount.  On either the Filing Deadline, if the Registration
Statement has not be filed, or the Effectiveness Deadline, if the Registration Statement has not be declared effective, the Company will provide written notice of failure to the Investor and promptly pay the Investor the Liquidated
Damages  The Company and the Investors agree that the agreements contained in Section 4 of this Agreement may be specifically enforced, and the Liquidated Damages are in addition to any other rights or remedies the Investors may
have at law or in equity.  In addition, the Company shall also reimburse the Investors for any and all reasonable legal fees and expenses incurred by it in enforcing their rights pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement, regardless of whether
any litigation was commenced.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, (i) if the SEC limits the number of Registrable Securities that may be included in the Registration Statement due to limitations on the use of Rule
415 of the Securities Act, then the Company shall so advise all the Investors holding Registrable Securities which were proposed to be registered in such Registration Statement, and the number of shares of Common Stock that may be
included in the Registration Statement shall be allocated to the holders of such Registrable Securities so requesting to be registered on a pro rata basis, based on the number of Registrable Securities then held by all such Investors and no
Liquidated Damages shall be paid in respect of the Registrable Securities excluded from the Registration Statement pursuant thereto, (ii) no Investor shall be entitled to receive any Liquidated Damages with respect to any period during
which such Investor is permitted to sell all its Registrable Securities without any time, volume or manner limitations pursuant to Rule 144 or any similar provision then in effect under the Securities Act in the opinion of counsel to the
Company, which counsel shall be reasonably acceptable to the Investors and (iii) no Liquidated Damages shall be payable in respect of any delay in the effectiveness of the Registration Statement caused by the existence of anti-dilution
adjustment provisions in the Warrants.
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4.2           Registration Expenses.  All fees, disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses and costs incurred by the Company in connection with the preparation and filing of the Registration Statement and in complying with
applicable securities and “blue sky” laws (including, without limitation, all attorneys' fees of the Company, registration, qualification, notification and filing fees, printing expenses, escrow fees, blue sky fees and expenses and the expense
of any special audits incident to or required by any such registration) shall be borne by the Company.  The Investors shall bear the cost of underwriting and/or brokerage discounts, fees and commissions, if any, applicable to the Registrable
Securities being registered and the fees and expenses of its counsel.  The Company shall qualify any of the Registrable Securities for sale in such states as an Investor reasonably designates.  However, the Company shall not be required to
qualify in any state which will require an escrow or other restriction relating to the Company and/or the sellers, or which will require the Company to qualify to do business in such state or require the Company to file therein any general
consent to service of process.  The Company at its expense will supply each Investor with copies of the applicable Registration Statement and the prospectus included therein and other related documents in such quantities as may be
reasonably requested by such Investor.
 

4.3           Registration Procedures. Whenever the Company is required by any of the provisions of this Agreement to effect the registration of any of the Registrable Securities under the Securities Act, the Company shall (except as
otherwise provided in this Agreement), as expeditiously as possible, subject to the assistance and cooperation as reasonably required of the Investors with respect to each Registration Statement:
 

(a)      prior to the filing with the SEC of any Registration Statement (including any amendments thereto) and the distribution or delivery of any prospectus (including any supplements thereto), provide draft copies thereof
to the Investor and reflect in such documents all such comments as the Investor (and its counsel), reasonably may propose respecting the Selling Shareholders and Plan of Distribution sections (or equivalents) and (B) furnish to the Investor
such numbers of copies of a prospectus including a preliminary prospectus or any amendment or supplement to any prospectus, as applicable, in conformity with the requirements of the Securities Act, and such other documents, as the
Investor may reasonably request in order to facilitate the public sale or other disposition of the Registrable Securities owned by the Investor;
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(b)      register and qualify the Registrable Securities covered by the Registration Statement under such other securities or blue sky laws of such jurisdictions as the Investor shall reasonably request (subject to the
limitations set forth in Section 4.2 above), and do any and all other acts and things which may be necessary or advisable to enable the Investor to consummate the public sale or other disposition in such jurisdiction of the securities owned
by the Investor;
 

(c)      cause the Registrable Securities to be quoted or listed on each service on which the Common Stock of the Company is then quoted or listed;
 

(d)      notify the Investor, at any time when a prospectus relating thereto covered by the Registration Statement is required to be delivered under the Securities Act, of the happening of any event of which it has knowledge
as a result of which the prospectus included in the Registration Statement, as then in effect, includes an untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein not misleading in the light of  the circumstances then existing, and the Company shall prepare and file a curative amendment as promptly as commercially reasonable;
 

(e)      as promptly as practicable after becoming aware of such event, notify the Investor (or, in the event of an underwritten offering, the managing underwriters) of the issuance by the SEC of any stop order or other
suspension of the effectiveness of the Registration Statement at the earliest possible time and take all lawful action to effect the withdrawal, recession or removal of such stop order or other suspension; and
 

(f)       provide a transfer agent and registrar for all securities registered pursuant to the Registration Statement and a CUSIP number for all such securities.
 

4.4           Piggyback Registration Rights. In addition to the registration rights set forth in Section 4.1 of this Agreement, if the Registration Statement to be filed pursuant to Section 4.1 is not filed by the Filing Deadline, or
otherwise declared effective by the SEC, then the Investors shall also have certain “piggy-back” registration rights as follows:
 

(a)      If at any time after the issuance of the Registrable Securities, the Company shall file with the SEC a registration statement under the Securities Act registering any shares of equity securities (but other than
registration relating solely to employee benefit plans on Form S-8 or similar forms that may be promulgated in the future, or a registration relating solely to a SEC Rule 145 transaction on Form S-4 or similar forms that may be
promulgated in the future), the Company shall give written notice to the Investors prior to such filing.
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(b)      Within twenty (20) calendar days after such notice from the Company, each Investor shall give written notice to the Company whether or not it desires to have all of its Registrable Securities included in the
registration statement.  If an Investor fails to give such notice within such period, such Investor shall not have further rights hereunder to have its Registrable Securities registered pursuant to such registration statement.  If an Investor gives
such notice, then the Company shall include such Investor’s Registrable Securities in the registration statement, at Company’s sole cost and expense, subject to the remaining terms of this Section 4.4.
 

(c)      If the registration statement relates to an underwritten offering, and the underwriter shall determine in writing that the total number of shares of equity securities to be included in the offering, including the
Registrable Securities, shall exceed the amount which the underwriter deems to be appropriate for the offering, the number of shares of the Registrable Securities shall be reduced in the same proportion as the remainder of the shares in the
offering and the Investor’s Registrable Securities included in such registration statement will be reduced proportionately, provided, however, that securities being offered by the Company or by a shareholder pursuant to demand registration
rights shall be entitled to priority over the Registrable Securities.  Any Registrable Securities excluded or withdrawn from such underwriting shall be excluded and withdrawn from the registration. For this purpose, if other securities in the
registration statement are derivative securities, their underlying shares shall be included in the computation.  The Investor shall enter into such agreements as may be reasonably required by the underwriters and the Investor shall pay the
underwriters commissions relating to the sale of their respective Registrable Securities.
 

(d)      The Investors shall have an unlimited number of opportunities to have the Registrable Securities registered under this Section 4.4, provided that the Company shall not be required to register any Registrable
Security or keep any Registration Statement effective beyond such period required under Section 4.1(b) of this Agreement.
 

(e)      The Investors shall furnish in writing to the Company such information as the Company shall reasonably require in connection with a registration statement.
 

(f)       The Company shall have the right to terminate or withdraw any registration initiated by it under this Section 4.4 prior to the effectiveness of such registration, whether or not any Investor has elected to include
securities in such registration.
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4.5           Indemnity and Contribution.
 

(a)      The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless each Investor, its officers, directors, employees, partners, legal counsel and accountants, and each person controlling such Investor within the meaning of
Section 15 of the Securities Act, from and against any direct losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) to which such Investor or such other indemnified persons may become
subject  (including in settlement of litigation, whether commenced or threatened) insofar as such losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of, or are based upon, any untrue
statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact in the Registration Statement, including all documents filed as a part thereof and information deemed to be a part thereof, on the
effective date thereof, or any amendment or supplements thereto, and the Company will, as incurred, reimburse such Investor, each of its officers, directors, employees, partners, legal counsel and accountants, and each person controlling
such Investor, for any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, defending or preparing to defend or settling such action, proceeding or claim; provided, however, that the Company shall not be liable in any such case to
the extent that such loss, claim, damage, expense or liability (or action or proceeding in respect thereof) arises out of, or is based upon, (i) the failure of such Investor, or any of its agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, to comply
with such Investor's covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement with respect to the sale of Registrable Securities, (ii) an untrue statement or omission in such Registration Statement in reliance upon and in conformity with
written information furnished to the Company by an instrument duly executed by or on behalf of such Investor, or any of its agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, and stated to be specifically for use in preparation of the
Registration Statement and not corrected in a timely manner by such Investor in writing or (iii) an untrue statement or omission in any prospectus that is corrected in any subsequent prospectus, or supplement or amendment thereto, that
was delivered to such Investor prior to the pertinent sale or sales by such Investor and not delivered by such Investor to the individual or entity to which it made such sale(s) prior to such sale(s).
 

(b)      Each Investor, severally and not jointly, agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company, its officers, directors, employees, partners, legal counsel and accountants, and each person controlling the Company
within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act, from and against any direct losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) to which the Company or such other indemnified persons may
become subject (under the Securities Act or otherwise) insofar as such losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of, or are based upon (i) the failure of such Investor or any of its
agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, to comply with the covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement with respect to the sale of Registrable Securities; or (ii) an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a
material fact or omission to state a material fact in the Registration Statement in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished to the Company by an instrument duly executed by or on behalf of such Investor and
stated to be specifically for use in preparation of the Registration Statement; provided, however, that such Investor shall not be liable in any such case for (i) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission in any prospectus or
Registration Statement which statement has been corrected, in writing, by such Investor and delivered to the Company before the sale from which such loss occurred; or (ii) an untrue statement or omission in any prospectus that is
corrected in any subsequent prospectus, or supplement or amendment thereto, that was delivered to such Investor prior to the pertinent sale or sales by such Investor and delivered by such Investor to the individual or entity to which it made
such sale(s) prior to such sale(s), and such Investor will, as incurred, reimburse the Company for any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, defending or preparing to defend any such action, proceeding or
claim.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, such Investor shall not be liable or required to indemnify the Company or such other indemnified persons in the aggregate for any amount in excess of the net amount received by such Investor from
the sale of the Registrable Securities, to which such loss, claim, damage, expense or liability (or action proceeding in respect thereof) relates.
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(c)      Promptly after receipt by any indemnified person of a notice of a claim or the beginning of any action in respect of which indemnity is to be sought against an indemnifying person pursuant to this Section 4.5, such
indemnified person shall notify the indemnifying person in writing of such claim or of the commencement of such action and, subject to the provisions hereinafter stated, in case any such action shall be brought against an indemnified
person, the indemnifying person shall be entitled to participate therein, and, to the extent that it shall wish, to assume the defense thereof.  After notice from the indemnifying person to such indemnified person of the indemnifying person’s
election to assume the defense thereof, the indemnifying person shall not be liable to such indemnified person for any legal expenses subsequently incurred by such indemnified person in connection with the defense thereof; provided,
however, that if there exists or shall exist a conflict of interest that would, in the opinion of counsel to the indemnified party, make it inappropriate under applicable laws or codes of professional responsibility for the same counsel to
represent both the indemnified person and such indemnifying person or any affiliate or associate thereof, the indemnified person shall be entitled to retain its own counsel at the expense of such indemnifying person; provided, further, that
the indemnifying person shall not be obligated to assume the expenses of more than one counsel to represent all indemnified persons.  In the event of such separate counsel, such counsel shall agree to reasonably cooperate.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, no indemnifying person shall be required to pay any amounts of indemnification or contribution with respect to a settlement of any Proceeding or losses, claims, damages, expenses or
liabilities if such settlement is effected without the consent of the indemnifying person.
 

(d)      If the indemnification provided for in this Section 4.5 is unavailable or insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified party under subsection (a) or (b) above in respect of any direct losses, claims, damages, expenses
or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) referred to therein, then each indemnifying party shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such indemnified party as a result of such losses, claims, damages, expenses or
liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the Company on the one hand and the Investors, or its respective agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, on
the other in connection with the statements or omissions which resulted in such losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof), as well as any other relevant equitable considerations.  The
relative fault shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or the omission or alleged omission to state a material fact relates to information supplied by the
Company on the one hand or an Investor, or its agents, affiliates or persons acting on its behalf, on the other and the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or
omission.  The Company and such Investor agree that it would not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to this subsection (d) were determined by any other method of allocation which does not take into account the equitable
considerations referred to above in this subsection (d).  The amount paid or payable by an indemnified party as a result of the losses, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) referred to above in
this subsection (d) shall be deemed to include any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by such indemnified party in connection with investigating or defending any such action or claim.  No person guilty of fraudulent
misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation.  In any event, such Investor shall not be liable or
required to contribute to the Company in the aggregate for any amount in excess of the net amount received by such Investor from the sale of its Registrable Securities.
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4.6      Market Standoff. Each Investor hereby agrees that, if so requested by the representative of the lead or managing underwriters of a public offering (the “Managing Underwriter”), such Investor shall not, without the prior
consent of the Managing Underwriter (i) lend, offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose
of, directly or indirectly, any Registrable Securities or any other securities of the Company or (ii) enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the
Registrable Securities, whether any such transaction described in clause (i) or (ii) above is to be settled by delivery of Registrable Securities or such other securities, in cash or otherwise, during the period specified by the Managing
Underwriter (the “Market Standoff Period”), with such period not to exceed 10 days prior to the anticipated effective date of such registration statement and 90 days following the effective date of such registration statement. Each
Investor further agrees to execute such agreements as may be reasonably requested by the underwriters in the Company’s offering on the same terms of this Section 4.6.
 

ARTICLE V.
TERMINATION

 
5.1           Termination.  If the conditions to the Investors’ obligations at Closing have not been satisfied or waived on before November 15, 2012, then this Agreement may be terminated at any time thereafter upon written notice to

the Company by Investors representing at least a majority in interest of the Shares to be purchased hereunder.  The provisions of Sections 6.2 and 6.5 to 6.17 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.
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ARTICLE VI.
MISCELLANEOUS

 
6.1           Certificates; Resales.

 
(a)      The Securities may only be disposed of in compliance with state and federal securities laws.  In connection with any transfer of the Securities other than pursuant to an effective registration statement or Rule 144(b)(1), to the
Company or to an Affiliate of an Investor, the Company may require the transferor thereof to provide to the Company an opinion of counsel selected by the transferor, reasonably acceptable to the Company, the form and substance of
which opinion shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Company, to the effect that such transfer does not require registration of such transferred Securities under the Securities Act.
 
(b)      Certificates evidencing the Securities will contain the following legend, until such time as they are not required:
 

[NEITHER THESE SECURITIES NOR THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THESE SECURITIES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED] [THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED] WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL
BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY.  [THESE SECURITIES AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THESE SECURITIES] [THESE SECURITIES] MAY BE PLEDGED IN
CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.

 
(c)      Certificates evidencing the Shares and Warrant Shares shall not contain any legend (including the legend set forth in Section 5.1(b) of this Agreement), (i) following a sale of such securities pursuant to an effective registration
statement, or (ii) following any sale of such Shares or Warrant Shares pursuant to Rule 144 (assuming the transferor was not an Affiliate of the Company), or (iii) if such Shares or Warrant Shares are eligible for sale under Rule 144(b)(1),
or (iv) if such legend is not required under applicable requirements of the Securities Act (including judicial interpretations and pronouncements issued by the staff of the SEC).  The Company shall cause its counsel to issue a legal opinion
to the Company’s transfer agent promptly after the Effective Date if required by the Company’s transfer agent to effect the removal of the legend hereunder in contemplation of a sale of Registrable Securities pursuant to the Registration
Statement.  If all or any portion of a Warrant is exercised at a time when there is an effective registration statement to cover the issuance of the Warrant Shares, such Warrant Shares shall be issued free of all legends.  The Company agrees
that at such time as such legend is no longer required under this Section 5.1(c), it will, no later than three Trading Days following the delivery by an Investor to the Company or the Company’s transfer agent of a certificate representing
Warrant Shares issued with a restrictive legend accompanied by a customary representation letter , deliver or cause to be delivered to such Investor a certificate representing such shares that is free from all restrictive and other legends.  The
Company may not make any notation on its records or give instructions to any transfer agent of the Company that enlarge the restrictions on transfer set forth in this Section 5.1(c) except in the case of an Investor or its permitted transferee
becoming an Affiliate.  Certificates for Securities subject to legend removal hereunder shall be transmitted by the transfer agent of the Company to the Investors by crediting the account of the Investor’s prime broker with the Depository
Trust Company System.
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6.2           Indemnification.
 

(a)      Each Investor acknowledges that he, she or it understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations and warranties that are contained herein and hereby agrees, severally and not jointly, to
indemnify, save and hold harmless the Company and its directors, officers, employees and counsel, from and against any and all claims or actions arising out of a breach of any representation, warranty or acknowledgment of such Investor
contained in this Agreement.  Such indemnification shall be deemed to include not only the specific liabilities or obligations with respect to which such indemnity is provided, but also all reasonable costs, expenses, counsel fees and
expenses of settlement relating thereto, whether or not any such liability or obligation shall have been reduced to judgment.  In addition, each Investor’s representations, warranties and indemnification contained herein shall survive such
Investor’s purchase of the Securities hereunder for a period of one year following the date hereof.
 

(b)      The Company acknowledges it understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations and warranties that are contained herein and hereby agrees to indemnify, save and hold harmless each Investor
and its directors, officers, employees and counsel, from and against any and all claims or actions arising out of a breach of any representation, warranty or acknowledgment of the Company contained in this Agreement.  Such
indemnification shall be deemed to include not only the specific liabilities or obligations with respect to which such indemnity is provided, but also all reasonable costs, expenses, counsel fees and expenses of settlement relating thereto,
whether or not any such liability or obligation shall have been reduced to judgment.  In addition, the Company’s representations, warranties and indemnification contained herein shall survive the purchase of the Securities hereunder for a
period of one year following the date hereof.
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6.3           Preemptive Right.
 

(a)      Following the Closing Date, for so long as any Investor holds shares of Common Stock constituting 5% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, if the Company proposes to issue Additional Securities
(other than upon the exercise or conversion of options, warrants or other rights to purchase Common Stock), it shall give such Investor a written notice thereof of its intention to do so (the “Rights Notice”), describing the Additional
Securities, the price and the general terms upon which the Company proposes to issue them. Each Investor shall have fourteen (14) calendar days from delivery of the Rights Notice to agree to purchase all or any part of its pro-rata portion
of such Additional Securities, which pro-rata portion is equal to the ratio of (i) the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock which such Investor holds immediately prior to the issuance of such Additional Securities to (ii) the total
number of outstanding shares of Common Stock prior to issuance of the Additional Securities, for the price and upon the general terms specified in the Rights Notice, by giving written notice to the Company setting forth the quantity of
Additional Securities which such Investor wishes to purchase.
 

(b)      If the Investors fail to exercise in full their preemptive right within the period specified in Section 5.3(a), then the Company shall have sixty (60) Days after delivery of the Rights Notice to sell the unsold Additional
Securities at a price and upon general terms no more favorable to the purchasers thereof than specified in the Rights Notice. If the Company has not sold the Additional Securities within said sixty (60) Day period, the Company shall not
thereafter issue or sell any Additional Securities without first offering such securities to the Investors in the manner provided above.
 

(c)      The preemptive right granted to the Investors hereunder is personal and is not transferable to any other Person.
 

(d)     "Additional Securities" means any shares of Common Stock or options, warrants or other rights to purchase shares of Common Stock, other than (i) securities issued in any investment round raising less than
$500,000 at the closing thereof, (ii) securities issued to directors, officers or employees of the Company or a wholly owned subsidiary thereof in their capacity as such in the ordinary course pursuant to an incentive plan approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company and (iii) securities having a market value of up to $1,000,000 in the aggregate issued in bona fide, arm's-length transactions to service providers of the Company or a wholly owned subsidiary thereof in
consideration for services provided.
 

6.4           Abstention from Trading. From the date hereof until the Closing Date, (i) the Investors will not engage in any financial market transactions (whether long, short or other hedging transactions) with respect to the
Company’s Common Stock and (ii) the Company will not, and the Company shall cause its directors and officers and each of its and their respective Affiliates to not, engage in any financial market transactions (whether long, short or other
hedging transactions) with respect to the Company’s Common Stock.
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6.5           Entire Agreement; Amendment.  The parties have not made any representations or warranties with respect to the subject matter hereof not set forth herein.  This Agreement, together with the Warrants and any other
instruments executed simultaneously herewith, constitute the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  All understandings and agreements heretofore between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof are merged in this Agreement and any such instruments, which alone fully and completely expresses their agreement.  This Agreement may not be changed, modified, extended, terminated or discharged orally, but only by an
agreement in writing, which is signed by all of the parties to this Agreement.
 

6.6           Notices.  Any notice required or permitted to be given to a party pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement will be in writing and will be effective on (i) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is
delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth in this Agreement prior to 5:30 p.m. (in the time zone of the recipient of such notice) on a Trading Day, (ii) the next Trading Day after the date of transmission, if such notice or
communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth in this Agreement on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 5:30 p.m. (in the time zone of the recipient of such notice) on any Trading Day, (iii) the 2nd

Trading Day following the date of mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight courier service, including Express Mail, for United States deliveries or (iii) five (5) Trading Days after deposit in the United States mail by
registered or certified mail for United States deliveries.  All notices not delivered personally or by facsimile will be sent with postage and other charges prepaid and properly addressed to the party to be notified at the address set forth below
such party’s signature of this Agreement or at such other address as such party may designate by ten (10) days advance written notice to the other parties hereto. The address for such notices and communications shall be as follows:
 
 If to the Company: Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.

Hi-Tech Park 2/5
Givat-Ram
PO Box 39098
Jerusalem 91390 Israel
Attn: Nadav Kidron
Facsimile:  +972-2-566-0004

With a copy to:
Goldfarb Seligman & Co., Law Offices
Electra Tower, 98 Yigal Alon Street
Tel Aviv 67891, Israel
Attn:  Adam M. Klein, Adv.
Facsimile:  +972-3-608-9855
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 If to an Investor: To the address set forth under such Investor's name
 on the signature pages hereof.
 

6.7           Delays or Omissions.  Except as otherwise specifically provided for hereunder, no party shall be deemed to have waived any of his or her or its rights hereunder or under any other agreement, instrument or document
signed by any of them with respect to the subject matter hereof unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the party waiving said right.  Except as otherwise specifically provided for hereunder, no delay or omission by any party in
exercising any right with respect to the subject matter hereof shall operate as a waiver of such right or of any such other right.  A waiver on any one occasion with respect to the subject matter hereof shall not be construed as a bar to, or
waiver of, any right or remedy on any future occasion.  All rights and remedies with respect to the subject matter hereof, whether evidenced hereby or by any other agreement, instrument or document, will be cumulative, and may be
exercised separately or concurrently.
 

6.8           Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable under applicable law, then such provision shall be excluded from this Agreement, and the balance of this Agreement shall be interpreted as if
such provision was so excluded and shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms.
 

6.9           Successors and Assigns.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors, assigns, heirs, executors and administrators of the parties
hereto.
 

6.10         Counterparts; Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.  Signatures transmitted by
facsimile or scanned and transmitted by electronic mail shall be considered valid and binding signatures.
 

6.11         Survival of Warranties.  The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Company and the Investors contained in or made pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the execution and delivery of this
Agreement and shall in no way be affected by any investigation made by an Investor or the Company.
 

6.12         Further Action.  The parties agree to execute any and all such other and further instruments and documents, and to take any and all such further actions reasonably required to effectuate this Agreement and the intent and
purposes hereof.
 

6.13         Construction.  The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to limit or affect any of the provisions hereof.  The language used in this Agreement will be
deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against any party.  This Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties, and no presumption
or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any provisions of this Agreement.
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6.14         No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced
by, any other Person.
 

6.15         Governing Law; Venue and Waiver of Jury Trial.  This Agreement is to be construed in accordance with and governed  by the  internal  laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to any choice of law rule that
would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction to the rights and duties of the  parties.  The Company and the Investors agree that any suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be brought to any
court of competent jurisdiction sitting in Wilmington, Delaware and that the parties shall submit to the jurisdiction of such court. The parties irrevocably waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection the party may have to the
laying of venue for any such suit, action or proceeding brought in such court.  THE PARTIES ALSO EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT THEY HAVE OR MAY HAVE TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR
PROCEEDING.  If any one or more provisions of this Section 6.15 shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, it is the specific  intent of the parties that such provisions shall be modified to the minimum extent necessary to
make it or its application valid and enforceable.
 

6.16         Replacement of Securities.  If any certificate or instrument evidencing any Securities is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company shall issue or cause to be issued in exchange and substitution for and upon
cancellation thereof, or in lieu of and substitution therefor, a new certificate or instrument, but only upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of such loss, theft or destruction and customary and reasonable
indemnity, if requested.  The applicants for a new certificate or instrument under such circumstances shall also pay any reasonable third-party costs associated with the issuance of such replacement Securities.  If a replacement certificate or
instrument evidencing any Securities is requested due to a mutilation thereof, the Company may require delivery of such mutilated certificate or instrument as a condition precedent to any issuance of a replacement.
 

6.17         Independent Nature of Investors’ Obligations and Rights.  The obligations of each Investor under any Transaction Document are several and not joint with the obligations of any other Investor, and no Investor shall be
responsible in any way for the performance or non-performance of the obligations of any other Investor under any Transaction Document.  Nothing contained herein or in any other Transaction Document, and no action taken by any
Investor pursuant thereto, shall be deemed to constitute the Investors as a partnership, an association, a joint venture or any other kind of entity, or create a presumption that the Investors are in any way acting in concert or as a group with
respect to such obligations or the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.  Each Investor shall be entitled to independently protect and enforce its rights, including without limitation, the rights arising out of this
Agreement or out of the other Transaction Documents, and it shall not be necessary for any other Investor to be joined as an additional party in any proceeding for such purpose.
 

 [REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized signatories as of the date first indicated above.
 
 ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

 
 

 By: /s/ Nadav Kidron  
 Name: Nadav Kidron  
 Title: Chief Executive Officer  

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

SIGNATURE PAGES FOR INVESTORS FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Securities Purchase Agreement as of the date first written above.
 
Investment Amount:
 

     405,405 Units x $0.37 per Unit = $150,000
 

(Each Unit consists of one Share and a Warrant convertible into 0.50 Shares)
 
Name of Investor: Regals Fund LP.

Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investor: /s/ David Slager

Name of Authorized Signatory: David Slager

Title of Authorized Signatory: Managing Member Of The General Partner

Email Address of Investor:  atoohey@regalsholdings.com

Phone number of Investor:  212-256-8402
 
Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number 45-4227948

Address for Notice of Investor:

C/O Regals Capital LP
152 West 57th Street, 9th floor
New York, NY 10019
Tel: 212-256-8402

_______________________
Facsimile:  ______________

 
Address for Delivery of Securities for Investor (if not same as above):

____________________________________________
____________________________________________
____________________________________________
____________________________________________
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SCHEDULE 1
 

Investor  Number of Shares   

Number of Warrant Shares
(50% of the Number of

Shares)   
Investment

Amount  
Regals Fund   405,405   202,703  $ 150,000 
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SCHEDULE 2
 

WIRE TRANSFER INSTRUCTIONS (US DOLLARS)

HSBC BANK USA ABA 021001088
452 FIFTH AVENUE

NEW YORK, N. Y. 10018
FAVOR OF ACCOUNT NAME:  ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 605154082
SWIFT MRMDUS33

 
 

30



 
 

Exhibit A

NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE
SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), AND,
ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE
EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO
THE COMPANY. THIS SECURITY AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR
OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.

 
COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT

 
To Purchase 202,703 Shares of Common Stock of

 
ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

 
THIS COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT (the “Warrant”) certifies that, for value received, REGALS FUND. (the “Holder”), is entitled, upon the terms and subject to the limitations on exercise and the conditions hereinafter set
forth, at any time on or after the date hereof (the “Initial Exercise Date”) and on or prior to the close of business on the fifth anniversary of the Initial Exercise Date (the “Termination Date”) but not thereafter, to subscribe for and purchase
from Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), up to 202,703 shares (the “Warrant Shares”) of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”).  The purchase price of one
share of Common Stock under this Warrant shall be equal to the Exercise Price, as defined in Section 2(b).

Section 1.                     Definitions.  Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”), dated November 5,
2012, among the Company and the purchasers signatory thereto.

 
 

 



 
 

Section 2.                     Exercise.
 

(a)           Exercise of Warrant.  Exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant may be made, in whole or in part, at any time or times on or after the Initial Exercise Date and on or before the Termination Date
by delivery to the Company of a duly executed facsimile copy of the Notice of Exercise Form annexed hereto at the headquarters of the Company (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by notice in writing to
the registered Holder at the address of such Holder appearing on the books of the Company); and within 5 Trading Days of the date said Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company, the Company shall have received payment of the
aggregate Exercise Price of the shares thereby purchased by wire transfer or cashier’s check drawn on a United States bank. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this
Warrant to the Company until the Holder has purchased all of the Warrant Shares available hereunder and the Warrant has been exercised in full, in which case the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company for cancellation within
5 Trading Days of the date the final Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company.  Partial exercises of this Warrant resulting in purchases of a portion of the total number of Warrant Shares available hereunder shall have the effect of
lowering the outstanding number of Warrant Shares purchasable hereunder in an amount equal to the applicable number of Warrant Shares purchased.  The Holder and the Company shall maintain records showing the number of Warrant
Shares purchased hereunder and the date of such purchases.  The Company shall deliver any objection to any Notice of Exercise Form within three Business Days of receipt of such notice.  The Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of
this Warrant, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph, following the purchase of a portion of the Warrant Shares hereunder, the number of Warrant Shares available for purchase hereunder at any given time
may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.
 

(b)           Exercise Price.  The exercise price per share of the Common Stock under this Warrant shall be $0.50, subject to adjustment hereunder (the “Exercise Price”).
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(c)           Cashless Exercise.  If, after the Effectiveness Deadline, at the time of exercise hereof there is no effective registration statement registering all of the Warrant Shares for resale by the Holder into the market from
time to time, then, at the election of the Holder, this Warrant may also be exercised by means of a “cashless exercise” by which the Holder authorizes the Company to withhold from issuance a number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon such exercise of this Warrant which, when multiplied by the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, is equal to the aggregate Exercise Price (and such withheld shares shall no longer be issuable under this Warrant).  For purposes
hereof, “Fair Market Value” means:
 

(i)           if the Common Stock is then listed or quoted on a securities exchange (the “Trading Market”), the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for the five trading days immediately prior to
(but not including) the date of delivery of the Exercise Notice Form on the Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted for trading as reported by Bloomberg Financial L.P. (based on a trading day on the Trading
Market from 9:30 a.m. (New York City time) to 4:02 p.m. (New York City time); (ii) if the Common Stock is not then listed or quoted for trading on the Trading Market but is quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board, the volume
weighted average price of the Common Stock for such period on the OTC Bulletin Board; (iii) if the Common Stock is not then quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board and if prices for the Common Stock are then reported in the
“Pink Sheets” published by Pink Sheets, LLC (or a similar organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), the average of the last sale price over the five trading day period immediately prior to (but not including) the
date of delivery of the Exercise Notice Form; or (iv) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser selected in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company and
reasonably acceptable to the Holder. If the Holder shall elect to effect a cashless exercise and clause (i) or (ii) above shall be applicable, then the Exercise Notice Form shall be accompanied by a copy of a print-out of the Bloomberg screen
showing the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, certified as true and correct by the Holder.
 

(d)           Mechanics of Exercise.
 

(i)           Authorization of Warrant Shares.  The Company covenants that all Warrant Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant will, upon exercise of the
purchase rights represented by this Warrant, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and charges created by the Company in respect of the issue thereof (other than taxes in respect of any
transfer occurring contemporaneously with such issue).
 

(ii)           Delivery of Certificates Upon Exercise.  Certificates for shares purchased hereunder shall be transmitted by the transfer agent of the Company to the Holder by crediting the account of the Holder’s
prime broker with the Depository Trust Company through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission (“DWAC”) system if the Company is a participant in such system, so long as the certificates therefor are not required to bear a legend
regarding restriction on transferability, and otherwise by physical delivery to the address specified by the Holder in the Notice of Exercise within three (3) Trading Days from the delivery to the Company of the Notice of Exercise Form,
surrender of this Warrant (if required) and payment of the aggregate Exercise Price as set forth above (“Warrant Share Delivery Date”).  This Warrant shall be deemed to have been exercised on the date the Exercise Price is received by the
Company. The Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have been issued, and Holder or any other person so designated to be named therein shall be deemed to have become a holder of record of such shares for all purposes, as of the date the
Warrant has been exercised by payment to the Company of the Exercise Price (or cashless exercise, if permitted) and all taxes required to be paid by the Holder, if any, pursuant to Section 2(d)(vii) prior to the issuance of such shares, have
been paid.
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(iii)           Delivery of New Warrants Upon Exercise.  If this Warrant shall have been exercised in part, the Company shall, at the request of a Holder and upon surrender of this Warrant certificate, at the time of
delivery of the certificate or certificates representing Warrant Shares, deliver to Holder a new Warrant evidencing the rights of Holder to purchase the unpurchased Warrant Shares called for by this Warrant, which new Warrant shall in all
other respects be identical with this Warrant.
 

(iv)           Rescission Rights. If the Company fails to deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing the Warrant Shares by the close of business on the third Trading Day after the Warrant Share
Delivery Date, then the Holder will have the right to rescind such exercise by providing written notice that is received by the Company prior to the issuance of the Warrant Shares.
 

(v)           Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Certificates Upon Exercise. In addition to any other rights available to the Holder, if the Company fails to deliver to the Holder a certificate
representing the Warrant Shares pursuant to an exercise by the close of business on the third Trading Day after the Warrant Share Delivery Date, and if after such date the Holder is required to purchase (in an open market transaction or
otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a prior sale by the Holder of the Warrant Shares which the Holder anticipated receiving upon such exercise (a “Buy-In”), then the Company shall within three Trading Days
after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s discretion, either (1) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including brokerage commissions, if any) for the shares of Common Stock less the
aggregate Exercise Price (the “Buy-In Price”), at which point the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificate (and to issue such Common Stock), solely with respect to such exercise, shall terminate or (2) promptly honor its obligation
to deliver to the Holder a certificate representing such Common Stock and pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In-Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common Stock, times (B) the
closing price on the date of the event giving rise to the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificates. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including,
without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely deliver certificates representing Warrant Shares upon exercise of the Warrant as required pursuant to the terms
hereof.
 

(vi)           No Fractional Shares or Scrip.  No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant. As to any fraction of a share which Holder would otherwise
be entitled to purchase upon such exercise, the Company shall at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the Exercise Price or round up to the next whole
share.
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(vii)           Charges, Taxes and Expenses.  Issuance and delivery of certificates for Warrant Shares shall be made without charge to the Holder for any issue or transfer tax, withholding tax, transfer agent fee or
other incidental tax or expense in respect of the issuance of such certificate, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid by the Company, and such certificates shall be issued in the name of the Holder or in such name or names as may be
directed by the Holder; provided, however, that in the event certificates for Warrant Shares are to be issued in a name other than the name of the Holder, this Warrant when surrendered for exercise shall be accompanied by the Assignment
Form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder; and the Company may require, as a condition thereto, the payment of a sum sufficient to reimburse it for any transfer tax incidental thereto.
 

(e)           Closing of Books.  The Company will not close its stockholder books or records in any manner which prevents the timely exercise of this Warrant, pursuant to the terms hereof.
 

Section 3.                Certain Adjustments.
 

(a)           Stock Dividends and Splits.  If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding: (A) pays a stock dividend or otherwise make a distribution or distributions on shares of its Common Stock or any other
equity or equity equivalent securities payable in shares of Common Stock (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any shares of Common Stock issued by the Company upon exercise of Warrant), (B) subdivides outstanding shares
of Common Stock into a larger number of shares, or (C) combines (including by way of reverse stock split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each case the Exercise Price shall be multiplied by a
fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event. Any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 3(a) shall become effective immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution
and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision or combination.
 

(b)           Reclassification Transaction.  In the event of a reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock of the Company at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, including, without
limitation, as a result of a merger or consolidation, the Company shall thereafter deliver at the time of purchase of Warrant Shares under this Warrant and in lieu of the number of Warrant Shares in respect of which the right to purchase is
then being exercised, the number of shares of the Company of the appropriate class or classes resulting from said reclassification or reclassifications as the Holder would have been entitled to receive in respect of the number of Warrant
Shares in respect of which the right of purchase hereunder is then being exercised had the right of purchase been exercised before such reclassification or reorganization.
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(c)           Adjustments for Other Dividends and Distributions.  In the event the Company, at any time or from time to time while this Warrant is outstanding, shall make or issue, or fix a record date for the determination of
holders of Common Stock entitled to receive a dividend or other distribution payable in securities of the Company (other than shares of Common Stock) or in cash or other property (other than cash out of earnings or earned surplus,
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles), then and in each such event provision shall be made so that the Holder shall receive upon exercise hereof, in addition to the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable hereunder, the kind and amount of securities of the Company and/or cash and other property to which the Holder would have been entitled to receive had this Warrant been exercised into Common Stock on the date of such event
and had the Holder thereafter, during the period from the date of such event to and including the Exercise Date, retained any such securities receivable, giving application to all adjustments called for during such period under this Section 3
with respect to the rights of the Holder, provided, however, (x) in the event that the holders of Common Stock have received options, warrants or rights that have expired prior to the date of exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall not be
entitled to receive such options, warrants or rights and (y) in the event of a distribution consisting of cash as referred to above, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such distribution will be proportionately reduced by the
amount of the distribution per share of Common Stock such Holder would have been entitled to receive had such Holder been the holder of record of such Common Stock as of the date on which holders of Common Stock received or
became entitled to receive such cash distribution.
 

(d)           Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, (A) the Company effects any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another Person, (B) the Company effects any sale of
all or substantially all of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (C) any tender offer or exchange offer is accepted by the holders of more than the 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not including any Common
Stock held by the Person or Persons making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the Persons making or party to, such tender or exchange offer), or (D) the Company effects any reclassification of the Warrant Shares or any
compulsory share exchange (other than a share split or reverse share split) pursuant to which the Warrant Shares are effectively converted into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property (in any such case, a “Fundamental
Transaction”), then, upon any subsequent exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Warrant Share that would have been issuable upon such exercise immediately prior to the occurrence of such
Fundamental Transaction, at the option of the Holder, (a) upon exercise of this Warrant, the number of shares of stock, or other securities or property of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving
corporation, and any additional consideration (the “Alternate Consideration”) receivable upon or as a result of such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or disposition of assets by a Holder to which the Holder would have
been entitled if the Holder had exercised its rights pursuant to the Warrant immediately prior thereto or (b) if the Company is acquired in an all cash transaction in which the per share consideration payable to the holders of Common Stock
is less than the Exercise Price, cash equal to the value of this Warrant as determined in accordance with the Black-Scholes option pricing formula.  For purposes of any such exercise, the determination of the Exercise Price shall be
appropriately adjusted to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one Warrant Share in such Fundamental Transaction, and the Company shall apportion the Exercise
Price among the Alternate Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the Alternate Consideration.  If holders of Warrant Shares are given any choice as to the securities, cash or
property to be received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon any exercise of this Warrant following such Fundamental Transaction.  To the extent
necessary to effectuate the foregoing provisions, any successor to the Company or surviving entity in such Fundamental Transaction shall issue to the Holder a new warrant consistent with the foregoing provisions and evidencing the
Holder’s right to exercise such warrant into Alternate Consideration. The terms of any agreement pursuant to which a Fundamental Transaction is effected shall include terms requiring any such successor or surviving entity to comply with
the provisions of this Section 3(d) and insuring that this Warrant (or any such replacement security) will be similarly adjusted upon any subsequent transaction analogous to a Fundamental Transaction.
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(e)           Anti-dilution Adjustments. If, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, the Company shall issue or sell any Common Stock for a consideration per share less than the Exercise Price then in effect, or shall
issue or sell any options, warrants or other rights (including, without limitation, securities convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock) for the purchase or acquisition of such shares at a consideration per share of less than the
Exercise Price then in effect, the Exercise Price shall be reduced to an amount equal to the per share consideration payable to the Company in such sale or issuance.  The consideration per share payable to the Company in a sale or issuance
of options, warrants or other rights for the purchase or acquisition of shares of Common Stock shall be determined by dividing:  (A) the total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as consideration for the sale or issue of
such options, warrants or other rights, plus the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration (as set forth in the instruments relating thereto, without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent adjustment of such
consideration) payable to the Company upon the exercise of such options, warrants or other rights or conversion or exercise of such other rights, by (B) the maximum number of shares of Common Stock (as set forth in the instruments
relating thereto, without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent adjustment of such number) issuable upon the exercise of such options, warrants or other rights or conversion or exercise of such other rights.  In case any
portion of the consideration to be received by the Company shall be in a form other than cash, the fair market value of such non-cash consideration, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company, shall be utilized to
determine the consideration per share. The foregoing adjustment shall not apply in any of the following scenarios: (i) any issuances of securities to directors, officers or employees of the Company or a wholly owned subsidiary thereof in
their capacity as such in the ordinary course pursuant to an incentive plan approved by the Board of Directors of the Company; (ii) any issuances of securities having a Fair Market Value of up to $2,000,000 in the aggregate to service
providers of the Company or a wholly owned subsidiary thereof in bona fide, arm's length transactions in consideration for services provided; (iii) any issuances of securities having a Fair Market Value of up to $10,000,000 in the
aggregate to investors during the one-year period commencing on the date hereof; and (iv) any issuances of Common Stock pursuant to options or warrants to purchase Common Stock that are outstanding prior to the date hereof.
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(f)           Voluntary Adjustment By Company.  The Company may at any time during the term of this Warrant reduce the then current Exercise Price to any amount and for any period of time deemed appropriate by the
Board of Directors of the Company.
 

(g)           Number of Warrant Shares. Simultaneously with any adjustment to the Exercise Price pursuant to of this Section 3, the number of shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be proportionately adjusted
so that after such adjustment the aggregate Exercise Price payable hereunder for the increased or decreased number of Warrant Shares shall be the same as the aggregate Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such adjustment.
 

(h)           Calculations. All calculations under this Section 3 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For purposes of this Section 3, the number of shares of Common Stock
deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) issued and outstanding.
 

(i)           Notice to Holders.
 

(i)           Adjustment to Exercise Price.  Whenever the Exercise Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 3, the Company shall promptly mail to each Holder a notice setting forth the Exercise
Price after such adjustment and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.
 

(ii)           Notice to Allow Exercise by Holder. If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on the Common Stock; (B) the Company shall declare a special
nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common Stock; (C) the Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class
or of any rights; (D) the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be required in connection with any reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or transfer of all
or substantially all of the assets of the Company, of any compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or property; (E) the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution,
liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the Company; then, in each case, the Company shall notify the Holder at least 10 calendar days prior to the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (x) the date on
which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to such dividend,
distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is
expected that holders of the Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share
exchange; provided that the failure to mail such notice or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice.  Any such notice or information published via
international wire or furnished to or filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission shall satisfy this notice requirement.
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Section 4.                        Transfer of Warrant.
 

(a)           Transferability.  Subject to compliance with any applicable securities laws and the conditions set forth in Section 4(d) hereof and to the provisions of Section 5.7 of the Purchase Agreement, this Warrant and all
rights hereunder (including, without limitation, any registration rights) are transferable, in whole or in part, upon surrender of this Warrant at the principal office of the Company or its designated agent, together with a written assignment of
this Warrant substantially in the form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder or its agent or attorney and funds sufficient to pay any transfer taxes payable upon the making of such transfer. Upon such surrender and, if required, such
payment, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in the name of the assignee or assignees and in the denomination or denominations specified in such instrument of assignment, and shall issue to the assignor a
new Warrant evidencing the portion of this Warrant not so assigned, and this Warrant shall promptly be cancelled. A Warrant, if properly assigned, may be exercised by a new holder for the purchase of Warrant Shares without having a new
Warrant issued.
 

(b)           New Warrants.  This Warrant may be divided or combined with other Warrants upon presentation hereof at the aforesaid office of the Company, together with a written notice specifying the names and
denominations in which new Warrants are to be issued, signed by the Holder or its agent or attorney. Subject to compliance with Section 4(a), as to any transfer which may be involved in such division or combination, the Company shall
execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in exchange for the Warrant or Warrants to be divided or combined in accordance with such notice.
 

(c)           Warrant Register.  The Company shall register this Warrant, upon records to be maintained by the Company for that purpose (the “Warrant Register”), in the name of the record Holder hereof from time to time.
The Company may deem and treat the registered Holder of this Warrant as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of any exercise hereof or any distribution to the Holder, and for all other purposes, absent actual notice to the contrary.
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(d)           Transfer Restrictions.  If, at the time of the surrender of this Warrant in connection with any transfer of this Warrant, the transfer of this Warrant shall not be registered pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act and under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, the Company may require, as a condition of allowing such transfer (i) that the Holder or transferee of this Warrant, as the case may be, furnish to the
Company a written opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that such transfer may be made without registration under the
Securities Act and under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, (ii) that the holder or transferee execute and deliver to the Company an investment letter in form and substance acceptable to the Company and (iii) that the transferee be
an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act or a qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act.
 

Section 5.                        Miscellaneous.
 

(a)           No Rights as Shareholder Until Exercise.  This Warrant does not entitle the Holder to any voting rights or other rights as a shareholder of the Company prior to the exercise hereof. Upon the surrender of this
Warrant and the payment of the aggregate Exercise Price, the Warrant Shares so purchased shall be and be deemed to be issued to such Holder as the record owner of such shares as of the close of business on the later of the date of such
surrender or payment.
 

(b)           Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. The Company covenants that upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant
or any stock certificate relating to the Warrant Shares, and in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to it (which, in the case of the Warrant, shall not include the posting of any bond), and upon
surrender and cancellation of such Warrant or stock certificate, if mutilated, the Company will make and deliver a new Warrant or stock certificate of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in lieu of such Warrant or stock certificate.
 

(c)           Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc.  If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall not be a Business Day, then such action may be taken or
such right may be exercised on the next succeeding Business Day.
 

(d)           Authorized Shares.
 

The Company covenants that during the period the Warrant is outstanding, it will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares to provide for the issuance of the Warrant
Shares upon the exercise of any purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company further covenants that its issuance of this Warrant shall constitute full authority to its officers who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates
to execute and issue the necessary certificates for the Warrant Shares upon the exercise of the purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company will take all such reasonable action as may be necessary to assure that such Warrant Shares
may be issued as provided herein without violation of any applicable law or regulation, or of any requirements of the Trading Market upon which the Common Stock may be listed.
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Except and to the extent waived or consented to by the Holder, the Company shall not by any action, including, without limitation, amending its certificate of incorporation or through any reorganization, transfer
of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in the
carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to protect the rights of Holder as set forth in this Warrant against impairment.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company will (a) not increase the par value of any Warrant Shares above the amount payable therefor upon such exercise immediately prior to such increase in par value, (b) take all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order
that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable Warrant Shares upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (c) use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all such authorizations, exemptions or consents from any
public regulatory body having jurisdiction thereof as may be necessary to enable the Company to perform its obligations under this Warrant.
 

(e)           Jurisdiction.  All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Warrant shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the Purchase Agreement.
 

(f)            Restrictions.  The Holder acknowledges that the Warrant Shares acquired upon the exercise of this Warrant, if not registered, will have restrictions upon resale imposed by state and federal securities laws.
 

(g)           Nonwaiver and Expenses. No course of dealing or any delay or failure to exercise any right hereunder on the part of Holder shall operate as a waiver of such right or otherwise prejudice Holder’s rights, powers
or remedies, notwithstanding the fact that all rights hereunder terminate on the Termination Date. If the Company willfully and knowingly fails to comply with any provision of this Warrant, which results in any damages to the Holder, and
if the Holder shall prevail against the Company in a final non-appealable court judgment, the Company shall pay to Holder such amounts as shall be sufficient to cover any costs and expenses including, but not limited to, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, including those of appellate proceedings, incurred by Holder in collecting any amounts due pursuant hereto or in otherwise enforcing any of its rights, powers or remedies hereunder.
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(h)           Notices.  Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered to the Holder by the Company shall be delivered in accordance with the notice provisions of the Purchase
Agreement.
 

(i)            Limitation of Liability.  No provision hereof, in the absence of any affirmative action by Holder to exercise this Warrant to purchase Warrant Shares, and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges of
Holder, shall give rise to any liability of Holder for the purchase price of any Common Stock or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.
 

(j)            Remedies. Holder, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law, including recovery of damages, will be entitled to specific performance of its rights under this Warrant, without duplication.
The Company agrees that monetary damages would not be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of a breach by it of the provisions of this Warrant and hereby agrees to waive and not to assert the defense in any action for
specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate.
 

(k)           Successors and Assigns.  Subject to applicable securities laws, this Warrant and the rights and obligations evidenced hereby shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors of the Company and
the successors and permitted assigns of Holder. The provisions of this Warrant are intended to be for the benefit of all Holders from time to time of this Warrant and shall be enforceable by any such Holder or holder of Warrant Shares.
 

(l)            Amendment.  This Warrant may be modified or amended or the provisions hereof waived with the written consent of the Company and the Holder.
 

(m)          Severability.  Wherever possible, each provision of this Warrant shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Warrant shall be prohibited by or
invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provisions or the remaining provisions of this Warrant.
 

(n)           Headings.  The headings used in this Warrant are for the convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose, be deemed a part of this Warrant.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be executed by its officer thereunto duly authorized.
 

 ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.  
    
 By: /s/ Nadav Kidron  
  Nadav Kidron  
  Title:    Chief Executive Officer  
    
Dated: November 5, 2012
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE
 
  TO:  Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.
  Hi-Tech Park 2/5
  Givat-Ram
  PO Box 39098
  Jerusalem 91390 Israel
  Attn: Nadav Kidron
 
 (1) The undersigned hereby elects to purchase __________ Warrant Shares of the Company pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant (only if exercised in full), and tenders herewith payment of the exercise price in full,

together with all applicable transfer taxes, if any.
 
 (2) Payment shall take the form of (check applicable box):
 

o in lawful money of the United States; or
 

o the cancellation of such number of Warrant Shares as is necessary, in accordance with the formula set forth in Section 2(c), to exercise this Warrant with respect to the maximum number of Warrant Shares purchasable
pursuant to the cashless exercise procedure set forth in Section 2(c). [Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of a print-out of the Bloomberg screen showing the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, as defined
therein.]

 
 (3) Please issue a certificate or certificates representing said Warrant Shares in the name of the undersigned or in such other name as is specified below:
 
 _________________________________________

 
The Warrant Shares shall be delivered to the following:
__________________________________________
__________________________________________
__________________________________________

 
 (4) Accredited Investor.  The undersigned is an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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[SIGNATURE OF HOLDER]
 
  Name of Investing Entity: __________________________________________
  Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investing Entity: _______________________________
  Name of Authorized Signatory: __________________________________________
  Title of Authorized Signatory: ___________________________________________
  Date: _______________________
 
 

A - 15



 
 

ASSIGNMENT FORM
 

(To assign the foregoing warrant, execute
 

this form and supply required information.
 

Do not use this form to exercise the warrant.)
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the foregoing Warrant and all rights evidenced thereby are hereby assigned to whose address is ________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________________

Dated: _____________________
 
Holder’s Signature:
 
Holder’s Address: _________________________
 _________________________
_________________________
 
  Signature Guaranteed: _____________________________
 
NOTE: The signature to this Assignment Form must correspond with the name as it appears on the face of the Warrant, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever, and must be guaranteed by a bank or trust

company.  Officers of corporations and those acting in a fiduciary or other representative capacity should file proper evidence of authority to assign the foregoing Warrant.
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Exhibit 10.23
 
Executed Version

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
 

This Securities Purchase Agreement (this "Agreement") is dated as of October 30, 2012, among Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and D.N.A Biomedical Solutions Ltd., an Israeli
company (referred to herein as "D.N.A" or an "Investor").
 

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Regulation S promulgated thereunder, the Company desires to issue
and sell to the Investor, and the Investor, desires to purchase from the Company certain securities of the Company, and the Investor desires to issue and sell to the Company, and the Company, desires to purchase from the Investor certain
securities of the Investor, all as more fully described in this Agreement.
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the
Investor agree as follows:
 

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS

 
1.1           Definitions.  In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, for all purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated in this Section 1.1:

 
"Affiliate" means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common control with a Person, as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 144.

 
“Closing” means the closing of the purchase and sale of the Securities pursuant to Section 2.1.

 
"Closing Date" means the Trading Day when all of the conditions precedent to (A) the Investor's obligations to issue the Option to the Company and (B) the Company’s obligations to deliver the Oramed Shares have

been satisfied or waived.
 

"Common Stock" means the common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share, and any other class of securities into which such common stock may hereafter be reclassified or changed into.
 

"D.N.A Ordinary Shares" means the ordinary shares of D.N.A, no par value, and any other class of securities into which such ordinary shares may hereafter be reclassified or changed into.
 
 

 



 
 

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 

“Liens” means a lien, charge, security interest, encumbrance, right of first refusal, preemptive right or other restriction.
 

"Oramed Shares" means the 2,390,057 shares of Common Stock issued or issuable to the Investor pursuant to this Agreement.
 

"Option" means the option to purchase 21,637,611 D.N.A Ordinary Shares in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.
 

"Option Shares" means the D.N.A Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of the Option.
 

"Person" means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability company, joint stock company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof)
or other entity of any kind.
 

"Rule 144" means Rule 144 promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC having substantially
the same effect as such Rule.
 

"SEC" means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
 

"Securities" means the Oramed Shares, the Option and the Option Shares.
 

"Short Sales" means, without limitation, all "short sales" as defined in Rule 200 of Regulation SHO promulgated under the Exchange Act.
 

"Trading Day" means any day other than Friday, Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York or Israel are authorized or required by law to remain closed.
 

"Transaction Documents" means this Agreement, the Option and any other documents or agreements executed in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder.
 

ARTICLE II.
PURCHASE AND SALE

 
2.1           Closing.  On the Closing Date, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the Company shall issue and sell to the Investor, and the Investor, shall purchase from the Company, the Oramed Shares set

forth opposite the Investor’s name on Schedule 1. Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3, the Closing shall occur at such location as the parties shall mutually agree.
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2.2           Deliveries.
 

(a)      On the date hereof, the Company and the Investor shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the other, this Agreement, together with all exhibits and schedules attached thereto, duly executed by an authorized
representative.
 

(b)      On the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver to the Investor irrevocable instructions to its transfer agent authorizing the transfer agent to issue to the Investor a certificate evidencing the Oramed Shares, and to
register such shares in the name of the Investor.
 

(c)      On the Closing Date, the Investor shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Company:
 

(i)             the Option, in full payment for the Oramed Shares, and
 

(ii)            A copy of the application of DNA for the approval of the TASE Board of Directors to list the Option Shares.
 

2.3           Closing Conditions.
 

(a)      The obligations of the Company hereunder in connection with the Closing are subject to the following conditions having been met:
 

(i)             the accuracy in all material respects when made and on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Investor contained herein;
 

(ii)            all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Investor contained herein required to be performed at or prior to the Closing Date shall have been performed; and
 

(iii)           the delivery by the Investor of the items set forth in Section 2.2(c) of this Agreement.
 

(b)      The respective obligations of the Investor hereunder in connection with the Closing is subject to the following conditions having been met:
 

(i)             the accuracy in all material respects when made and on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Company contained herein;
 

(ii)            all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Company contained herein required to be performed at or prior to the Closing Date shall have been performed;
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(iii)           the delivery by the Company of the items set forth in Section 2.2(b) of this Agreement;
 

(iv)           from the date hereof to the Closing Date, trading in the Common Stock shall not have been suspended by the SEC or the National Association of Securities Dealers over-the-counter electronic bulletin
board (the “OTCBB”).
 

ARTICLE III.
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

 
3.1           Representations and Warranties of the Company.  The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Investor as follows on the date hereof and as of the Closing Date:

 
(a)      Organization, Good Standing and Qualification of the Company.  The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware.  The Company has all

requisite corporate power and authority to own and operate its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted and as proposed to be conducted.  The Company is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is
in good standing in each jurisdiction in which failure to so qualify would materially and adversely affect the business, properties, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company.  The resolutions adopted by the
directors of the Company on October  29, 2012 authorizing the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents have not been amended or modified in any way, have not been rescinded and are in full force and effect on the date
hereof.
 

(b)      Corporate Authority; Enforceability.  The Company has full right, power and authority to issue and sell the Oramed Shares as herein contemplated and the Company has full power and authority to enter into and
perform its obligations under the Transaction Documents.  The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein have been duly authorized and approved by
all requisite corporate action, and each of the Transaction Documents are a valid and legally binding obligation of the Company.
 

(c)      Conflicts.  Neither the authorization, execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents nor the consummation of the transactions herein and therein contemplated, will (i) conflict with or result in a breach of any
of the terms of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws, (ii) violate any judgment, order, injunction, decree or award of any court or governmental body, having jurisdiction over the Company, against or binding on the
Company or to which its property is subject, (iii) violate any material law or regulation of any jurisdiction which is applicable to the Company, (iv) violate, conflict with or result in the breach or termination of, or constitute a default under,
the terms of any material agreement to which the Company is a party, except for such violations or defaults which do not materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise of the
Company, or (v) violate or conflict with the rules and regulations of the OTCBB applicable to the Company.
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(d)      Capitalization. The authorized capital of the Company as of the date hereof consists of 200,000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which there were (i) 80,548,989 issued and outstanding as of the date hereof as fully
paid and non-assessable shares; (ii) options and/or warrants to purchase 15,118,310 shares of Common Stock; and (iii) employee and directors options to purchase 7,824,000 shares of Common Stock. As of the date hereof, the Company
has not issued any capital stock since its most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act, other than pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options under the Company’s stock option plans and the issuance of shares of
Common Stock to employees pursuant to the Company’s employee stock purchase plan outstanding as of the date of the most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act.  All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the
Company are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.  No further approval or authorization of any stockholder or the Board of Directors of the Company is required for the issuance and sale of the Oramed Shares.  The issuance of the
Oramed Shares pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement will not violate any preemptive rights or rights of first refusal granted by the Company that will not be validly waived or complied with, and will be free of any liens or
encumbrances, other than any liens or encumbrances created by or imposed upon the Investor through no action of the Company.  There are no stockholders agreements, voting agreements or other similar agreements with respect to the
Company’s capital stock to which the Company is a party or, to the knowledge of the Company, between or among any of the Company’s stockholders.
 

(e)      Litigation.  There are no actions, suits or proceedings at law or in equity or by or before any governmental instrumentality or other agency or regulatory authority now pending, or, to the best knowledge of the
Company, threatened against the Company which, if adversely determined, could materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company. There is no action, suit or
proceeding by the Company currently pending or that the Company currently intends to initiate.
 

(f)       Compliance with Laws.  The Company is not in violation of any statute, law, rule or regulation, or in default with respect to any judgment, writ, injunction, decree, rule or regulation of any court or governmental
agency or instrumentality, except for such violations or defaults which do not materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company.
 

(g)      Governmental Consents.  Subject to the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the Investor set forth herein, no registration or filing with, or consent or approval of or other action by, any Federal, state or
other government agency under laws and regulations thereof as now in effect is or will be necessary for the valid execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Transaction Documents, and the issuance, sale and delivery of
the Oramed Shares, other than the the filings required by state securities law.
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(h)      Regulatory Matters.  The clinical, pre-clinical and other trials, studies and tests conducted by or on behalf of or sponsored by the Company relating to its pharmaceutical product candidates were and, if still pending,
are being conducted in all material respects in accordance with medical and scientific protocols and research procedures that the Company reasonably believes are appropriate.  The descriptions of the results of such trials, studies and tests
as set forth in the SEC Documents (as defined in Section 3(i) of this Agreement), provided to the Investor are accurate in all material respects and fairly present the data derived from such trials, studies and tests.  All clinical trials
conducted by the Company have been in compliance in all material respects with applicable laws and regulations.  The Company has not received any warning letters or written correspondence from the FDA and/or any other governmental
entity or agency requiring the termination, suspension or modification of any clinical, pre-clinical and other trials, studies or tests that are material to the Company.   None of the clinical trials that the Company is currently conducting or
sponsoring is subject to any temporary or permanent clinical hold by the FDA or any other governmental entity or agency, and the Company has no reason to believe that such clinical trials will be subject to any such action.
 

(i)       SEC Documents; Financial Statements.  For the past twelve (12) months, the Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the
reporting requirements of the Exchange Act (all of the foregoing filed prior to the date hereof and all exhibits included therein and financial statements, notes and schedules thereto and documents incorporated by reference therein being
hereinafter referred to as the “SEC Documents”).  The Company has delivered to the Investor or their respective representatives true, correct and complete copies of each of the SEC Documents not available on the Electronic Data
Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval system of the SEC that have been requested by Investor.  As of their respective dates, the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with the requirements of the Exchange Act and the
rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC Documents, at the time they were filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.  As of their respective dates, the financial statements of the
Company included in the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto as in effect as of the time of
filing.  Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), consistently applied, during the periods involved (except (i) as may be otherwise indicated in such financial
statements or the notes thereto, or (ii) in the case of unaudited interim statements, to the extent they may exclude footnotes or may be condensed or summary statements) and fairly present in all material respects the financial position of the
Company as of the dates thereof and the results of its operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments).  The Company has no liabilities or obligations
required to be disclosed in the SEC Documents that are not so disclosed in the SEC Documents, other than those incurred in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.
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(j)       Sarbanes-Oxley; Internal Accounting Controls. Each SEC Document containing financial statements that has been filed with or submitted to the SEC was accompanied by the certifications required to be filed or
submitted by the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”); at the time of filing or submission of each such certification, such certification was
true and accurate and complied with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder; such certifications contain no qualifications or exceptions to the matters certified therein and have not been modified or
withdrawn; and neither the Company nor any of its officers has received notice from any governmental entity questioning or challenging the accuracy, completeness, form or manner of filing or submission of such certification;
 

(k)      Absence of Changes.  The Common Stock is quoted for trading on the OTCBB.  No order ceasing, halting or suspending trading in the Common Stock nor prohibiting the sale of the Common Stock has been issued
to and is outstanding against the Company or its directors, officers or promoters, and, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, no investigations or proceedings for such purposes are pending or threatened.  The Company has not taken any
action which would be reasonably expected to result in the delisting or suspension of quotation of the Common Stock on or from the OTCBB and the Company has complied in all material respects with the rules and regulations of
eligibility on the OTCBB.  The Company has not taken any steps to seek protection pursuant to any bankruptcy law nor does the Company have any knowledge or reason to believe that its creditors intend to initiate involuntary bankruptcy
proceedings or any actual knowledge of any fact which would reasonably lead any creditor or creditors to do so.  Based on the financial condition of the Company as of the date hereof, after giving effect to the receipt by the Company of
the proceeds from the transactions contemplated hereby, the Company reasonably believes that (i) the fair saleable value of the Company’s assets exceeds the amount that will be required to be paid on or in respect of the Company’s
existing debts and other liabilities as they mature; (ii) the Company’s assets do not constitute unreasonably small capital to carry on its business as now conducted and as proposed to be conducted including its capital needs taking into
account the particular capital requirements of the business conducted by the Company, and projected capital requirements and capital availability thereof; and (iii) the current cash flow of the Company, together with the proceeds the
Company would receive, were it to liquidate all of its assets, after taking into account all anticipated uses of the cash, would be sufficient to pay all amounts on or in respect of its liabilities when such amounts are required to be paid.  The
Company does not intend to incur debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature (taking into account the timing and amounts of cash to be payable on or in respect of its debt).  The SEC Documents set forth as of the dates
thereof all outstanding secured and unsecured Company Indebtedness, or for which the Company or any subsidiary has commitments. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Company Indebtedness” shall mean with respect to the
Company and any subsidiary (a) any liabilities for borrowed money or amounts owed (other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business), (b) all guaranties, endorsements and other contingent obligations in
respect of Company Indebtedness of others, whether or not the same are or should be reflected in the Company’s balance sheet (or the notes thereto), except guaranties by endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or
similar transactions in the ordinary course of business; and (c) the present value of any lease payments due under leases required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP. Neither the Company nor any subsidiary is in default with
respect to any Company Indebtedness.
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(l)      Patents and Trademarks. The Company has rights to use all patents, patent applications, trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other
intellectual property rights and similar rights necessary or material for use in connection with its business as described in the SEC Documents and which the failure to so have would have a material adverse effect on the results of
operations, assets, business, prospects, or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company (collectively, the “Company Intellectual Property Rights”). The Company has not received any notice (written or otherwise) that the Company
Intellectual Property Rights used by the Company violate or infringe upon the rights of any other person or entity. To the knowledge of the Company, all such Company Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there is no existing
infringement by another person or entity of any of the Company Intellectual Property Rights. The Company has taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of all of its Company Intellectual Property
Rights.
 

(m)     Offering.  Assuming the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the Investor contained in Section 3.2 of this Agreement, the offer, issue, and sale of the Oramed Shares are exempt from the registration and
prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act and the registration or qualification requirements of all applicable state securities laws.  Neither the Company nor any authorized agent acting on its behalf will knowingly take any
action hereafter that would cause the loss of such exemptions.
 

(n)      No General Solicitation; Placement Agent’s Fees.  Neither the Company, nor any of its Affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has engaged in any form of general solicitation or general advertising
(within the meaning of Regulation D of the Securities Act) in connection with the offer or sale of the Oramed Shares.  The Company shall be responsible for the payment of any placement agent’s fees, financial advisory fees, or brokers’
commissions (other than for persons engaged by any Investor or its investment advisor) relating to or arising out of the issuance of the Oramed Shares.
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(o)      No Integrated Offering.  Neither the Company nor any person acting on its behalf has, directly or indirectly, made any offers or sales of any security or solicited any offers to buy any security, under circumstances
that would require registration of any of the Oramed Shares under the Securities Act or cause this offering of the Oramed Shares to be integrated with prior offerings by the Company for purposes of the Securities Act or any applicable
shareholder approval provisions, including, without limitation, under the rules and regulations of the OTCBB or any other exchange or automated quotation system on which any of the securities of the Company are listed or designated.
 

(p)      Manipulation of Price.  The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, directly or indirectly, any action designed to cause or to result in the stabilization or manipulation of the
price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of any of the Oramed Shares, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the Oramed Shares, or (iii) paid or agreed to pay to
any person any compensation for soliciting another to purchase any other securities of the Company.
 

(q)      But for the representations actually made in this Agreement, the Company represents that it is aware that the Option Shares are allocated "AS IS" without any further representations by the Investor and/or its
directors and/or its shareholders.
 

(r)      The Company represents that it is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the transactions contemplated hereunder, and that it shall solely bear all such economic risks.
 

(s)      The Company recognizes that its investment in DNA involves a high degree of risk, and has required knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of
its investment and has the ability to bear the economic risks of its investment and the potential loss of its entire investment.
 

(t)      The Company further warrants that it has considered and shall solely bear the tax implications which apply to it in connection of the execution of its investment and that the Investor has not presented it with any
representation in accordance with such tax implications.
 

(u)      The Company is, and will be, acquiring the Option and the Option Shares as principal for its own account for investment purposes only and not with a view to or for distributing or reselling such Option and the
Option Shares or any part thereof, without prejudice, however, to the Company's right, to sell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of such Option and the Option Shares in compliance with applicable securities laws.  The Company
hereby acknowledges that the Option Shares are subject to a resale restriction pursuant to applicable Israeli law and regulations.
 

(v)      The Company's wholly owned Israeli subsidiary, currently holds 8,404,667 D.N.A Ordinary Shares.  The Company is aware of the Investor's obligation to file an immediate report with the Israel Securities
Authority (the "ISA") regarding this Agreement.  The Company is aware of the obligations under Israeli law of an “interested party” to promptly report to the Investor any changes in its ownership of D.N.A Ordinary Shares.
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(w)     Disclosure.  All disclosure provided to the Investor with regard to the representations and warranties contained in this Section 3.1 regarding the Company, its business and the transactions contemplated hereby,
furnished in writing by the Company is true and correct in all material respects and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, together with the disclosure in the SEC Documents, not misleading.
 

(x)       Investor Reliance.  The Company expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Investor is relying upon the Company’s representations contained in this Agreement.
 

3.2      Representations and Warranties of the Investor.  The Investor, hereby represents and warrants to the Company as follows:
 

(a)      Organization, Validity and Qualification of the Investor.  The Investor is a company duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Israel. .  The Investor has all requisite corporate power and
authority to own and operate its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted and as proposed to be conducted.  The Investor is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing in each
jurisdiction in which failure to so qualify would materially and adversely affect the business, properties, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Investor.  The resolutions adopted by the directors of the Investor on
September 9, 2012 authorizing the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents have not been amended or modified in any way, have not been rescinded and are in full force and effect on the date hereof.
 

(b)      Corporate Authority; Enforceability.  The Investor has full right, power and authority to issue the Option and the Option Shares as herein contemplated and the Investor has full power and authority to enter into and
perform its obligations under the Transaction Documents.  The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein have been duly authorized and approved by
all requisite corporate action, and each of the Transaction Documents are a valid and legally binding obligation of the Investor.  The Transaction Documents have been duly executed by the Investor and, when delivered in accordance with
the terms thereof, will constitute the valid and binding obligation of the Investor enforceable against them in accordance with its terms, subject to laws of general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors.
Subject to the resale restrictions under the relevant securities laws, the Options and the Option Shares, when issued by the Investor, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and free and clear of all liens.
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(c)      Conflicts.  Neither the authorization, execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents nor the consummation of the transactions herein and therein contemplated, will (i) conflict with or result in a breach of any
of the terms of the Investor’s Memorandum of Association or Articles of Association, (ii) violate any judgment, order, injunction, decree or award of any court or governmental body, having jurisdiction over the Investor, against or binding
on the Investor or to which its property is subject, (iii) violate any material law or regulation of any jurisdiction which is applicable to the Investor, (iv) violate, conflict with or result in the breach or termination of, or constitute a default
under, the terms of any material agreement to which the Investor is a party, except for such violations or defaults which do not materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise of
the Investor, or (v) violate or conflict with the rules and regulations of the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange (the "TASE").
 

(d)      Capitalization. The authorized capital of the Investor as of the date hereof consists of 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares, of which there were a total of (i) 186,112,740 ordinary shares issued and outstanding as of the
date hereof as fully paid and nonassessable shares; (ii) options (including employee stock options) and/or warrants to purchase 16,111,810 ordinary shares; and (iii) 4,154,868 Series B bonds convertible into 692,478 ordinary shares.  All of
the outstanding shares of share capital of the Investor are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.  The issuance of the Option and the Option Shares pursuant to the provisions of the Transaction Documents will not violate any
preemptive rights or rights of first refusal granted by the Investor that will not be validly waived or complied with, and will be free of any liens or encumbrances. Other than a verbal understanding between Mr. Zeev Bronfeld and Mr. Meni
Mor, each a controlling shareholder of the Investor, to act in concert with respect to the ordinary shares of the Investor held by each of them, there are no shareholders agreements, voting agreements or other similar agreements with respect
to the Investor’s share capital to which the Investor is a party or, to the knowledge of the Investor, between or among any of the Investor's shareholders, including the Company. No further approval or authorization of any stockholder or the
Board of Directors of the Investor is required for the issuance and sale of the Option or the Option Shares.
 

(e)      Litigation.  There are no actions, suits or proceedings at law or in equity or by or before any governmental instrumentality or other agency or regulatory authority now pending, or, to the best knowledge of the
Investor, threatened against the Investor which, if adversely determined, could materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Investor. There is no action, suit or
proceeding by the Investor currently pending or that the Investor currently intends to initiate.
 

(f)       Compliance with Laws.  Except as set forth in the letter attached hereto as Exhibit B, the Investor is not in violation of any statute, law, rule or regulation, or in default with respect to any judgment, writ, injunction,
decree, rule or regulation of any court or governmental agency or instrumentality, except for such violations or defaults which do not materially and adversely affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or condition, financial or
otherwise, of the Investor.
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(g)      Filings, Consents and Approvals.  Except for the requisite approval of the TASE, no registration or filing with, or consent or approval of or other action by, any government agency under laws and regulations
thereof as now in effect is or will be necessary for the valid execution, delivery and performance by the Investor of the Transaction Documents, and the issuance, sale and delivery of the Option and the Option Shares.  The ISA has the right
to comment on private placements in Israel.  All reports delivered by the Investor in accordance with applicable TASE and ISA regulations were true and correct and did not contain any misleading information as such term is defined in the
Israeli Securities Law, 5728-1968.
 

(h)      Intentionally Left Blank.
 

(i)       SEC Documents; Financial Statements. Except as set forth in the letter attached hereto as Exhibit B, for the past twelve (12) months, the Investor has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other
documents required to be filed by it with the ISA pursuant to the reporting requirements of applicable law (all of the foregoing filed prior to the date hereof and all exhibits included therein and financial statements, notes and schedules
thereto and documents incorporated by reference therein being hereinafter referred to as the “ISA Documents”).  The Investor has delivered to the Company or their respective representatives true, correct and complete copies of each of
the ISA Documents not available on MAGNA that have been requested by the Company.  As of their respective dates, the ISA Documents complied as to form in all material respects with the requirements of applicable law, and none of
the ISA Documents, at the time they were filed with the ISA, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. Except as set forth in the letter attached hereto as Exhibit B, as of their respective dates, the financial statements of the Investor included in the ISA Documents complied
as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the ISA with respect thereto as in effect as of the time of filing.  Such financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with GAAP, consistently applied, during the periods involved (except (i) as may be otherwise indicated in such financial statements or the notes thereto, or (ii) in the case of unaudited interim statements, to the extent they may
exclude footnotes or may be condensed or summary statements) and fairly present in all material respects the financial position of the Investor as of the dates thereof and the results of its operations and cash flows for the periods then ended
(subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments).  The Investor has no liabilities or obligations required to be disclosed in the ISA Documents that are not so disclosed in the ISA Documents, other than
those incurred in the ordinary course of the Investor’s business.
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(j)       Absence of Changes.  The ordinary shares of the Investor are listed on the TASE.  No order ceasing, halting or suspending trading in the ordinary shares or prohibiting the sale of the ordinary shares has been issued
to and is outstanding against the Investor or its directors, officers or promoters, and, to the best of the Investor’s knowledge, no investigations or proceedings for such purposes are pending or threatened.  The Investor has not, received
notice (written or oral) from the TASE to the effect that the Investor is not in compliance with the listing or maintenance requirements of the TASE.  The Investor is not, and has no reason to believe that it will not in the foreseeable future
continue to be, in compliance with all such listing and maintenance requirements.  The Investor has not taken any action which would be reasonably expected to result in the delisting or suspension of quotation of the ordinary shares on or
from the TASE and the Investor has complied in all material respects with the rules and regulations of eligibility on the TASE.  The Investor has not taken any steps to seek protection pursuant to any bankruptcy law nor does the Investor
have any knowledge or reason to believe that its creditors intend to initiate involuntary bankruptcy proceedings or any actual knowledge of any fact which would reasonably lead any creditor or creditors to do so.  The Investor does not
intend to incur debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature (taking into account the timing and amounts of cash to be payable on or in respect of its debt).  The ISA Documents set forth as of the dates thereof all outstanding
secured and unsecured Investor Indebtedness of the Investor or any subsidiary, or for which the Investor or any subsidiary has commitments.  For the purposes of this Agreement, “Investor Indebtedness” shall mean with respect to the
Investor and any subsidiary (a) any liabilities for borrowed money or amounts owed (other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business), (b) all guaranties, endorsements and other contingent obligations in
respect of Investor Indebtedness of others, whether or not the same are or should be reflected in the Investor’s balance sheet (or the notes thereto), except guaranties by endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or
similar transactions in the ordinary course of business; and (c) the present value of any lease payments due under leases required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP. Neither the Investor nor any subsidiary is in default with respect
to any Investor Indebtedness.
 

(k)      Patents and Trademarks. The Investor has rights to use all patents, patent applications, trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other
intellectual property rights and similar rights necessary or material for use in connection with its business as described in the ISA Documents and which the failure to so have would have a material adverse effect on the results of
operations, assets, business, prospects, or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Investor (collectively, the “InvestorIntellectual Property Rights”). The Investor has not received any notice (written or otherwise) that the Investor
Intellectual Property Rights used by the Investor violate or infringe upon the rights of any other person or entity. To the knowledge of the Investor, all such Investor Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there is no existing
infringement by another person or entity of any of the Investor Intellectual Property Rights. The Investor has taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of all of its Investor Intellectual Property
Rights.
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(l)       Offering.  The offer, issue, and sale of the Option and the Option Shares contemplated hereby are exempt from the prospectus requirements of under the Israeli Securities Law, 5728-1968.  Neither the Investor nor
any authorized agent acting on its behalf will knowingly take any action hereafter that would cause the loss of such exemptions. The Investor has not offered or sold its ordinary shares or related derivative securities to more than 35
investors (excluding qualified institutional investors) during the past 12 months.
 

(m)     No General Solicitation; Placement Agent’s Fees.  Neither the Investor, nor any of its Affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has engaged in any form of general solicitation or general advertising in
connection with the offer or sale of the Option or the Option Shares.  The Investor shall be responsible for the payment of any placement agent’s fees, financial advisory fees, or brokers’ commissions (other than for persons engaged by any
Investor or its investment advisor) relating to or arising out of the issuance of the Option and the Option Shares.
 

(n)      Authorization; Enforcement.  The Investor represents and warrants that it is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization with the requisite
corporate or partnership power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated by the applicable this Agreement and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder.  This Agreement has been duly executed by
the Investor, and when delivered by the Investor in accordance with terms hereof, will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of the Investor, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms.
 

(o)      Investment Intent.  The Investor is acquiring the Oramed Shares as principal for its own account for investment purposes only and not with a view to or for distributing or reselling such Oramed Shares or any part
thereof, without prejudice, however, to the Investor's right at all times to sell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of such Oramed Shares in compliance with applicable securities laws and this Agreement.  The Investor is acquiring the
Oramed Shares hereunder in the ordinary course of its business. The Investor does not have any agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with any Person to distribute any of the Oramed Shares.
 

(p)      Investor Status.  At the time the Investor was offered the Oramed Shares, it was, and at the date hereof it is, an "accredited investor" as defined in Rule 501(a) under the Securities Act and a non-"U.S. person" within
the meaning of Rule 902(k) promulgated under the Securities Act (and the Investor is not purchasing for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person).  At the time of the offer and sale of the Oramed Shares, the Investor was not located in the
United States.  The Investor is not required to be registered as a broker-dealer under Section 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 

(q)      General Solicitation.  The Investor is not purchasing the Oramed Shares as a result of any advertisement, article, notice or other communication regarding the Oramed Shares published in any newspaper, magazine
or similar media or broadcast over television or radio or presented at any seminar or any other general solicitation or general advertisement.
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(r)       Access to Information.  The Investor acknowledges that it has been afforded (i) the opportunity to ask such questions as it has deemed necessary of, and to receive answers from, representatives of the Company
concerning the terms and conditions of the offering of the Oramed Shares and the merits and risks of investing in the Oramed Shares; (ii) access to information about the Company and its financial condition, results of operations, business,
properties, management and prospects sufficient to enable it to evaluate its investment; and (iii) the opportunity to obtain such additional information that the Company possesses or can acquire without unreasonable effort or expense that is
necessary to make an informed investment decision with respect to the investment. The Investor understands that a purchase of the Oramed Shares is a speculative investment involving a high degree of risk.  The Investor is aware that there
is no guarantee that the Investor will realize any gain from this investment, and that the Investor could lose the total amount of this investment. The Investor acknowledges that it has received no representations or warranties from the
Company or its employees or agents in making this investment decision other than as set forth in this Agreement.
 

(s)      Independent Investment Decision.  The Investor has independently evaluated the merits of its decision to purchase Oramed Shares pursuant to this Agreement, such decision has been independently made by the
Investor and the Investor confirms that it has only relied on the advice of its own business and/or legal counsel and not on the advice of any other Investor’s business and/or legal counsel in making such decision.
 

(t)       Short Sales.  The Investor has not directly or indirectly, nor has any Person acting on behalf of or pursuant to any understanding with the Investor, executed any Short Sales in the securities of the Company since the
date that the Investor was first contacted regarding an investment in the Company.
 

(u)      Limitations on Transfers. The Investor acknowledges that the Oramed Shares must be held indefinitely unless subsequently registered under the Securities Act or unless an exemption from such registration is
available.  The Investor is aware of the provisions of Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act which permit limited resale of securities purchased in a private placement subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, which may
include, among other things, the existence of a public market for the securities, the availability of certain current public information about the Company, the resale occurring not less than six months after a party has purchased and paid for
the security to be sold, the sale being effected through a “broker’s transaction” or in transactions directly with a “market maker” and the number of securities being sold during any three month period not exceeding specified limitations.
 

(v)      But for the representations actually made in this Agreement, the Investor represents that it is aware that the Oramed Shares are allocated "AS IS" without any further representations by the Company and/or its
directors and/or its shareholders.
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(w)     Disclosure.  All disclosure provided to the Company with regard to the representations and warranties contained in this Section 3.2 regarding the Investor, its business and the transactions contemplated hereby,
furnished in writing by the Investor is true and correct in all material respects and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light
of the circumstances under which they were made, together with the disclosure in the ISA Documents, not misleading.
 

(x)      Company Reliance.  The Investor expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Company is relying upon the Investor’s representations contained in this Agreement.
 

ARTICLE IV.
MISCELLANEOUS

 
4.1           Certificates; Resales.

 
(a)      The Oramed Shares may only be disposed of in compliance with state and federal securities laws.  In connection with any transfer of the Oramed Shares other than pursuant to an effective registration statement or Rule 144(b)(1) to
the Company or to an Affiliate of an Investor, the Company may require the transferor thereof to provide to the Company an opinion of counsel selected by the transferor, reasonably acceptable to the Company, the form and substance of
which opinion shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Company, to the effect that such transfer does not require registration of such transferred Oramed Shares under the Securities Act.
 
(b)      Certificates evidencing the Oramed Shares will contain the following legend, until such time as they are not required:
 

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN
EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT
PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO,
THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO
THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY.  THESE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A
BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.
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(c)      Certificates evidencing the Oramed Shares shall not contain any legend (including the legend set forth in Section 5.1(b) of this Agreement), (i) following a sale of such securities pursuant to an effective registration statement, or (ii)
following any sale of such Shares pursuant to Rule 144 (assuming the transferor was not an Affiliate of the Company), or (iii) if such legend is not required under applicable requirements of the Securities Act (including judicial
interpretations and pronouncements issued by the staff of the SEC).  The Company may not make any notation on its records or give instructions to any transfer agent of the Company that enlarge the restrictions on transfer set forth in this
Section 5.1(c) except in the case of an Investor or its permitted transferee becoming an Affiliate.  Certificates for Oramed Shares subject to legend removal hereunder shall be transmitted by the transfer agent of the Company to the Investor
by crediting the account of the Investor’s prime broker with the Depository Trust Company System.
 
(d)      The Option Shares are subject to a resale restriction pursuant to applicable Israeli law and regulations.
 

4.2           Indemnification.
 

(a)      The Investor acknowledges that he, she or it understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations and warranties that are contained herein and hereby agrees, severally and not jointly, to
indemnify, save and hold harmless the Company and its directors, officers, employees and counsel, from and against any and all claims or actions arising out of a breach of any representation, warranty or acknowledgment of the Investor
contained in this Agreement.  Such indemnification shall be deemed to include not only the specific liabilities or obligations with respect to which such indemnity is provided, but also all reasonable costs, expenses, counsel fees and
expenses of settlement relating thereto, whether or not any such liability or obligation shall have been reduced to judgment.  In addition, the Investor’s representations, warranties and indemnification contained herein shall survive the
Investor’s purchase of the Oramed Shares hereunder for a period of one year following the date hereof.
 

(b)      The Company acknowledges it understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations and warranties that are contained herein and hereby agrees to indemnify, save and hold harmless the Investor
and its directors, officers, employees and counsel, from and against any and all claims or actions arising out of a breach of any representation, warranty or acknowledgment of the Company contained in this Agreement.  Such
indemnification shall be deemed to include not only the specific liabilities or obligations with respect to which such indemnity is provided, but also all reasonable costs, expenses, counsel fees and expenses of settlement relating thereto,
whether or not any such liability or obligation shall have been reduced to judgment.  In addition, the Company’s representations, warranties and indemnification contained herein shall survive the purchase of the Oramed Shares hereunder
for a period of one year following the date hereof.
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4.3           Abstention from Trading. From the date hereof until the Closing Date, (i) the Investor will not engage in any financial market transactions (whether long, short or other hedging transactions) with respect to the
Company’s Common Stock or with respect to the Investor's ordinary shares, and (ii) the Company will not, and the Company shall cause its directors and officers and each of its and their respective Affiliates to not, engage in any financial
market transactions (whether long, short or other hedging transactions) with respect to the Company’s Common Stock or with respect to the Investor's ordinary shares.
 

4.4           Entire Agreement; Amendment.  The parties have not made any representations or warranties with respect to the subject matter hereof not set forth herein.  This Agreement, together with the Option and any other
instruments executed simultaneously herewith, constitute the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  All understandings and agreements heretofore between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof are merged in this Agreement and any such instruments, which alone fully and completely expresses their agreement.  This Agreement may not be changed, modified, extended, terminated or discharged orally, but only by an
agreement in writing, which is signed by all of the parties to this Agreement.
 

4.5           Notices.  Any notice required or permitted to be given to a party pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement will be in writing and will be effective on (i) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is
delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth in this Agreement prior to 5:30 p.m. (in the time zone of the recipient of such notice) on a Trading Day, (ii) the next Trading Day after the date of transmission, if such notice or
communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth in this Agreement on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 5:30 p.m. (in the time zone of the recipient of such notice) on any Trading Day, (iii) the 2nd

Trading Day following the date of mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight courier service, including Express Mail, for United States deliveries or (iii) five (5) Trading Days after deposit in the United States mail by
registered or certified mail for United States deliveries.  All notices not delivered personally or by facsimile will be sent with postage and other charges prepaid and properly addressed to the party to be notified at the address set forth below
such party’s signature of this Agreement or at such other address as such party may designate by ten (10) days advance written notice to the other parties hereto. The address for such notices and communications shall be as follows:
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 If to the Company: Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.

 Hi-Tech Park 2/5
 Givat-Ram
 PO Box 39098
 Jerusalem 91390 Israel
 Attn: Nadav Kidron
 Facsimile:  +972-2-566-0004

With a copy to:
Goldfarb Seligman & Co., Law Offices
Electra Tower, 98 Yigal Alon Street
Tel Aviv 67891, Israel
Attn:  Adam M. Klein, Adv.
Facsimile:  +972-3-608-9855

 
 If to an Investor: To the address set forth under the Investor's name
 on the signature pages hereof.
 

4.6           Delays or Omissions.  Except as otherwise specifically provided for hereunder, no party shall be deemed to have waived any of his or her or its rights hereunder or under any other agreement, instrument or document
signed by any of them with respect to the subject matter hereof unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the party waiving said right.  Except as otherwise specifically provided for hereunder, no delay or omission by any party in
exercising any right with respect to the subject matter hereof shall operate as a waiver of such right or of any such other right.  A waiver on any one occasion with respect to the subject matter hereof shall not be construed as a bar to, or
waiver of, any right or remedy on any future occasion.  All rights and remedies with respect to the subject matter hereof, whether evidenced hereby or by any other agreement, instrument or document, will be cumulative, and may be
exercised separately or concurrently.
 

4.7           Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable under applicable law, then such provision shall be excluded from this Agreement, and the balance of this Agreement shall be interpreted as if
such provision was so excluded and shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms.
 

4.8           Successors and Assigns.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors, assigns, heirs, executors and administrators of the parties
hereto.
 

4.9           Counterparts; Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.  Signatures transmitted by
facsimile or scanned and transmitted by electronic mail shall be considered valid and binding signatures.
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4.10         Survival of Warranties.  The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Company and the Investor contained in or made pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the execution and delivery of this
Agreement and shall in no way be affected by any investigation made by an Investor or the Company.
 

4.11         Further Action.  The parties agree to execute any and all such other and further instruments and documents, and to take any and all such further actions reasonably required to effectuate this Agreement and the intent and
purposes hereof.
 

4.12         Construction.  The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to limit or affect any of the provisions hereof.  The language used in this Agreement will be
deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against any party.  This Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties, and no presumption
or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any provisions of this Agreement.
 

4.13         Publicity.  Each of the parties hereto shall coordinate with each other all publicity relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and shall not issue any press release, immediate report or other filing with
the ISA relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement without first obtaining the prior consent of the other or its representative, except that neither party shall be precluded from making such filings or
giving such notices as may be required by law or the rules of any stock exchange. Each of the parties hereto shall cooperate and shall use their reasonable efforts to agree on the form and substance of the report to be filed by the Investor
with the ISA relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
 

4.14         TASE Listing.  For so long the Option is outstanding or the Company holds any of the D.N.A Ordinary Shares, the Investor shall use its best efforts to maintain its listing on the TASE and shall comply with all reporting
requirements under applicable law.
 

4.15         No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced
by, any other Person.
 

4.16         Governing Law; Venue and Waiver of Jury Trial.  This Agreement is to be construed in accordance with and governed  by the  internal  laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to any choice of law rule that
would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction to the rights and duties of the  parties.  The Company and the Investor agree that any suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be brought to any
court of competent jurisdiction sitting in Wilmington, Delaware and that the parties shall submit to the jurisdiction of such court. The parties irrevocably waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection the party may have to the
laying of venue for any such suit, action or proceeding brought in such court.  THE PARTIES ALSO EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT THEY HAVE OR MAY HAVE TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR
PROCEEDING.  If any one or more provisions of this Section 4.14 shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, it is the specific  intent of the parties that such provisions shall be modified to the minimum extent necessary to
make it or its application valid and enforceable.
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4.17         Replacement of Securities.  If any certificate or instrument evidencing any Securities is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company or the Investor, as applicable, shall issue or cause to be issued in exchange and
substitution for and upon cancellation thereof, or in lieu of and substitution therefor, a new certificate or instrument, but only upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company or the Investor, as applicable, of such loss, theft
or destruction and customary and reasonable indemnity, if requested.  The applicants for a new certificate or instrument under such circumstances shall also pay any reasonable third-party costs associated with the issuance of such
replacement Securities.  If a replacement certificate or instrument evidencing any Securities is requested due to a mutilation thereof, the Company or the Investor, as applicable, may require delivery of such mutilated certificate or
instrument as a condition precedent to any issuance of a replacement.
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE CAUSED THIS SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT TO BE DULY EXECUTED BY THEIR RESPECTIVE AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES AS OF THE DATE
FIRST INDICATED ABOVE.
 
 ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

 
 

 By: /s/ Nadav Kidron  
 Name: Nadav Kidron  
 Title: Chief Executive Officer  
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGES FOR INVESTORS FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized signatories as of the date first indicated above.
 
Name of Investor: D.N.A Biomedical Solutions Ltd.

Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investor: /s/ Zeev Bronfeld      /s/ Meni Mor
 
Name of Authorized Signatory: Zeev Bronfeld and Meni Mor

Title of Authorized Signatory: Director and Director

Email Address of Investor:____________________________

Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number _______________________________

Address for Notice of Investor:

Shimon Hatarasi 43, Tel Aviv 62492, Israel
Facsimile:  [_______________]

Address for Delivery of Securities for Investor (if not same as above):

____________________________________________
____________________________________________
____________________________________________
____________________________________________
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SCHEDULE 1
 

Investor  Number of Shares  
D.N.A Biomedical Solutions Ltd.   2,390,057 
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Exhibit A

OPTION LETTER

To Purchase up to 21,637,611 Ordinary Shares of

D.N.A BIOMEDICAL SOLUTIONS LTD.

This Option Letter (this “Option Letter”) certifies that, for value received, Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. (the “Holder”) is entitled, upon the terms hereinafter set forth, at any time or from time to time on or after the date
of issuance of this Option Letter (such date, the “Initial Exercise Date”) and on or prior to 7:00 p.m., Israel time, on October 29, 2022 (the “Termination Date”) but not thereafter, to subscribe for and purchase from D.N.A
Biomedical Solutions Ltd., a company incorporated in the State of Israel (the “Company”), up to 21,637,611 (the “Shares”) Ordinary Shares, no par value, of the Company (the “Ordinary Shares”).  The purchase price of
each Share under this Option Letter shall be NIS 0.  The number of Shares for which the Option Letter is exercisable shall be subject to adjustment as provided herein.

 
ARTICLE I. Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement (the “SPA”), dated as of October 30, 2012, among the

Company and the Holder.
 

ARTICLE II. Authorization of Shares.  The Company covenants that all Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Option Letter will, upon exercise of the purchase rights
represented by this Option Letter in accordance with the terms hereof, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all Liens imposed by the Company, other than restrictions arising under applicable
securities laws.
 

ARTICLE III. Exercise of Option Letter.
 

3.1           Exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Option Letter may be made at any time or from time to time on or after the Initial Exercise Date and on or before the Termination Date by surrender of
this Option Letter and delivery of a fully completed and duly executed copy of the Notice of Exercise Form annexed hereto to the Company at its principal office (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate
by notice in writing to the registered Holder)Certificates for Shares purchased hereunder shall be delivered to the Hevra Lerishumim on behalf of the Holder as soon as practicable, and in any event no later than two (2) Trading
Days, following the delivery to the Company of the Notice of Exercise Form and surrender of this Option Letter as set forth above (“Exercise Date”).  Should the Company receive a Notice of Exercise, then, within the same time
period, shall cause the Shares to be registered with the Company’s depositary for trade on the TASE.  This Option Letter shall be deemed to have been exercised, and the applicable Shares shall be deemed to have been issued,
immediately prior to the close of business on the Exercise Date. If the Company fails to deliver to the Hevra Lerishumim a certificate representing the Shares or fails to cause the Shares to be registered as aforesaid within the
aforesaid period, then the Holder will have the right to rescind such exercise upon written notice to the Company. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder's right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity
including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company's failure to timely deliver share certificates or register the Shares upon exercise of the Option Letter as required
pursuant to the terms hereof.

 
 

 



 
 

3.2           If this Option Letter shall have been exercised in part, the Company shall, at the time of delivery of the certificate or certificates representing Shares, deliver to Holder a new Option Letter evidencing
the rights of Holder to purchase the unpurchased Shares called for by this Option Letter, which new Option Letter shall in all other respects be identical with this Option Letter.

 
3.3           In case of liquidation of the Company, this Option Letter shall be deemed to have been exercised immediately prior to the effectiveness of the liquidation, and the Holder shall be entitled to receive a

payment in the liquidation in the amount equal to the amount receivable by a holder prior to the liquidation of the number of Ordinary Shares purchasable upon exercise of this Option Letter.
 

ARTICLE IV. No Fractional Shares or Scrip.  No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the exercise of this Option Letter.  As to any fraction of a share which Holder would otherwise
be entitled to purchase upon such exercise, the number of Shares issuable upon such exercise shall be rounded to the nearest whole Share.
 

ARTICLE V. Intentionally Left Blank
 

ARTICLE VI. Closing of Books.  The Company will not close its shareholder books or records in any manner which prevents the timely exercise of this Option Letter pursuant to the terms hereof.
 

ARTICLE VII. Transfers.  Except as set forth in Section 16(f) hereof, this Option Letter shall not be assignable or transferable, in whole or in part.  At the request of the Holder, the Company shall execute and deliver a
new Option Letter or Option Letters in the name of any permitted assignee or assignees and in the denomination or denominations specified in the instrument of assignment, and shall issue to the assignor a new Option Letter evidencing
the portion, if any, of this Option Letter not so assigned, and this Option Letter shall promptly be cancelled.
 

ARTICLE VIII. No Rights as Shareholder until Exercise.  This Option Letter does not entitle the Holder to any voting rights or other rights as a shareholder of the Company prior to the Exercise Date.
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ARTICLE IX. Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Option Letter.  The Company covenants that upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of
this Option Letter or any share certificate relating to the Shares, and in case of loss, theft or destruction, of an indemnity agreement or security reasonably satisfactory to it in form and amount, or, if mutilated, upon surrender and
cancellation of such Option Letter or share certificate, the Company will make and deliver a new Option Letter or share certificate of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in lieu of such Option Letter or share certificate.
 

ARTICLE X. Non-Trading Day.  If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall be a Friday, Saturday, or a legal holiday in Israel or the United States,
then such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding day not a Friday, Saturday, or legal holiday.
 

ARTICLE XI. Adjustments of Number of Shares.  In case the Company, from time to time, shall (a) make a distribution in Ordinary Shares or Ordinary Share equivalents to holders of its outstanding Ordinary Shares, (b)
subdivide its outstanding Ordinary Shares into a greater number of shares, (c) combine its outstanding Ordinary Shares into a smaller number of Ordinary Shares, or (d) issue any shares of its share capital in a reclassification of the
Ordinary Shares, then the number of Shares purchasable upon exercise of this Option Letter immediately prior thereto shall be adjusted so that the Holder shall be entitled to receive the kind and number of Shares or other securities of the
Company which it would have owned or have been entitled to receive had such Option Letter been exercised in advance thereof.    An adjustment made pursuant to this paragraph shall become effective immediately after the effective date
of such event retroactive to the record date, if any, for such event.
 

ARTICLE XII .Reorganization, Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation or Disposition of Assets.  In case the Company shall consolidate or merge with or into another corporation where the Company is not the surviving
corporation and, pursuant to the terms of such consolidation or merger, ordinary shares of the surviving corporation, or any cash, or other securities or property of any nature whatsoever in addition to or in lieu of shares of the surviving
corporation (“Other Property”), are to be received by or distributed to the holders of Ordinary Shares of the Company, then the Holder shall have the right thereafter to receive, upon exercise of this Option Letter, the number of ordinary
shares of the surviving corporation and Other Property receivable upon or as a result of such merger or consolidation by a holder of the number of Ordinary Shares for which this Option Letter is exercisable immediately prior to such event.
In case of any such merger or consolidation, the surviving corporation shall expressly assume the due and punctual observance and performance of each and every covenant and condition of this Option Letter to be performed and observed
by the Company and all the obligations and liabilities hereunder, subject to such modifications as may be deemed appropriate (as determined in good faith by resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company) in order to provide for
adjustments of Shares for which this Option Letter is exercisable which shall be as nearly equivalent as practicable to the adjustments provided for in this Section 12.
 

ARTICLE XIII. Notices of Adjustment and Expiration.

13.1           Whenever the number of Shares or number or kind of securities or other property purchasable upon the exercise of this Option Letter is adjusted, as herein provided, the Company shall give notice
thereof to the Holder, which notice shall state the number of Shares (or other securities or property) purchasable upon the exercise of this Option Letter, setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment and
setting forth the computation by which such adjustment was made.
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(b)            No later than three weeks and no earlier than five weeks prior to the Termination Date, the Company shall send notice to the Holder containing the Termination Date and the number of Shares
purchasable upon exercise of this Option Letter.

 
ARTICLE XIV. Notice of Corporate Action.  If at any time:

 
14.1           the Company shall take a record of the holders of its Ordinary Shares for the purpose of entitling them to receive a dividend or other distribution, or any right to subscribe for or purchase any evidences

of its indebtedness, any shares of any class or any other securities or property, or to receive any other right, or
 

14.2           there shall be any capital reorganization of the Company, any reclassification or recapitalization of the share capital of the Company or any consolidation or merger of the Company with  another
corporation in which the Company will not be the surviving company or,

 
14.3           there shall be a voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company;

 
then, in any one or more of such cases, the Company shall give to Holder at least seven (7) days’ prior written notice of (i) a record date that was fixed for such dividend, distribution or right or for determining rights to vote in respect of
any such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation, sale, transfer, disposition, liquidation or winding up, and (ii) in the case of any such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation, sale, transfer, disposition,
dissolution, liquidation or winding up, the date when the same shall or is expected to take place, provided, however, that if the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board of Directors") approves such action or transaction less then
seven days prior to the applicable record date, then the Company shall give the Holder such notice immediately following such approval of the Board of Directors to enable the Holder to decide whether to exercise this Option Letter prior
to the applicable record date.  Such notice in accordance with the foregoing clause also shall specify (i) the date on which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution or right, the date on which the holders of
Ordinary Shares shall be entitled to any such dividend, distribution or right, and the amount and character thereof, and (ii) the date on which any such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation, sale, transfer, disposition,
dissolution, liquidation or winding up is expected to take place and the time, if any such time is to be fixed, as of which the holders of Ordinary Shares shall be entitled to exchange their Ordinary Shares  for securities or other property
deliverable upon such disposition, dissolution, liquidation or winding up.  Each such written notice shall be delivered in accordance with Section 16(c).
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ARTICLE XV. Authorized Shares.  The Company covenants that during the period this Option Letter is outstanding, it will reserve from its authorized and unissued Ordinary Shares a sufficient number of shares to
provide for the issuance of the Shares upon the exercise of any purchase rights under this Option Letter.  The Company further covenants that its issuance of this Option Letter shall constitute full authority to its officers who are charged
with the duty of executing share certificates to execute and issue the necessary certificates for the Shares upon the exercise of the purchase rights under this Option Letter.  The Company will take all such reasonable action as may be
necessary to assure that such Shares may be issued as provided herein without violation of any applicable law or regulation, or of any requirements of the stock exchange upon which the Ordinary Shares may be listed.
 

Except and to the extent as waived or consented to by the Holder, the Company shall not by any action, including, without limitation, amending its memorandum or articles of association or through any reorganization, transfer of
assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Option Letter, but will at all times in good faith assist
in the carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to protect the rights of Holder as set forth in this Option Letter against impairment.  Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Company will (a) not increase the par value of any Shares above the amount payable therefor upon exercise  of this Option Letter immediately prior to such increase in par value, (b) take all such action as may be
necessary or appropriate in order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable Shares upon the exercise of this Option Letter, and (c) use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all such
authorizations, exemptions, approvals or consents from any public regulatory body having jurisdiction thereof as may be necessary to enable the Company to perform its obligations under this Option Letter.

 
ARTICLE XVI. Miscellaneous.

 
16.1           Jurisdiction.  All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Option Letter shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the SPA.

 
16.2           Non-waiver and Expenses.  No course of dealing or any delay or failure to exercise any right hereunder on the part of Holder or the Company shall operate as a waiver of such right or otherwise

prejudice Holder’s or Company’s rights, powers or remedies.
 

16.3           Notices.  Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered in connection with this Option Letter shall be delivered in accordance with the notice provisions of the
SPA.

 
16.4           Limitation of Liability.  No provision hereof, in the absence of any affirmative action by Holder to exercise this Option Letter or purchase Shares, and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges

of Holder, shall give rise to any liability of Holder for the purchase price of any Ordinary Shares or as a shareholder of the Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by others.
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16.5           Remedies.  Each of the Holder and the Company, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law, including recovery of damages, will be entitled to specific performance of its rights
under this Option Letter.  The Company agrees that monetary damages would not be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of a breach by it of the provisions of this Option Letter and hereby agrees to waive the
defense in any action for specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate.

 
16.6           Successors and Assigns.  Except as expressly permitted by the terms hereof, neither this Option Letter nor any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be assigned, sold, pledged, or

otherwise transferred without the prior written consent of the Company.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, this Option Letter and any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder may be
transferred or assigned by the Holder to a transferee or assignee that (i) is an Affiliate of the Holder or (ii) is a spouse or a child of the controlling member of the Holder.  For purposes of this Section, the term “Affiliate” shall
mean, with respect to any Person, another Person which, directly or indirectly, controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such Person, and the term “control” shall mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of
more than 50% of the voting securities of a Person.  Subject to applicable securities laws, this Option Letter and the rights and obligations evidenced hereby shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors of the
Company and the successors and permitted assigns of Holder.  The provisions of this Option Letter are intended to be for the benefit of all Holders from time to time of this Option Letter and shall be enforceable by any such
Holder or holder of Shares.

 
16.7           Amendment.  This Option Letter may be modified or amended or the provisions hereof waived with the written consent of the Company and the Holder.

 
16.8           Severability.  Wherever possible, each provision of this Option Letter shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Option Letter

shall be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provisions or the remaining provisions of this
Option Letter.

 
16.9           Headings.  The headings used in this Option Letter are for the convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose, be deemed a part of this Option Letter.

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Option Letter to be executed by its officer thereunto duly authorized.

 
Dated: October 30, 2012
 
 D.N.A BIOMEDICAL SOLUTIONS LTD.  
    
 By: /s/ Zeev Bronfeld      /s/ Meni Mor  
  Name: Zeev Bronfeld     Meni Mor  
  Title: Director and Director  
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE
 
TO:           Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.
                 Hi-Tech Park 2/5
                 Givat-Ram
                 PO Box 39098

Jerusalem 91390 Israel
Attn: Nadav Kidron
 

  (1) The undersigned hereby elects to purchase __________ Warrant Shares of the Company pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant (only if exercised in full), and tenders herewith payment of the exercise price in full,
together with all applicable transfer taxes, if any.

 
 (2) Payment shall take the form of (check applicable box):
 
 [  ] in lawful money of the United States; or
 
 [ ] the cancellation of such number of Warrant Shares as is necessary, in accordance with the formula set forth in Section 2(c), to exercise this Warrant with respect to the maximum number of Warrant Shares purchasable

pursuant to the cashless exercise procedure set forth in Section 2(c). [Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of a print-out of the Bloomberg screen showing the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, as defined
therein.]

 
 (3) Please issue a certificate or certificates representing said Warrant Shares in the name of the undersigned or in such other name as is specified below:
 
 _________________________________________
 
The Warrant Shares shall be delivered to the following:
__________________________________________
 
 (4) Accredited Investor.  The undersigned is an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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[SIGNATURE OF HOLDER]
 
  Name of Investing Entity: __________________________________________
  Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investing Entity: _______________________________
  Name of Authorized Signatory: __________________________________________
  Title of Authorized Signatory: _________________________________________
  Date: _______________________
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ASSIGNMENT FORM
 

(To assign the foregoing warrant, execute
this form and supply required information.

Do not use this form to exercise the warrant.)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the foregoing Warrant and all rights evidenced thereby are hereby assigned to whose address is ________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
 
Dated: _____________________
 
Holder’s Signature:_____________________
 

Holder’s Address: _________________________
 

_________________________
 

_________________________
 

Signature Guaranteed: _____________________________
 

NOTE: The signature to this Assignment Form must correspond with the name as it appears on the face of the Warrant, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever, and must be guaranteed by a bank or trust
company.  Officers of corporations and those acting in a fiduciary or other representative capacity should file proper evidence of authority to assign the foregoing Warrant.
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Exhibit B

A letter from the Israeli Securities Authority received by D.N.A Biomedical Solutions Ltd. on April 18, 2012.
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Exhibit 23.2
 

 
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference of our report dated December 10, 2007 relating to the inception through August 31, 2007 audited financial statements of Oramed Pharmaceuticals, Inc.  which appears in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for that period in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 no. (333-163919).
 
/s/ MaloneBailey, LLP
 
MaloneBailey, LLP
www.malone-bailey.com
Houston, Texas
 
December 13, 2012
 

 



EXHIBIT 31.3
 

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a)
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

 
I, Nadav Kidron, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this Amendment No. 1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.; and
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

Date: December 21, 2012 /s/ Nadav Kidron
 Nadav Kidron
 President and Chief Executive Officer

 



EXHIBIT 31.4
 

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a)
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

 
I, Yifat Zommer, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this Amendment No. 1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.; and
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

Date: December 21, 2012 /s/ Yifat Zommer
 Yifat Zommer
 Chief Financial Officer


